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Chairman’s Message

Fimanceal Highhghts

Board & Management Reparts Financial Statements

Dear Shareholders,

| am very pleased to inform you about ACC's performance
in 2018 - a year when your Company transformed many
parts of its business to deliver a strong performance on
many fronts - financially, sodially and sustainably. For
decades now, ACC has stood for excellence in the quality
of its products and in the delivery of its financial
performance. 2018 was no exception, with your Company
delivering healthy volume and profit growth. ACC's
consolidated operating EBITDA grew by 11% and Profit
Before Tax grew by 21% YoY, on a normalised basis.

The rising costs of fuel, power, raw materlals and rake
availability continued to be of concern, as did the
continuance of 28% rate of G5T levied on cement. On the
other hand. cement demand continued to be healthy,
buoyed by strong economic growth. The cement sector
grew by ~B.5% in 2018 versus ~6% in the previous year.

Against this backdrop, ACC managed ta improve its
performance metrics in volume and market share gains,
backed by sharper customer focus, innovative products,
customised solutions, operational improvements and
tighter cost management. During the year, we launched
ACC F2R SUPERFAST - a revolutionary cement with
superior strength, superfine quality and superfast setting
and ACC LeakBlock - a high performance waterproofing
compound, marking ACC's foray into the category of
construction chemicals. Our ready mix concrete business
continues to grow exponentially,

In Union Budget 2019, the Government has committed to
further augment the infrastructure sector - railways,
roads, highways and irrigation projects. We believe that
their efforts to increase investment across several sectors
will have a favourable impact which will stimulate cement
demand and boost econamic growth,

To serve the growing demand for cement, we are

investing In capacity expansion projects that will add
5.9 million tonnes of cement capacity through a

greenfield integrated cement plant at Ametha in Madhya
Pradesh, with a grinding unit in Uttar Pradesh and
expansion of our Tikaria and Sindri plants over a period of
three years. This investment will further strengthen our
market footprint and contribute to the Company’s future
growth,

Going beyond the economic returns, at ACC, we believe
that economic, social and environmental values are
interlinked and are part of an interdependent ecosystem
comprising Consumers, Shareholders, Employees,
Government, Partners, the Environment and Society.

We are proud to present the Company’s first Integrated
Report that articulates our holistic approach in creating
shared value for our investors, customers, employees and
the community at large. The report highlights the
concept and deployment of the Six Capitals: Financial,
Manufactured, Intellectual, Human, Natural and

Social & Relationship.

Aligned with our Sustainable Development 2030 Plan, we
are reducing our dependence on conventional energy
using solar power at our units beginning with Kudithini,
Thondebhavi and Jamul and improving water positivity
through extensive raimwvater harvesting projects. | am
very proud to inform you that your Company became the
first cement company in India to publish an Environment
Product Declaration (EPD) for its blended cement
products manufactured across all its plants. In 2018, your
Company's community development programmes
touched the lives of almost half a million people in 185
villages across India.

I would like to thank our ACC parivar of employees, our
channel partners, suppliers, and others, who worked
tirelessly to deliver a strong performance in 2018,

| thank you dear shareholders for your confidence and
trust. | look forward to your continued support so that
together we can build a company that delivers excellence,
time and again.

Marotam Sekhsaria

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 0
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At a Glance

ACC

India's leading cement brand

17 75

Cement plants Ready Mix
Concrete plants
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'‘Outstanding Accomplishment' in the Corporate Excellence category at the

ClI-ITC Sustainability Awards 2018




Integratad Report @ Financial Highlights Board & Management Reports Financlal Statements

il ' Performance Highlights*

| (Standalone Financial)
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Operating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA Margin
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4] | Performance Highlights*

| (Standalone Financial)

Dividend Per Share, Earnings Per Share
and Dividend Payout Ratio™* Met Fixed Assets & Asset Turnover Ratio
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* | Cost & Profit as a Percentage of Revenue from Operations (Net)

|
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INTEGRATED REPORT
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Our Vision
To be one of the most
respected companies

in India;
recognised for o s
challenging Our Purpose
conventions and To be a driving force
delivering on our in creating a
promises. confident future for
/ = our people,
our customers,
our shareholders and
our nation.
e —
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At ACC, we believe in being consclous about the usage
of resources to create a product or service. We remain
committed to a sustainable model of business - one
that leads us to make judicious use of resources and
mitigate negative impacts of our business,
demonstrate strong corporate governance and create
and maximise long-term value for shareholders,
customers and employees alike. Through ACC's first
Integrated Report, we aim to share this holistic
approach in creating shared value for our investors,
customers, employees and the community,

The organisation's heritage gives it the propensity to
appreciate its relationships not only within its
immediate and ambient surroundings but also beyond
these boundaries, to be conscious of interdependence
with a larger circle of stakeholders, the planet and its
people. integrated Reporting expands this perspective
further from the framework of the Triple Bottom Line to
an understanding of the six capitals we use In our
operations and in engaging them, how we create value
for all stakeholders. Among the highlights of this report
s the concept and deployment of the six capitals;
Financial Capital, Manufactured Capital, Intellectual
Capital, Human Capital, Natural Capital and Social &
Relationship Capital

In preparing our Integrated Report, we are guided by
the Integrated Reporting <IR> Framework laid down by
the International Integrated Reporting Council. It forms
part of our Annual Report 2018 and seeks to provide
information on the holistic performance of the
company. It presents an overview of our

business and associated activities that help in
long-term value creation. The intent of this

report is to communicate with greater

transparency, offer better disclosures and

provide our stakeholders with a well rounded

view of the organisation.

¢ ACC LIMITEL

Value creation over time: An integrated approach

We advise that this report be read In conjunction with all
the components of the Annual Report 2018 - Financial
Statements, Repart of the Board of Directors and
Annexures thereto,

F

bl

We remain committed to a
sustainable model of business — one
that leads us to make judicious use of
resources and mitigate negative
impacts of our business, demonstrate
strong corporate governance and
create and maximise long-term value
for shareholders, customers and
employees alike.

o

o
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| Governance Framework

ACC is a professionally managed
company functioning under the
overall supervision of the Board of
Directors, The Board comprises
Independent and Mon-Independent
Directors, including an Independent
Woman Director in keeping with the
provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI {Listing
Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015,

ACC rigorously abides by
the core principles of
Corporate Governance,
which form the bedrock of
its two-fold governance,
with the Board of Directors
and the Committees at the
apex level and the
Management structure at
the operation level.

The Board and its Committees
guide, support and complement the
Management team which in turn
assumes accountability and
endeavours to achieve set
objectives and enhances
stakeholder value,

Board Effectiveness: Well-defined guidelines and rules ensure the effectiveness
and probity of all aspects of the functioning of the Board and its supervision of the
overall performance of the Company. These include & familiarisation programme for
Independent Directors and the Board's annual evaluation of its performance which

is a very transparent process.

Integrity, transparency, fairness, accountability and compliance with the law are
embedded in the Company's robust business practices to ensure ethical and
responsible leadership both at the Board and at the Management level,

Our core principles include:

I Strategic oversight

The Board defines the long term vision for the Company and directs the
Managemsant to convert opportunities into growth and minimise business risks.
The Board offers fresh perspectives on strategic matters, approves business plans
and annual budgets and monitors performance,

I Reinforcing a risk culture

The Risk Management Committee of the Board evaluates business risks and
monitors the movement of these risks based on their likelihood and impact, and
evaluates the management's risk mitigation plans.

icoumaniy

The Board directs and guides the activities of the Management towards
achieving goals and seeks accountability. It is responsible for reviewing and
approving quarterly and half yearly unaudited financial staternents and the
audited annual financial statements, both Standalone and Consolidated, within
the prescribed timelines under the SEBI Regulations and under the Companies
Act, 2013,

I Compliance with laws and regulations

The Board has approved a Code of Business Conduct applicable to Members of
the Board and to all employees, The Company also has robust systems in place to
ensure compliance with laws and regulations which impact its business.

| corporate social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility {C5R) Committee of the Board monitors the
implementation of the C5R programmes in line with the CSR Palicy as approved
by the Board. It regularly reviews progress on the Company's sustainable
development efforts.

Integrity

P
T aNsparency

Compliance

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Stakeholder Engagement

We have a large population of stakeholders from diverse groups across the Customers
country - from our workforce to shareholders, customers, channel partners, | (.i ACC follows a

vendors and communities, government and other associates, customer-centric
philosophy to ensure
Being part of the global LafargeHolcim Group, we have links with stakeholders that customers get the
beyond our borders. We conduct stakeholder analysis periodically, the last one best value from our products and
was in 2018 where we undertook detailed stakeholder identification, services and are enriched by the
understanding and interface, and influence mapping followed by stakeholder experience. This philosophy exacts
prioritisation. superior products, services and

logistics. Customer relationship
Stakeholders were mapped in terms of their importance to ACC and their levels ~ management systems are applied to
of influence, threat and cooperation. The accompanying matrix presents manage transactions, queries and
Stakeholders’ Importance, Influence & Threat to ACC on X-axis and ACC's other interactions efficiently. A
Engagement, Cooperation & Influence on stakeholders on Y-axis. variety of routine studies and
dipstick surveys are conducted to
understand their needs. Our
customers enjoy a range of blended
cements and value added concrete
solutions with superior features
suitable for different applications and
local conditions. New products and
solutions are developed based on
our in-depth understanding of
consumer requirements, Beyond

products, we add value through
support initiatives that include a
Helpline active seven days of the
week, Our digital initiatives of Retail
Connect and Dealer Connect mobile
apps are well accepted.
Low Importance, Influence and Threat High Employees o
w backbone of our

In keeping with our approach of continuous and transparent communication Company. Direct and

on performance and value creation, we proactively and continuously reach out Indirect means such as

to our stakeholders, The frequency and forum of communication is customised frequent meetings, one-on-one

to meet their needs and the requirements of the Company. interactions, email messages, video
conferences, interactive intranet

Shareholders & Investors portals, newsletters, webcasts and

' We communicate disclosures made by the Company other events are used as channels to

& with shareholders from time to time. We also have provide feedback and suggestions to
. and investors in interactions through investor meets help make continuous improvement
various ways and at Annual General Meetings. in the governance of the

including quarterly financial Engaging with investors enables us organisation and quality of the

disclosures, investor presentations, to get useful feedback and insights services we offer. The aim is to build a

annual reports, sustainable which serve as inputs for sustainable ::“9 d‘?“‘;ﬁ;mﬂ“ﬂ“bﬂh Tﬂhin

developme growth. organisation towards meeting

nt reports and other e e

’ ACE LIMITED



@ Inegrated Aepor

Communities & NGOs
As responsible
corporate citizens, we
recognise our role in
building the
communities around our operatians,
many of which are located in remote
areas, For decades, ACC has invested
in the development of rural
communities especially in terms of
health, livelihood, agriculture,
education, women empowerment
and Water, Sanitation and Hygiene
(WASH]. Through ACC TRUST and in
collaboration with NGOs, we assist
these communities by identifying,
prioritising and meeting their
developmental aspirations through
periodic assessment surveys and
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
pragrammes, touching the lives of
lakhs of people, ACC's CSR agenda
meets requirements of Schedule VI
of the Companies Act, 2013 and is in
accordance with all of the UN
Sustainable Development Goals
except four which are not directly
applicable to our operations.

Government & Regulatory

Authorities

m regulators and

government bodies

and are committed to providing
timely and accurate information and
reports, This enables us to
understand their focus areas and
concerns and in turn help us provide
key insights on market conditions
and practices in our business.

We hold various
interactions with

Dealers & Retailers
ALCC is recognised as a
B brand which
| consistently meets
high standards in

quality and packaging, Our sales

Firnarlal Highlights

force ensures timely delivery and
regular supply of products and
services which s supported by
digital technology such as Retail
Connect and Dealer Connect maobile
apps. Apart from sales calls and
regular visits, activities such as dealer
engagements and Annual Dealer
Meets help in affirming long term
relationships. To ascertain levels of
satisfaction among ACC dealers, we
use tools such as Net Promoter Score
and surveys,

Vendors & Suppliers
We enjoy strong
@ partnerships with our
vendors and suppliers

and engage with them
regularly. All agreements with
suppliers, such as purchase orders,
purchase agreements, service
agreements and frame agreements
have to refer to the supplier's
compliance with SAB000 audit
certification, environmental
management, legal compliance
requirements and social causes,
including human rights aspects and
ethical requirements.

Media
ACC maintains
("l) transparency in all its
A communications and
makes frequent
disclosures through press releases,
publishes articles and news,
organises meetings and interviews,
Utilising digital and social media, we
also communicate a range of topics
from our CSR activities and
innovative new products to thoughts
on the cement industry and our
performance. Creative sales and
marketing campaigns are devised 1o
reach out to customers that enable
visibility and frequent contact,

Board & Management Riports

Fimincial Stat@ments

including those that are close to the
point of purchase,

Construction Professionals

ACC provides products
@ and services with
| assured quality and

supports construction
professionals with quality
information on the best use of
products, Using exhibitions,
workshops and information kiosks,
we promote good and safe
construction practices, and
periodically felicitate top
construction professionals.

Industry Associations
ACC is an active
Q member of important
| Industry organisations
such as Federation of
Indian Chambers of Commerce and
Industry (FICCH), Confederation of
Indian Industry (Cll}, Indian Merchant
Chambers (IMC) and other
associations. These associations serve
as platforms for knowledge building,
networking, assessing the effect of
government policies and
international trends, and sharing of
industry best practices through
participation in seminars, ACC also
participates in competitive awards
organised by these associations and
reqularly receives recognition that
augments brand trust and value,

ANMNUAL REPORT 2018 ’
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115: Resources & Value Creation

We acknowledge that a company with purpose recognises the various forms of tangible and
intangible resources at its disposal and their deployment in a manner that leads to long term value
creation.

) ) Resources needed to conduct our business obtained from debt and
Financial

Capital

financing and funds generated through our business operations

and investments.

P 1;“{’-*..- Manufactured
St L L Capital
Our knowle
i Intellectual Properti
{55 o
| Y- Intellectual across a wide range of di
L Capital nd € te technalo
Human : :
Capital Company's "Ultimate Re ce’ Our robust people development
programmes are designed to enhance their skills and capabilities,
Matural capital comprises all renewable and non-renewable
% . envirchmental resources and processes that support the past, current
1—*%3{’ ) Natural and future pr ity of the organisation and the country, It includes
3 'r.::_?..-\?" Cﬂpltﬂi ; LE 1AL F. j ) LIE Lie k1 C & -... .._ -_. ALICE
e air, water, land, minerals and forests as well as biodiversity and the
& around
__.. Social & | 2rat] : 2| partners, assoclate ended family of
o Wa " "
" %\ Relationship our y and s dary stakehalders are at the heart of our
L o .
o Capital

14 accLmiTen
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«* | Financial Capital
i |

Our commitment to growth, financial prudence, disciplined capital allocation
and shareholder returns are shared goals of the company.

Financial Capital is the economic across all six capitals, add sustainable by 7%, achieved by executing a set of
value that we generate through our value to stakeholders and reward our pricrities, both on revenue and cost
business and the value we distribute shareholders for their investment. levers, improving efficiency,
back to stakeholders, For over 80 leveraging our premium products
years, one of our Company’s T remain competitive, we focus on portfolio and strengthening our
fundamental objectives has been to leveraging production and supply- customer and market approach.
manage the financial health of the chain efficiencies, cost optimisation,
balance sheet, mobilise and utilise and bottom line improvement. The Company’s ready mix concrete
financial resources in a way that it business registered significant
maximises returns and enhances In 2018, ACC reported strong growth during the year through
shareholder wealth. performance in both its cement and focus on profitable construction
concrete businesses, growing net segments and value added solutions
We invest where we can achisve sales by 12% and PET by 15% Yo, deliverad to large projects.
returns which further create value Operating EBITDA growth was up
- T |

= Current assets 6,726 - Maximise sharsholder value Economic Value Generated :

+ Capital employed 10,528 « Financial planning and analysis + Met cales 14477

+ Metwarth LR « Reduction of fixed and variable cost - OQperating ESITDA (Standalone) 3045

« Met fiwed assets 7447 + Cash and investrnent management + Prafit After Tax {Standalone)* 1,507

« Taxation and compliance z 3“;3“"9 caslh ﬂ':fw Lna
: ?::::::ii::h o inemase At sof0d 28320
Wealth Distributed :

» Increased income from value added i ;
products » Remuneration including
R . ) retirernent benefits to employess BRI
= Mirimise cost 1o incomae ratic )
« Contribution ta Government

as taxes and other levies 5,796

+ Dividend to shareholders 282

« Community investments Fli]

= Finandcial cost a5

» Retained with business 1,566
Recognition

THE INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS oF I ) e
NDIA ICAH Aweard for
RESENTATION CEREMONY FOR ICAT AWA E!l.’tELLENEi IN FINANCIAL REPORTING 2017-18 AN™ EELTCTT) Excellence in Financial
Orgar' =4 &
J Reporting for
Commended Anmual
Feport 2017

Golden Peacack
Award for Excellence
in Corporate’
Gavernance in 2018

IC5) Certificate of
- Recognition for
Excellence in Corporate
‘Governance for 2018

* Inchad He-nackof 7501 C lating to isha
nohuding write-nack of rore nelating to ta provisions ANNUAL REPCIHT 2018 0
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Manufactured Capital

'l |
=8,
Ld

We make reqular investments to achieve continuous improvements in productivity,
enerqgy efficiency, environment management standards and quality of output.

We manage our manufacturing
capital effectively with reqular
investrments to augment capacity
together with infrastructure,
technologies and processes planned
in a manner that enables efficient
resource utilisation and offers safe,
reliable and sustainable products
and services to customers.

ACC has a significant manufacturing
footprint acrass the country with 17
integrated cement plants and
grinding units with moderm

Capacity expansion to deliver growth

equipment, latest generation
instrumentation and sophisticated
environment and pollution control
systems at every stage from mining
to packing and dispatch. Our ready
mix concrete businass is one of the
largest in India with 75 plants in
major cities across the country,

The Company is largely self-sufficient
in meeting its power requirements
with thermal power generating
facilities at most of its cement plants.
Three wind energy farms and a

Waste Heat Recovery System {(WHRS)
reflect a shift towards generating
grean enargy.

Logistics operations are facilitated by
RFID (Radic Frequency Identification)
and GFS {(Global Positioning System)
technologies, a migration to bulk
transportation, rail network and
satellite grinding units. Plants are
integrated seamlessly with channel
partners, enabling uninterrupted
deliveries and service.

ACCis enhancing its cement production capacities by 5.9 mn tons by setting up a greenfield integrated cement plant
at Ametha, Madhya Pradesh and a grinding unit in Uttar Pradesh, and expansion of its Tikaria and Sindri plants.

@ ALC LIMITELD
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Cement & Concrete Business
+ Total no. of cement plants

B grinding units 17

+ Integrated plants 11
+ Grinding units &
« Production capacity of cermnent 3341
MTRA

« Met fied assets T crore T4

Value of current assets ¥ crare,. 6,726
« CAPEX during the vear ¥ crore 518

» Bulk tarminal 1
+ WHRS 1
+ Windrmill statlons with 19 MW
installed capacity 3
+ Ready mix concrete plants 75

Productlon capacity 765 mnm’

CASE STUDY

Conserving natural resources

» Production & maintenance

» Mine planning

+ Limestone extraction

+ Preparing raw feed, grinding raw meal

+ Pre-heating, calcination

+ Clinkerisation

= Fuel preparation and homogenisation

+ Cement grimding

+ Packing and dispatch

+ Health & Safety

- Efficient bogistics

« Digital infrastructure

« Cyber risk and data protection

Concrete Business

» Land lease

+ Receipt of materials & storage

+ Feeding materiaks into the mixer in
requisite propartion

+ Mixing, loading intoe transit mier

+ Dispatch

Cement Business
+ Cement production volume  28.36

MTPA

+ Thermal substitution rate 4.47%
= Fly ash consumption G.05 MTPA
= Slag consumpdion 331 MTPA
= Specific thermal energy

consumption: 3093 MUT of clinker

« Clinker Fachor Improvement  1.68%
= Al plants are 150 14001 certified
Concrate Businass

« Concrete production

volume I3 mnm'

=+ Mew ready mix concrete plants 18
+ Concrete production volurme

increased 15%

In keeping with our approach to improve performance and focus on sustainable technology, ACC Jamul has
modified the process of manufacturing Portland Pozzolana Cement (PPC) by using wet fly ash (pond ash) which is

usually wasted.

Traditionally, cement plants use dry fly ash to manufacture PPC and the wet fly ash factor in PPC remalins at ~5-10%.
Using a first-of-its-kind process, developed entirely in-house, ACC Jarmul successfully utilised 100% wet fiy ash,
available freely in the vicinity, to manufacture PPC. This resultant PPC was tested thoroughly, met all quality
pararmeters and was enthusiastically received by the market.

Recognition

ACC Gagal won 17 prize’in
averall performance, Mineral
Conservation, Scientific
Development of Mines,
Sustainable Development &
Afforestation and 2™ prize in Air
& Water Monitoring at MEMOW

ACC Kymere; Jamul and Wadi
were regogrised as Excellent
Energy Efficient Unit’ arid ACC
Thondebhavi as ‘Energy Efficient
Unit' by Il at the Mational
Award for Excellence in Energy
Management
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@ | Intellectual Capital

Qur intellectual capital consists of knowledge, experience and expertise together
with a vast body of accomplishments in a wide range of disciplines in cement
and concrete technology, manufacturing, distribution, marketing and
management acquired over years of being in the business.

We build on cur intellectual capital
by continuous advancement of
knowledge, expertise and experience
in all areas of business to achieve
higher performance levels while
mitigating risks and enabling
innovation-led growth, To continue
influencing the way the nation
builds, ACC constantly evolves and
innovates to remain at the forefront
of building technology.

ACC's Dealer Connect app and
website are designed to deliver a

T |

Cement Business

+ RED spend 5.38
« lrwested in new equipment

& facilities 032
Concrete Business
+ R spend 045

searmless user experience, Qur
channel partners can place orders
and track order status, check loyalty
points, confirm deliveries and
download monthly ledgers at their
DWH Convenience.

ACC's Service Connect App helps our
field force to digitally geotag every
construction site visited, add details
of contractaors of each site,
conversion and orders, everyday,
These details are analysed to develop
initiatives to further demand.

» Research & Development

» Product development

+ Intellectual property

+ Applied research

+ Malntaining consistent quality

Dol
ALE cement

|

Cement Business

+ Mo. of products developed 3
« Consistenthy delivered customer values
Concrete Business

+ Mo, of new products developed 4
« Consistent customer satisfaction
Solutions & Products

= Green Building Centres

= Mo, of houses bailt 27,765
« Matural soil saved Bidaie MT
« Reduced OO, emlssionr 5730 MT
- Waste utilization ITETT MT
= GECS set up 65
» GBCs in progress 97
- Dry Mix
= Mo, of products developed 4
« Enhanced buwilding materials
portfalio

.

Creating value through innovation: ACC LeakBlock Waterproofing Technology

‘ACC is constantly pushing its boundaries by developing modern products and solutions:

| that score high on performance, durability, strength and power. ACC LeakBlock is a
polymer based integral waterproofing compound specifically formulated using
plasticizing and surface active additives, which can be used in all types of cement
mortar, plasters and concrete. It increases th‘e durability and : sanm:e life of structures h}r
lﬁr:i'easing resistance to water pﬁneﬁﬂﬂan and chioride attack, enhanr:?mg the

i mheshferﬁea and adheswn properties in the concrete and cemnt"murtars,

QO <o
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CASE STUDY

Green Building Centres
Itis ACC's belief that businesses can bring about transformational change by pursuing innovative business models
that synergise the creation of sustainable livelihoods while enhancing shareholder value,

Green Building Centres (GBC), an ACC initiative, has started to become a catalyst in rural development, furthering
the cause of affordable housing and providing local associates with opportunities for entreprensurship,
employment and independence.

The Vyas family began its journey with ACC in 1967 when Ramprasad Vyas started a dealership in Mancherial,
Telangana. Fifty years later, his engineer grandson Gopal Vyas wondered how to combine his keen interest in
manufacturing with his ambitions to branch out from the business and yet continue his family's relationship with
ACC. The answer: partner with ACC to launch a GBC in Mancherial to manufacture superior quality eco-frigndly
building materials. In January 2018, Gopal set up Telangana's first advanced and aesthetically designed GBC.

ACC offers technical expertise to set up modern GBCs with a small investment to support rural entrepreneurship.
Each centre creates 150 jobs while creating an eco-friendly model by conserving fertile top soil and reducing CO,
emission of 183 MT per million fly ash bricks produced and saving 2.6 kgs of fertile agricultural soil for every fly ash
brick produced. There are 65 GBCs set up across the country with 97 more on the anvil.

ACC F2R SUPERFAST

ACC F2R SUPERFAST, launched in
January 2018, is a revolutionary new
cement with superior strength,
superfine quality and a superfast
setting formula that enables robust
construction in quick time; it also has

the added advantage of early strength.

This innovative new product received
phenomenal response from

consumers who clearly see its benefits.

Speedy solution for potholes

ACC Supercoat Premium is a specialty product from ACC's
concrete business for instant pothole repair that rapidly

hardens, allowing traffic to flow within 15 minutes.
The innovation comes as a long-term solution to
the persistent issue of pothales in India.

Indian Concrete Journal

The Indian Concrete Joumnal (1CJ) was first
published by ACC in 1927 to share knowledge and
information on concrete to engineers, architects,
builders, contractors and manufacturers. ICJ enjoys
a dedicated readership across India and
internationally. It disseminates information on the
latest developments in cement, concrete and
construction practices, and highlights the versatility and
varied applications of concrete. Recently, IC) published it's
first-ever IC) Collector's Edition.

Recognition

Fastest Growing Company —
large Category 2017-18

{Cement) title at the 3" Indian
Cement Review Awards
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Q = | Human Capital
i |
|

Our dynamic and dedicated workforce comprises men and women from diverse
ethnic, social and educational backgrounds.

We strive to create a safe workplace where employees feel empowered and motivated to realise their full potential and
are recognised for their contributions. As an equal opportunity employer, we nurture an environment which respects

diversity within the ACC parivar. The focus of our people strategy is on developing a stronger performance culture and
investing in the development of leaders for today and tomorrow,

People for Tomorrow

Our integrated people development
strategy aims to make our workforce
ready for changing market scenarios
and future needs of the organisation.
People for Tomorrow is a programme
specifically designed to improve
people performance within the
manufacturing function, create
future-ready employees, and prepare
successors for critical roles.

Best-in-class people productivity
Qur commitment to be a leaner and

I Key Inputs

» Total numbser of ermpboyess 5,731

= Female employees 262
+ Male employees &89
» Mumber of employees hired AS

+ Murmber of rmankours

= Awerage emphoyee oost
ncaarred per anpum ¥ lakh 10.42

= Tatal training hours imparted  1,32,762

1,5582,993

» Mo of people undergone risk
based health assessment 3,200

@ ACC LIMITED

mare agile organisation has yielded
significant improvement in the
manpower productivity indicator
{Tons/FTE) of ~50% over the last two
years, which is one of the best in the
cerment industry. Our productivity
initiatives supplemented with
technical skill training, behavioural
improvement and engagement
programmes for workmen have
helped yield better business results.

Better Health & Safety outcomes
In our continuous mission to improve

I Business Activities

= Safe and caring environment

= Dwive fero Harm culture

« Employee development & growth
oppartunities

+ Building talent pool

= Walue creation for employees
through business & technologlcal
EXposune

+ Employes engagement

+ Emiployes weliness

= Succession planning

= |Improving gender diversity

Health & Safety (H&S), 2018 saw our
£ero Harm programme running at
full throttle, both on site and off site.
With increased production, the task
at hand was to control risk levels
effectively. Our efforts included
increased communication and
engagement, roll out of new
standards, incident reviews, lone
working solutions, LafargeHolcim
global H&S challenges, global H&S
Days, numerous HES audits, in-depth
HE&S improvement plans

and more.

I Qutputs and Outcomes

« Bestin class people productivity 4,770

Tons/FTE
= Revenue peremployee T crore 215
= Employes grievances recorded o

« Total medical treatment injuries 27
= Lost time injury frequency

rate (LTIFE) 045
= Total injury frequency rate

(TIFR] 103
= Ermployes inpury rate (IR) 0.BY
= B rieduction in attrition rate 2
= Women in leadership roles 2
= Y of women recruited B

WL
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Flramcial Highlights

Engaged employees, Productive employees

Board & Managerment Reports

Financial Slalemants

Committed to innovation: Innovate to Excel
An annual national level competition which encourages employees to incorporate innovation for iImprovement of
everyday operations. Participation has grown in leaps and bounds over the past 14 years setting higher standards of

innovation across disciplines,

Safety Corner

ACC launched 'Safety Corner — a
step towards a safer us’in 2018 as
an initiative to influence employes
behaviour and develop a more
conscious attitude towards health
and safety. On the first day of 2ach
month, employees gather in small
groups across offices and plants to
discuss a pertinent H&S topic.

Promoting artistic talent:

Sitaron ki Khoj

A national talent hunt platform for
ACC employees and their families
which gives them the opportunity
to shine and be recognised for their
talent in front of a large audience,
More than 1,000 participants across
locations displayed a variety of
talents with tremendous

skill and enthusiasm.

Recognition

Occupational Safety & Health
(D5H) India Awards 20718

© ACC- Innovation in O5H -
Safety implementation -
Proactive

i ACC Lakherl - O5H Innevation
- Award - Employee Awareness -
Proactive

 ACC Chaibasa - O5H

Innovation Award - Emplayee
Awareness - Reactive:

ACC Jamul - Rio Tinto Health
Safety Award (2017-2018)

- ACCThondebhavi - Greeritech
- Safety Award 2018
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Q' ' Natural Capital

¢

As a cement manufacturing company, we depend on stocks of natural resources.
We make every effort to mitigate the impacts of our operations on the natural

environment. This includes air, water, land, minerals, forests as well as biodiversity,
while striving for a zero-waste future.

Across the world, there are
increasing demands for preservation
of natural resources and use of
sustainable solutions in business.

ACC has always been at the forefront
of sustainable development. Our
'Sustainable Development (SD) 2030
Plan' is aligned with our parent
company LafargeHolcim and reflects
our strategy and commitmeant
towards conserving natural capital.
We have achieved significant
progress in the four focus areas of
our 50 2030 Plan: Climate, Circular
Economy, Water & Mature and
People & Communities,

Reducing the use of virgin materials
while increasing the use of
alternative materials has helped
minimise ACCS impact on the

environment. As a best practice, we
are increasingly blending cement
with industrial by-products like fiy
ash and slag to conserve natural
resources of limestone and
improving its clinker factor while
strengthening the final product. In
2018, ACC's share of blended
cement increased to ~B8%.

ACC's Green Building Centres
pramote sustainable construction,
low-cost housing developrment and
conservation of natural resources
through the production of fly ash
bricks.

Regular investments are made to
continuausly improve energy
efficiency, pollution control and
environment management
standards,

ACC is India's first cement company
to be awarded the 'GreenPro
Certification’ by the Confederation of
indian Industries (CIl}
for its eco-
friendly, blended
cement product |
portfolic - ACC
Concrete+ Xtra
Strong, ACC F2R
SUPERFAST, ACC Gold

Water Shield, ACC Suraksha Power,
ACC HPC Long Life - across its 17
plants.

ACCisthe first cement company in
India to complete the process of
assessing and publishing its impact
across the life cycles of its products
through Environment Product
Declaration (EPDY for its cement and
concrete products.
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. T (T

= Specific water consumption 173 Lirs!
T of cement

= Total heat consumption
of kiln 53,8097T)

= Alternative fuels utilised 1,744 Tl
= Alternative bio fuels utilised

inkiln G48T)
+ Total environment
expenditure T crore 208

Wmmmmﬁmm
pfmﬂﬁes mbhmmanmm

eyt Bnamum sk
mmnmm@ﬁmawmm any

.I' alﬁh m' . f BN
mudmhﬁewﬂeﬁ&ﬁuwwﬁaﬁm ;

In 2018, we co-processed
3,79,883 tons of waste in our
::en‘iaﬁ’f Ié|lns,3th[e‘¢zmga

= Mining & land acquisition » CO, emissions Ko /T of cement
excluding emissions from onsite
generation {Soope-1): 504.55 Kgs

+ Specific 50, emissions /T of cement;
TE.316 gmslT of cement

+ Specific MOx emissions /T of cerment:

= Presturement

= Research & Development

= Manufacturing process

= Logistics including employee travel
« Ready Mix Concrete

1051 gmsiT
; il il
Green Building Centres « Specific dust emissions (T of cement:
= Water conservation 1743 gma/T
+ Rescurce management « Wind energy generated 34.74 mn units
+ Energy management « Renewsabde energy used through PPAS
« Geocycle waste management dad 4B rin units
= Co-processing waste in kiing = % of renewable energy over total energy

comslmption; 3,43
= % of water recycled; 12
» Total waste generated 19465 Tons

+ Waste disposed (land fillad / incinerated)
1.50 Tons (biomedical waste)

thermal

Recognition
. "es Bank Natural Capital Award 2018 in the ‘Eco-
Corporate’ - Manufacturing Sector

5 Star rating by the Min ryﬂwaw for Sustainable
Development to our Limestene Mines In Chanda, Kymore

and Jamul

Y ACC Gagal won the Leaders Awards - Large Business,
~ Process Sectar at the Sustainability 4.0 2018 by Frost &
Sullivan and TER]
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W g ' Social and Relationship Capital

Engaging and connecting with communities around our operations, channel
partners, associates and the extended family of our primary and secondary
stakeholders is at the core of our organisational strateqy:.

We believe in building long-term and transparent relationships with our partners and the communities where we operate,
within the framework of corporate ethics and applicable norms.

Our harmonious
relationship with

L)

our plants is the outcome of our

communities around

community development work, while
working as partners with them on
their journey of growth.

Through our ACC TRUST, we deliver
integrated community development
and capacity building interventions
with particular focus on economic
upliftment of the vulnerable and
marginalised sections amongst them,

These programmes are structured
around three themes - DISHA
(Sustainable Livelihood), Vidya
Utkarsh (Quality Education) and

WASH (Water, Sanitation & Hygiene).

The plans are formulated and
implemented in a participatory
rmanner with the active involvement
of local representatives, NGOs and
our employee volunteers, impacting
almost half a million lives in over
185 villages.

We engage closely with
‘ @' ‘ our value-chain partners
to develop their skills
and benefit mutually by creating
efficient processes and consolidating

our supply chains.
‘ @ centric organisation
ensuring that custamers
get the best value from our products
and services, Effective Customer
Relationship Management (CRM)
systems are in place to manage
customer interactions,

ACC is a customer-

Im I Business Activities I Outputs and Outcomes

«+ Spend on C5R projects: T crore 2045
» Mumber of customer

cormplaints resobved 1,060
- Technical lectures 264
= Skill building sessions held

far mascns / contractars B.292
= Imstant mix proportioning

services provided 24,082
= Vendors on board 9517
« Vendors assassed in

suppy chain 590
= Supphiers assessed for human

rights compliance 590

Recognition

» Marketing and sales

+ Sustainable construction
+ Land acquisition

+ Procurerment

» Green Business Contres

+ Materiality anahysis

+ Meeds assessment

+ Community development
+ Channel management

» Mumber of lives reached due to C5R

activities 4.8 lakh
+ Beneficiaries covered under

health and wellness

improvermnent programmes 3.3 lakh
= C5R projects on health and weliness

improvameant 2069

» Beneficiaries covered under education
initiatives 44,381
+ Beneficiaries covered under
sustainable livellhood Inttiatives 35,383
» Benefickaries covered under WASH
Initiative 1.0 lakh
= Wendors pre-gualified for sustainatle

supply chaln assessment L]
= Active Vendaors
{fromn national market) Ba42

The 'Most Innovative C5R Project’ for Vidya Utkarsh by Government of Odisha

Golden Peacock Award for Co

orate Soclal Responsibility

Indywood CSR Excellence Award 2018in the categary of Best CSR Practjces in Promoting Biodiversity

ACC Lakhern waon the C5R Health Impact Award - Bronze in the Women and Child Health Initiative category

0 ACC LIMITED
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CASE STUDY

Empowering individuals through education

ACC's Vidya Utkarsh programme facilitates quality education for children in
the host community while providing a healthy and safe learning
environment.

Badal Das lives with his family in Dokatta village in Jharkhand where his
father works as a labourer, He studied in a Hindi medium school until Class 5.

ACC Vidya Utkarsh, helped Badal to study in the English medium DAV Pubilic
School, Chaibasa. Soon Badal excelled and began to top his classes due to his
hard work and dedication.

Badal topped his schoolin Class 12 CBSE examination and is now studying
B.5c. (Maths honours) and intends to pursue B.Ed. to become a teacher.

Badal's success story is an example for his community which has now realised
the importance of quality education and has started enrolling children in
nearby schoals despite the strain on their resources,

ANMNUAL REPFORT 2018 e



CASE STUDY

Rebuilding lives in Kerala

in August 2018, torrential rains hit many parts of Kerala,
causing large scale flooding and landslides, leaving
behind unimaginable destruction to homes, schools,
hospitals and civic infrastructure,

ACC salutes the spirit of the people of Kerala and their
resilience, courage and sheer determination with which
they faced one of the most daunting times. We feel
privileged to have participated and assisted the brave
citizens of Kerala as they rebuilt the communities.

ACC immediately stepped up to assist people in the
flood-impacted regions of Kerala. Every employee of
ACC donated one day's salary to the humanitarian effort
and the Board of Directors contributed a sum of ¥ 1 lakh
each. The management created a special corpus in ACC
TRUST to implement special reliel and rehabilitation
programmes in the state.

But going far beyond financial contribution, over 100
ACC employees courageously camped in Kerala to help
with the relief and rehabilitation efforts. ACC Help Vans
transported food, water, emergency lamps and essential
Items to marconed people and relief camps,

A task force of 52 volunteers - cleaners, carpenters,
plumbers, electricians and masons were mobilised from
ACC Madukkarai plant to Kerala. ACC's mines maintenance
van equipped for electric, welding and plumbing work
was also dispatched to the affected areas.

The initiatives also reflect our relations with our Dealers
and Clearing & Forwarding Agents, many of who worked
with us shoulder to shoulder to create a massive relief and
rehabilitation operation in Kerala,

/4
ACC salutes the spirit of the people of
Kerala and their resilience, courage and
sheer determination with which they
faced one of the most daunting times.

/s

0 AEC LIMITED



® Intearatesd Beport Financial Highlights Board & Managerment Reports Financial Statements

| Value created for our stakeholders

The value created by an arganisation over time manifests itself in increases, decreases or transformations of the
capitals caused by the organisation’s business activities and outputs. That value has interrelated aspects - value
created for the organisation itself, which enables financial returns to shareholders and other stakeholders, including
society at large.

, & @ @ \-

Mission and Vision

Governance

Financial

Manufactured B [ Manufactured

Intellectual Business model Intellectual

Human

] Social and
relationship I A relationship

Natural - _ Natural

External environment

Value Creation {preservation, diminution) over time
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Planning for a sustainable future

Sustainability is an integral part of our business strategy. As an industry leader, ACC is committed to ensuring a
sustainable business. Climate, Circular Economy, Water & Mature and People & Communities are the four pillars of
Sustainability, where ACC has made impactful contributions. Working consistently towards achieving the 2020 goals set
under each pillar, ACC has done robust work in 2018 to surpass its targets in each of the focus areas. Our specific CO,
emissions/T of cement reduced by ~38% per tonne of cement vs 1990, which has already surpassed our 2020 target.
Encouraged by this achievement, we are aspiring to reduce our specific CO, emissions by another 2% during 2019. We
have utilised ~11 million tonnes of waste-derived resources, continued our efforts to become biodiversity positive,
reduced specific fresh water withdrawal in cement operation by ~18% and implemented initiatives to provide access to
safe water, sanitation and hygiene, besides touching nearly half a million lives through Corporate Social Responsibility
initiatives across the country. In some parameters, we have surpassed the targets of 5D 2030 Plan and are working on
higher targets.

ACC will generate one-third of its turnover from enhanced sustainability solutions.

People &
Communities

Circular
Economy

0

We will

Héﬁ_:';fj’tr’ﬁnsite fabahtre:r
Reduce Lost Time' Injury
Have Frequency Rate (LTIFR),
<050

We will Wie will We will

_E.edme Total. Injury
Freqmenrq.r Rate (TIFR] by

ave BMP for all quarries

-aurmﬂﬁlpmmmm
As  B0% high rlek active

Have rera fatalities
Reduce LTIFR 020
Faduce TIFR by 50%:
_E&Erne*ﬁtlls mr peapla friom

2030

with high risk identified and
‘assessed

Mate : All targets are for 2030. Baseling year is 2015 unless stated otherwise.

@ ACC LIMITED
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| In Conclusion

Financial Highlights

Board & Managerment Reports Financial Statements

Throughout the 82 years of its existence, ACC has
remained true to its purpose of being a driving force in
creating a confident future for its people, customers,
shareholders and the nation. Accordingly, your Company
relentlessly strives for excellence in all areas of its
operations, achieving high levels of operating
performance and cost competitiveness, enhancing its
productive asset and resource base and moving towards
creating a more sustainable future. The theme of the
Annual Report this year 'Building a Future, Cemented in
Trust' echoes the very ethos of your Company - an
innovative, forward-looking company that owes its
continued success in the marketplace and its solid
reputation to the trust it enjoys and the value it creates
for all its stakeholders.

Innavation is present nat only in our products and
services, but also in the way we execute growth
opportunities. Our close relationships with our customers,
anticipating modern consumer neads, and our
technological know-how helps us deliver new products
and solutions. Developing a future-ready organisation by
building world-class capabilities ensures that our people

and business continue to grow and thrive, Significant
investments are being made to expand production
capacities over the next few years, Commitment to
growth, financial prudence and shareholder returns is
helping us distribute wealth back to shareholders.
Sustained efforts are being made to reduce our usage of
limestone resources, energy and water. Continuous
engagement with the communities where we live and
operate is enhancing lives through interventions in the
domains of health, education and livelihood
developrment, among others,

While ACC has achieved significant milestones in its
sustainability journey, we recognise that there is much
mare to be done, with scale and urgency,

ACC is committed to creating larger societal value by
ensuring that its corporate actions positively impact the
economic, societal and environmental dimensions of
Triple Bottom Line performance, By making every aspect
of our business sustainable, we re-affirm our commitment
to a better world.

Significant investments are being made to
expand production capacities over the next
few years. Commitment to growth, financial
prudence and shareholder returns is helping
us distribute wealth back to shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ®



STANDALONE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars 2018| 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Cement Production (Million Tonne) 2836| 26,56 2318 23.84 2424 2386 2412 2346 2114 2137
Cement Sales (Million Tonne) 2837| 2621 2299 2362 2421 2393 2411 2373 2129 2150
Capacity utilisation 86% 79% 73% 77% 78% 78% 79% 81% 77% 91%

INCOME STATEMENT - Crore

Net Sales 14,4771 12909 10,772 11,433 11,481 10889 11,130 9430 7,710 7,967

Operating EBITDA 2,045 1909 1474 1,537 1507 1,629 2,19 1921 1812 2644

Profit before exceptional item and tax 1,494 1,298 914 937 1,135 1,227 1,787 1,540 1461 2294

Profit before Tax 1,494| 1,298 871 784 1,135 1,227 1,451 1,540 1,461 2,294

Profit after Tax 1,507* 915 647 592 1,168 1,096 1,061 1,325 1,120 1,607

BALANCE SHEET - Crore

Net Worth 10,528 9365 8832 8443 8236 7825 7383 7,192 6469 6,016
Long-term borrowings = - - - - 35 163 51 524 567
Net Fixed Assets (Including CWIP) 7442 7503 7,786 7656 7513 6324 6175 6573 6548 6,113
Cash and cash equivalents 2837| 2527 1,778 1,389 1686 2621 3,137 2932 2388 1876
Current Assets 6,726| 5339 3,726 3,609 3485 3476 3,098 3691 2,751 2458
Current Liabilities 4834| 4923 4110 3893 3900 3,726 3863 3,768 3746 3,114
Capital Employed 10,528| 9365 8832 8443 8236 7860 7546 7,703 6993 6,583

SIGNIFICANT RATIOS

Operating EBITDA margin 14% 15% 14% 13% 13% 15% 20% 20% 24% 33%
Average Return on Capital Employed 15% 14% 11% 11% 14% 16% 24% 22% 22% 39%
Return on Net Worth 10%* 10% 7% 7% 14% 14% 14% 18% 17% 27%
Current Ratio (Times) 1.39 1.08 0.91 0.93 0.89 0.93 0.80 0.98 0.73 0.72
Debt Equity Ratio (Times) - - - - - 0.004 0.02 0.07 0.08 0.09
Price Earning Ratio (Times) 27.84*| 36.08 3839 43,07 2256 1891 2515 1629 1804 10.23
Net worth per Share ]) 561 499 470 450 439 416 393 385 345 320
Dividend per share (%) 14 26 17 17 34 30 30 28  30.50 23
Basic Earnings per Share () 53.57%| 4875 3446 31,51 6223 5836 56,52 7059 59.66  85.60
Cash Earnings per Share R) 85.51%| 8284 6669 7440 9193 8893 10415 9590 80.57 103.83

CASH FLOWS -3 Crore

Net cash provided by / (used in)

Operating activities 1,118 1555 1381 1461 1332 105 1577 1571 1935 2397
Investing activities (368)| (385 (539) (948) (1,437) (858 (311) (258)  (812) (1,505)
Financing activities (441)| (422) (420) (681) (837)  (834) (1,066) (768)  (621)  (455)

“including write back of ¥ 501 Crore relating to tax provision of earlier years.
* before considering tax provisions write back of earlier years.

Financial figures for 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as per Ind AS and remaining figures are as per Previous GAAP.

@ ACC LIMITED
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Notes:

1. Cash and cash equivalents includes Cash and bank balances, investment in short term deposits and mutual
funds

2. Current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings have been included in Borrowings and excluded from current
liabilities

3. Operating EBITDA: Profit from operations before otherincome, finance cost and Depreciation and amortization
expense

4. Average Return on Capital Employed: EBIT/ Average Capital Employed
(Capital Employed: Net worth + Long-term borrowings + Current maturities of Long-Term borrowings)
(EBIT: Profit before exceptional items and tax + interest on Long-term borrowings)

5. Return on Net worth: Profit after Tax / Net Worth

6. Debt Equity Ratio: (Long-term borrowings + Current maturities of Long-Term borrowings) / Shareholders’
funds
7. Price Earning Ratio: Market Price per share / Basic Earnings per share

8. Net worth per share: Net Worth / Number of Equity Shares

9. Current Assets : Total assets - Net fixed assets - Investments - investment in short term deposits and mutual
funds

10.  Current Liabilities: Current liabilities excluding Short-term borrowings + Long-term provisions

STATEMENT OF DIRECT ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED

2018 2017
X Crore X Crore
WEALTH GENERATED
Gross Income* 20,883 18,867
Operating costs (11,249) (11,289)
9,634 7,578
WEALTH DISTRIBUTION
As remuneration including retirement benefits for Employees 881 819
Contribution to Government as taxes and other levies 6,796 5,331
As dividend to Shareholders 282 319
Community investments 20 22
Finance Cost 89 102
Retained with the Business 1,566 985

*Inclusive of sales tax / value added tax (VAT) / goods and services tax (GST)
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

R in Crore)
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Equity 10,528 9,365 8,832 8,443 8,236
Capital employed 10,528 9,365 8,832 8,443 8,236
Average Capital Employed 9,947 9,099 8,637 8,339 8,048
Value added
Net operating profit after taxes* 1,006 915 690 692 1,168
Add: interest on Long-term borrowings, net of tax - - - - 1
Net operating profit after taxes (NOPAT) 1,006 915 690 692 1,169
Cost of Capital 1,344 1,106 973 1,074 1,038
Value added (338) (191) (283) (382) 131
NOPAT / Average Capital employed (%) 10.11 10.06 7.99 8.30 14.53
Weighted Average Cost of Capital (%) 13.51 12.16 11.26 12.88 12.90
Value added / Average Capital Employed (%) (3.40) (2.10) (3.28) (4.58) 1.63
Enterprise Value
Market Capitalisation (As at December, 31) 28,320 33,021 24,995 25,546 26,287
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,837 2,527 1,778 1,389 1,686
EV (Enterprise Value) 25,483 30,494 23,217 24,157 24,601
EV / Year End Capital Employed (Times) 2.42 3.26 2.63 2.86 2.99

* Net Operating profit is excluding exceptional item and tax impact on the same and tax provisions write back

Financial figures for 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as per Ind AS and remaining figures are as per Previous GAAP.
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTY THIRD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ACC LIMITED
(CIN:L26940MH1936PLC002515) shall be held at
Pama Thadani Auditorium, Jai Hind College,
“A"  Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020 on
Friday, March 22, 2019 at 3.00 p.m. to transact the
following items of business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To consider and adopt:

a. the  Audited Standalone  Financial
Statement of the Company for the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2018, together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and the Statutory Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statement of the Company for the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2018, together
with the Report of the Statutory Auditors
thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on equity shares for the
Financial Year ended December 31, 2018.

3. To appoint a Director in place of
Mr Narotam S Sekhsaria, (DIN: 00276351), a Non
Executive/Non Independent Director, who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

4, To appoint a Director in place of
Mr Christof Hassig, (DIN: 01680305), a Non
Executive/Non Independent Director, who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. Re-appointment of Mr Shailesh Haribhakti as
an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the
following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149(10) and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
(the Act), The Companies (Appointment and

@ ACC LIMITED

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the relevant
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended (SEBI Listing Regulations), Mr Shailesh
Haribhakti (DIN:00007347), whose present term
of office as an Independent Director expires on
July 23, 2019, who has given his consent for the
re-appointment and has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria for independence
under Section 149 of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations and is eligible for re-appointment, in
respect of whom Notice has been received from a
Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing
his re-appointment as Director and whose
re-appointment has been recommended by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and by the Board of Directors be and is hereby
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, for a second term of five consecutive
years with effect from July 24, 2019."

Re-appointment of Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta
as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149(10) and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
(the Act), The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the
relevant provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended (SEBI Listing Regulations),
Mr  Sushil Kumar Roongta (DIN:00309302),
whose term of office as Independent Director
expires on July 23, 2019, who has given his
consent for the appointment and has submitted
a declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence under Section 149 of the Act and
the SEBI Listing Regulations and is eligible for
re-appointment, in respect of whom Notice has
been received from a Member of the Company



proposing his re-appointment as Director and
whose re-appointment as Independent Director
has been recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and by the Board of
Directors, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, for a
second term of five consecutive years with effect
from July 24,2019

Re-appointment of Ms Falguni Nayar as an
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 149(10) and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
(the Act), The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the relevant
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (SEBI Listing Regulations), Ms Falguni
Nayar (DIN:00003633), whose present term of
office as an Independent Director expires on
April 23, 2019, who has given her consent for the
re-appointment and has submitted a declaration
that she meets the criteria for independence
under Section 149 of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations and is eligible for re-appointment,
in respect of whom Notice has been received
from a Member under Section 160 of the Act,
proposing her re-appointment as Director and
whose re-appointment has been recommended
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and by the Board of Directors, be and is hereby
re-appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, for a second term of five consecutive
years with effect from April 24, 2019

Appointment of Mr Damodarannair Sundaram
as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED  THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if

@ Board & Management Reports

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
(the Act), The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the relevant
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended (SEBI Listing Regulations)
Mr Damodarannair Sundaram (DIN:00016304),
who has given his consent for appointment
as an Independent Director of the Company
and has also submitted a declaration that he
meets the criteria of independence under
Section 149(6) of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and who is eligible for appointment,
in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a Member under
Section 160 of the Act, signifying the intention to
propose his candidature for the office of Director,
and whose appointment has been recommended
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and by the Board of Directors for consideration
by the Members be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company, to hold
office for a term of five consecutive years with
effect from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting or adjournment, if any, thereof”

Appointment of Mr Vinayak Chatterjee as an
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT  pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (the Act),
The Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), the relevant provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
(SEBI Listing Regulations), Mr Vinayak Chatterjee
(DIN:00008933), who has given his consent for
appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company and has also submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence under
Section 149(6) of the Act and the SEBI Listing
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10.

Regulations, and who is eligible for appointment,
in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a Member under
Section 160 of the Act, signifying the intention to
propose his candidature for the office of Director,
and whose appointment has been recommended
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and by the Board of Directors for consideration
by the Members be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company, to hold
office for a term of five consecutive years with
effect from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting or adjournment, if any, thereof

Appointment of Mr Sunil Mehta as an

Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by
the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 (the Act),
The Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), the relevant provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
(SEBI Listing Regulations) Mr Sunil Mehta
(DIN:00065343), who has given his consent for
appointment as an Independent Director of the
Company and has also submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence under
Section 149(6) of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and who is eligible for appointment,
in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a Member under
Section 160 of the Act, signifying the intention to
propose his candidature for the office of Director,
and whose appointment has been recommended
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and by the Board of Directors for consideration
by the Members be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company, to hold
office for a term of five consecutive years with
effect from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting or adjournment, if any, thereof!”
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11.

Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3)
and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force), the remuneration
payable to M/s D C Dave & Co., Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 000611), who have been
appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records
of the Company for the financial year ending
December 31, 2019, on a remuneration of
12.00 lakhs (Rupees Twelve Lakhs only) plus
taxes as applicable and re-imbursement of out-
of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with
the audit, be and is hereby ratified”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps
as may be considered necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Notes:

a.

The Company'’s Statutory Auditors,
M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period
of five consecutive years at the Annual General
Meeting of the Members held on March 29, 2017
on a remuneration to be determined by the Board
of Directors. Their appointment was subject to
ratification by the Members at every subsequent
Annual General Meeting held after the AGM held
on March 29, 2017.

Pursuant to the amendments made to
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from
May 7, 2018, the requirement of seeking
ratification of the Members for the appointment
of the Statutory Auditors has been withdrawn
from the Statute.

In view of the above, ratification of the Members
for continuance of their appointment at this
Annual General Meeting is not being sought. The
Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to
the effect that they are eligible to continue with



their appointment and that they have not been
disqualified in any manner from continuing as
Statutory Auditors. The remuneration payable to
the Statutory Auditors shall be determined by the
Board of Directors based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee.

The respective Explanatory Statement, pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of the business under Iltem Nos.5 to 11 of
the accompanying Notice is annexed hereto.

A statement giving additional details of the
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment
as set out at Item Nos. 5 to 10 is annexed herewith
as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD
OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

In order that the appointment of a proxy is
effective, the instrument appointing a proxy
must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not later than forty-eight hours
before the commencement of the Meeting i.e. by
3.00 p.m. on March 20, 2019.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members
not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A Member holding more than ten percent
of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as a
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other Member.

Corporate Members intending to send their
authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company,
a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution
together with the specimen signature(s) of their
representative(s) who are authorized to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.
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Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives
are requested to bring to the Meeting, the
attendance slips enclosed herewith duly
completed and signed mentioning therein details
of their DPID and Client ID/Folio No.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the
joint holder who is highest in the order of names
will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the
accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory
Statements are open for inspection by the
Members at the Company’s Registered Office on
all working days, during the office hours except
Saturdays, Sundays and all public holidays up to
the date of the Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books of the Company shall remain closed
from Thursday, March 7, 2019 to Tuesday,
March 12, 2019, both days inclusive, for payment
of dividend, if declared, at the Meeting.

If a dividend is declared at the Annual General
Meeting, the payment thereof shall be made to
those Members of the Company whose names
appearinthe Register of Members of the Company
on Tuesday, March 12, 2019. The dividend in
respect of shares held in dematerialized form
in the Depository System will be paid to the
beneficial owners of shares as on Wednesday,
March 6, 2019, as per the list provided by the
Depositories for this purpose. The dividend will
be payable on and from Thursday, March 28, 2019.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in
the securities market. Members holding shares
in electronic form are, accordingly, requested to
submit their PAN to the Depository Participants
with whom they maintain their demat accounts.
Members holding shares in physical form should
submit their PAN to the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and
125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has transferred on due dates, the unclaimed
final dividend for the financial year ended
December 31, 2010 and interim dividend for the
financial year ended December 31, 2011, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
established by the Central Government.
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Further, in terms of Section 124(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor
Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 and amendments thereto and
notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs from time to time, the Company has
transferred during the year, the required number
of shares in respect of which dividends have
remained unclaimed for a period of seven
consecutive years or more to the IEPF Account.

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education
and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has
placed on its website www.acclimited.com, the
information on dividends which remain with the
Company as unclaimed as on June 13, 2018, i.e.
the date of the last Annual General Meeting. The
information is also available on the website of the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (www.mca.gov.in).

Members holding shares in their single names are
advised to make a nomination in respect of their
shareholding in the Company. Members holding
sharesin physical form should file their nomination
with the Company whilst those Members holding
sharesin demat mode should file their nomination
with their Depository Participant. The nomination
form can be downloaded from the Company’s
website www.acclimited.com.

SEBI, vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/
GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018, amended
Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations
pursuant to which after December 5, 2018 transfer
of securities could not be processed unless the
securities are held in the dematerialized form
with a depository. The said deadline has been
extended by SEBI to March 31, 2019.

Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to dematerialize their holdings at the
earliest as it will not be possible to transfer shares
held in physical mode as per extension of the
deadline announced by SEBI.

General Information on voting through electronic
means/Ballot:

In compliance with the provisions of Section
108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
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Vi.

Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time and sub clauses (1) & (2) of
Clause 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended, the Company is offering e-voting
facilities to its Members in respect of the business
to be transacted at the 83 Annual General
Meeting. The Company has engaged the services
of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
as the authorized agency to provide the e-voting
facility. It is clarified that it is not mandatory for
a Member to vote using remote e-voting facility.
In order to facilitate those Members, who do
not wish to use the remote e-voting facility, the
Company is enclosing a Ballot Form. Resolutions
passed by Members through remote e-voting or
ballot forms are deemed to have been passed as
if they have been passed at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company.

The facility for e-voting shall also be made
available at the venue of the AGM for those
Members who have not cast their votes earlier.

Members who have cast their votes by remote
e-voting or by Ballot Form prior to the AGM may
also attend the Meeting but they shall not be
entitled to cast their votes again.

M/s Pramod S Shah, Managing Partner or in his
absence Mr Saurabh Shah, Corporate Advisor
of M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the
Scrutinizer for overseeing the physical voting and
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

The Scrutinizer shall submit his report to
the Chairman. The results declared along
with the report of the Scrutinizer will be
placed on the website of the Company
www.acclimited.com and on the website of
NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com within two days of
passing the resolutions at the AGM. The results
will also be uploaded on the BSE Listing Portal
and on the NSE-NEAPS Portal.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of
votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting
i.e. March 22, 2019.



Procedure for e-Voting as prescribed by NSDL:

For Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company/Depositories:

Open the e-mail received from NSDL and follow
instructions mentioned therein to cast your vote.

For Members whose e-mail addresses are not
registered with the Company/Depositories:

Members will receive a Ballot Form along with the
Annual Report. They have two options:

i. To optforvoting by Physical Ballot: Those Members
who choose to cast their votes by a physical ballot
or who do not have access to e-Voting facility,
should fill in the Ballot Form and post the same
to the Company at the address mentioned in the
enclosed Business Reply Envelope.

OR

ii. To opt for remote e-voting: Follow the steps
mentioned hereinbelow, to cast your votes.

How to vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting
system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

system at

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting
system.

Step 1: How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open
web  browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under “Shareholders” section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL
e-services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast
your vote electronically.
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4. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding | Your User ID
shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or

Physical

For Members who
hold shares in demat
account with NSDL

8 character DPID followed by 8
Digit Client ID

For example if your DPID
is IN300*** and Client ID is
12***¥%* then your user ID is

For Members who

hold shares in demat For example if your Beneficiary
accountwithCDSL | |

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For Members
holding shares in
Physical Form

EVEN Number followed by
Folio Number registered with
the Company

For example, if folio number
is A0O00O5 and EVEN is 110406
then user ID is 110406A00005

5. Your password details are given below:

a. If you are already registered for e-voting,
then you can use your existing password to
log-in and cast your vote.

b.  If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for
the first time, you will need to retrieve the
“initial password”which was communicated
to you. Once you retrieve your “initial
password” you need to enter the “initial
password” and the system will force you to
change your password.

C. How to retrieve your “initial password"?

i If your email ID is registered in your demat
account or with the Company, your “initial
password”is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email
and open the attachment i.e. a.pdf file.
Open the .pdf file. The password to open
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The .pdf file contains your
“User ID"and your “initial password”.
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ii. If your email ID is not registered, your “initial
password”is communicated to you through
post at your registered address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received
the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”
(if you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL), option is
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b.  Click on “Physical User Reset Password?”
(If you are holding shares in physical
mode), option is available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

C If you are still unable to get the password
by the aforesaid two options, you can send
arequest at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning
your demat account number/folio number,
PAN, name and registered address.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to
“Terms and conditions” be selecting on the check
box.

Now, you will have to click on“Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page
of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL
e-Voting system?

1.

After successful log-in at step 1, you will be able to
see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.
Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After clicking on Active voting Cycles, you will be
able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in
active status.

Select “EVEN” of the Company.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page
opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options
i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.
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You can also take the printout of the votes cast
by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals, HUF, NRI etc) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to

pss.scrutinizer@acclimited.com with a copy

marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login
to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer to the
Frequently  Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in

Members may also send their queries relating to
e-Voting to Ms Pallavi Mhatre of NSDL, at E-mail
id: evoting@nsdl.co.in or call Toll free No.: 1800-
222-990/Tel. No.: 022-2499 4545,

Additional Information:

1.

Members are requested to update their mobile
numbers and email IDs in the user profile details
of the folio, which may be used by the Company
for sending future communication(s) to them.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company
and becomes a Member of the Company after
despatch of the Notice, holds shares as of the
cut-off date i.e. March 15, 2019, may obtain the
login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if the Member is
already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting,



then he/she can use his/her existing User-ID and
password for casting the vote.

Other Instructions

The voting rights of Members shall be in
proportion to their shares in the paid up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off
date i.e. March 15, 2019.

Only those Members whose names are recorded
in the Register of Members of the Company or
in the register of Beneficial Owners maintained
by the Depositories as on the cut-off date shall
be entitled to vote. If a person was a Member on
the dates of the Book Closure (Thursday, March
7, 2019 to Tuesday, March 12, 2019, both days
inclusive) but has ceased to be a Member on the
cut-off date i.e. Friday, March 15, 2019, he/she will
not be entitled to vote. Such person should treat
this Notice for information purposes only.

The e-voting period commences on Monday,
March 18, 2019 (9.00 a.m. IST) and ends on
Thursday, March 21,2019 (5.00 p.m.IST). During this
period, Members of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form as
on Friday, March 15, 2019, may cast their votes by
remote e-Voting. The remote e-Voting module will
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

Members who opt to cast their votes by physical
ballot may send the duly completed Ballot
Form (enclosed with the Annual Report) to the
Scrutinizer in the enclosed postage pre-paid self
addressed envelope. Ballot Forms deposited in
person or sent by post or courier at the expense
of the Member will also be accepted.

Members have the option to request for duplicate
copy of the Ballot Form by sending an e-mail to
sujata.chitre@acclimited.com by mentioning
their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID No.
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Members may kindly note that the duly
completed Ballot Forms should reach
the Scrutinizer not later than Sunday,
March 17,2019 (5.00 p.m. IST).

Ballot Forms received after this date will be
treated as invalid.

V. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e.

either through e-Voting or by Ballot. If a Member
casts vote by both modes, then voting done
through e-Voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be
treated as invalid.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not
exceeding two working days from the conclusion
of the e-Voting period, unblock the votes in
the presence of at least two witnesses not in
the employment of the Company and make a
Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if
any, forthwith to the Chairman or such person
authorized by him in this behalf.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For ACC Limited

Ramaswami Kalidas

Company Secretary & Head Compliance
FCS No.: F-2440

Mumbai
February 5,2019

Registered Office:
Cement House

121, Maharshi Karve Road
Mumbai 400 020
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS OF SPECIAL BUSINESS

The following Explanatory Statement, as required
under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act),
sets out all the material facts relating to the business
proposed to be transacted under Item Nos. 5 to 11 of
the accompanying Notice dated February 5, 2019.

Item Nos. 5, 6 and 7: As per the provisions of Sections
149, 152 & Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the relevant Rules thereunder as amended,
the Company had appointed Mr Shailesh Haribhakti,
Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta and Ms Falguni Nayar as
Independent Directors as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on September 10, 2014 for a term of
five consecutive years. Both Mr Haribhakti's and
Mr  Sushil Kumar Roongta’s appointments were
effective from July 24, 2014. Ms Falguni Nayar's
appointment was effective from April 24, 2014.

As the above named Independent Directors shall
be completing their first term of appointment upon
completion of five years from the respective dates of
their appointment during the current year, they are
eligible for re-appointment for another term of five
consecutive years subject to approval of the Members
by Special Resolution. All the above named persons
have consented to their re-appointment and confirmed
that they do not suffer from any disqualifications
which stand in the way of their re-appointment as
Independent Directors.

The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was conducted by the entire Board of
Directors (excluding the Director being evaluated)
on the basis of a structured questionnaire which was
prepared after taking into consideration inputs received
from the Directors covering various aspects of the
Board'’s functioning viz. adequacy of the composition of
the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution
and performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance.

Accordingly, based on the performance evaluation
of the Independent Directors, the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Company at their Meetings held on
February 4,2019 and February 5, 2019, respectively have
recommended the re-appointment of the aforesaid
persons as Independent Directors for a second term of
five consecutive years commencing from the dates on
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which their present appointments with the Company
expire. During their tenure of appointment, they shall
not be liable to retire by rotation as provided under
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received declarations from all the
Independent Directors confirming that they meet
the criteria of independence as prescribed under
sub-section 6 of Section 149 of the Act and as per SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. (SEBI Listing Regulations) In the
opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for
re-appointment as Independent Directors and they are
independent of the Management.

The brief profile of all the Directors is mentioned under
“Profile of Directors” forming part of this Notice and
details of the remuneration paid/payable to them are as
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of the annual report for the year 2018.

The Company has also received notices from a
Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) proposing their re-appointment as
Directors.

A copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of the
Independent Directors setting out the terms and
conditions of their re-appointment is available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of
the Company during the office hours on all working
days other than on Saturdays and Sundays till the date
of the Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends the Resolutions as set out in ltem
Nos. 5,6 and 7 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives other than the concerned
Independent Directors are in anyway deemed to be
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the Resolutions as set out in Item Nos. 5, 6 and 7 of the
Notice.

Item Nos. 8, 9 and 10: Mr Farrokh Kavarana and
Mr Ashwin Dani were appointed as Independent
Directors of the Company from July 24, 2014, while
Mr Arunkumar Gandhi was appointed with effect
from April 24, 2014 for a period of five consecutive
years commencing from the respective dates of their
appointment.



The Company’s Succession Policy as applicable to the
Directors provides that a person shall not be eligible
for appointment as a Director upon reaching the age of
seventy five years.

The above named Directors have completed/will
complete seventy five years before the date of the
Annual General Meeting and have expressed their
inability to continue as Directors from the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting.

In view of the above, it is proposed to appoint
Mr Damodarannair Sundaram, Mr Vinayak Chatterjee
and Mr Sunil Mehta as Independent Directors with
effect from the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting for a period of five consecutive years subject
to their appointment being approved by the Members.

The brief profile of all the Directors is mentioned under
“Profile of Directors” forming part of this Notice.

Mr Damodarannair Sundaram, Mr Vinayak Chatterjee
and Mr Sunil Mehta have given their consent for the
appointment as Independent Directors as well as their
confirmation with regard to their independent status.
All the above named persons have confirmed that they
are not in any way disqualified from being appointed
as Directors. The Company has received notices from
a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing
their candidature for appointment as Directors. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as also
the Board of Directors have recommended their
appointment. In the opinion of the Board, the persons
proposed to be appointed fulfil the conditions specified
in the Act and in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are
independent of the Management.

During their tenure of appointment, they shall not
be liable to retire by rotation as provided under
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the draft letter of appointment of Independent
Directors setting out the terms and conditions of
appointment is available for inspection by the Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during office
hours on all working days other than on Saturdays and
Sundays till the date of the Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends the Resolutions as set out in
Item Nos. 8, 9 and 10 of the Notice for approval of the
Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives other than the persons
proposed to be appointed are in anyway deemed to be
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concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the
Resolutions as set out in Item Nos. 8, 9 and 10 of the
Notice.

Item No. 11: The Company is required to have
its costs records audited by a Cost Accountant in
practice. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the
Company on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has approved the appointment of Messrs.
D C Dave & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration
Number 000611), as Cost Auditors of the Company
for conducting the audit of the cost records of
the Company, for the Financial Year ending
December 31, 2019 at a remuneration of ¥12.00 lakhs
plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out-
of-pocket expenses incurred by the Cost Auditors in
connection with the aforesaid audit.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members
of the Company are required to ratify the remuneration
proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditors.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought
for passing the Ordinary Resolution as set out at
Iltem No. 11 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

The Board of Directors commends the Ordinary
Resolution set out at Item No.11 of the accompanying
Notice for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors, Key Management Personnel of the
Company and their relatives, are in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For ACC Limited

Ramaswami Kalidas

Company Secretary & Head Compliance
FCS No.: F-2440

Mumbai
February 5,2019

Registered Office:
Cement House

121, Maharshi Karve Road
Mumbai 400 020
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Profile of Directors

Details of Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 under Secretarial Standard-2.

Industry and one of the most respected business
personalities in India. He has introduced new
standards in management, marketing, efficiency
and corporate social responsibility to an industry
which he has helped transform.

Afirstgenerationindustrialist, Mr Sekhsaria obtained
his Bachelors Degree in Chemical Engineering with
honours and distinction from the University of
Bombay.

He is the Principal Founder-Promoter and current
Chairman of Ambuja Cements Limited.

Mr Sekhsaria was invited to join the ACC Board
in 1999 and was appointed Deputy Chairman in
January, 2000. He is the Chairman of the Company
since the year 2006.

Mr Sekhsaria built Ambuja Cements Limited, setting
up benchmarks for the Indian Cement Industry
which had not been attained before. His acumen
as an entrepreneur and technocrat transformed
the company into the most efficient and profitable
cement company in the country and redefined
industry practices by changing the perception of
cement from a commodity to a branded product.

Mr Sekhsaria has championed the cause of
community development by establishing the
Ambuja Cement Foundation and transformed it into
a model of excellence in social responsibility.

Name of the Mr Narotam S Sekhsaria Mr Christof Hassig

Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Non Independent Director) Non Independent Director)

Director 00276351 01680305

Identification

Number

Date of Birth 21.09.1949 25.04.1958

Nationality Indian Swiss

Qualification Bachelor of Chemical Engineering from Bombay Masters in Banking, Advanced
University Management Programme from

Harvard Business School

Date of 27.12.1999 09.12.2015

Appointment on

Board

Shareholding in NIL NIL

ACC

Brief Profile of the | Mr Sekhsaria is a doyen of the Indian Cement | Mr Christof Hassig heads the

Directors

Corporate Strategy and Mergers
&  Acquisitions  functions in
LafargeHolcim, reporting directly to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Before joining the former Holcim
Limited in 1999, Mr Hassig worked
for twenty five years at UBS in
different functions, including as
Global Relationship Manager and
Investment Banker for multinational
corporates in Switzerland and other
countries.

Within the former Holcim Limited, he
was reporting directly to the Chief
Financial Officer with many direct
links to all other Executive Directors
including Chief Executive Officer.

For the past fifteen years, he has
built and led the Department of
Corporate Financing and Treasury.
This function spans across all the
geographic regions and includes
matrix  organizations with the
finance department of the operating
companies in various countries.

In December 2012, he took over
additional responsibilities as head
of the newly created Mergers &
Acquisitions function at Group level.
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Name of the Mr Narotam S Sekhsaria Mr Christof Hassig
Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Non Independent Director) Non Independent Director)

With his considerable wealth of experience, Mr | In March 2013, the Group’s Insurance
Sekhsaria brings immense value to the ACC Board. | Department  was  moved and
integrated into the Corporate Finance

Under his leadership, ACC has achieved significant
& Treasury Department.

improvements in the areas of project management,
logistics and in overall cost-competitiveness. The | He started his career with a three

impact of his guidance is tangible from the high | year apprenticeship in Banking
followed by a Masters in Banking and
Advanced Management Programme
at Harvard Business School in 2006.

growth trajectory ACC has experienced since 1999.

Expertise in Doyen of the Cement Industry, he has been Corporate Finance & Treasury;
specific functional | responsible for transforming the Cement Mergers & Acquisitions
areas Industry by setting benchmarks in the areas

of Management, Marketing & Logistics and
manufacturing efficiencies and sustainable
development

List of Ambuja Cements Limited; Ambuja Cements Limited
Directorships JM Financial Asset Reconstruction Company

held in other Limited

companies

(excluding

foreign, private
and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships/ NIL NIL

Chairmanships
of Audit and
Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committees
across Public
companies
including ACC
Limited

Details of Board/
Committee
Meetings Please refer to Corporate Governance Report
attended by the
directors during
the year
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Name of the

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti

Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta

ACC

Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Independent Director) Independent Director)

Director 00007347 00309302

Identification

Number

Date of Birth 12.03.1956 09.05.1950

Nationality Indian Indian

Qualification FCA; FICWA; CFP; CFE; CIA Bachelor of Engineering (Hons.) —
(Electrical) from Birla Institute of
Technology & Science (BITS), Pilani;
Post Graduate Diploma in Business
Management; International Trade.
Fellow-All India Management
Association (AIMA)

Date of 17.02.2006 03.02.2011

Appointment on

Board

Shareholding in NIL NIL

Brief Profile of the
Directors

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti is a career Chartered Accountant,
with over four decades of experience in developing and
leading one of India’s most respected and diversified
Chartered Accounting firms - Haribhakti & Co.LLP, Chartered
Accountants. He stepped away from the Company’s
management on attaining the age of 62 in 2018. He is
now pursuing the establishment of high quality auditing
globally through a “not for profit”initiative surrounding his
recently authored book - “Audit Renaissance”.

To provide universal dispersion of his knowledge and
experience in corporate governance, he has teamed
up with senior and highly respected professionals to
manage Intuit Consulting Pvt. Ltd. which will provide
digitally-enabled Governance and Compliance support to
corporations globally.

Apart from the directorships mentioned herein below Mr
Haribhakti is on the Board of Gaja Capital Group and also
serves on Advisory Boards of Doha Bank and Excellence
Enablers Private Limited.

To serve the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME)
community he has set up a verification, diligence and
shared services firm known as New Haribhakti Business
Services Group through a process of interactivity over the
internet and digitization.

This group will serve to support safe lending and timely
recovery of finances in the MSME sector.

To give wings to equity investing in a “New India” he
has established along with like minded professionals
Mentorcap Management Pvt. Ltd. to invest in a new age car
washing enterprise, alkaline water and solar refrigeration
through the supply chain.

Mr Haribhakti actively promotes “shared value” creation
and a green environment through his own enterprise
Planet People & Profit Consulting Private Limited and his
leadership roles as Chairman of United Way and Chairman/
Member of the CSR Committees of some of the Boards that

Mr Roongta has a wide and
varied experience in public sector
undertakings. He is presently
Non-Executive Chairman of Bharat
Aluminium  Company  Limited
(BALCO) and Talwandi Sobo Power
Limited (TSPL). Earlier, during his
tenure as Chairman of SAIL from
August 2006 to May 2010, the
ranking of SAIL among ‘World
Class Steel Makers’" moved up
to the second position from the
seventeenth position, as per World
Steel Dynamics, USA.

Mr Roongta headed a Panel of
Experts on the Reforms in the
Central PSEs, constituted by
the Planning Commission. He
has also been a Member of the
Committee formed by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, to formulate
a Policy Document on Corporate
Governance.

He is associated with several
academic institutions, and has
been the Chairman, Board of
Governors, T Bhubaneswar
(2012-2015) and is presently
on the Board of Management
of JK. Lakshmipat University.

He is also associated with apex
Chambers of Commerce, being
a member on National Executive
Committee of Federation of
Indian Chambers of Commerce
and Industry (FICCI), Chairman of

@ ACC LIMITED
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Name of the Mr Shailesh Haribhakti Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta
Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Independent Director) Independent Director)
he serves on. He has successfully established the concept | the National Expert Committee
of “Innovate to Zero” which is in alignment with the idea | on Minerals & Metals of Indian
of making the impact of every intervention focused, | Chambers of Commerce (ICC) and
widespread, co-operative and far-reaching. co-chairs Industry Committee of
Mr Haribhakti has a passion for teaching, writing and public PHD Chamber of Commerce and
speaking. He was associated with lIM-Ahmedabad as Industry.
visiting faculty from 1981-83. He has led BMA, lIA (Mumbai), | Mr Roongta is a recipient of several
ICAI (WIRC), IMC, FPSB and Rotary Club of Bombay over | awards and accolades including
the last several decades. For two years he served on the | SCOPE Award for excellence and
Standards Advisory Council of the IASB in London and was | for outstanding contribution to
Chairman of NPS (National Pension Scheme) Trust from | the Public Sector Management
2015-2017. He frequently contributes his views on public | - Individual Category and IIM -
forums, to the press and to the electronic media. JRD Tata award for Excellence
in  Corporate Leadership in
Metallurgical Industries - 2016.
Expertise in Auditing, Tax and Risk Advisory Services General Management, and

specific functional
areas

expert knowledge in Mines and
Metallurgy Industries

List of
Directorships held
in other companies
(excluding foreign,
private and Section
8 Companies)

Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited;

L&T Finance Holdings Limited;

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited;

Blue Star Limited;

Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited;
Ambuja Cements Limited;

NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited;
L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited;

Bennett Coleman Company Limited

Jubilant Industries Limited;
Talwandi Sabo Power Limited;
Bharat Aluminium Company
Limited;

Jubilant Agri and Consumer
Products Ltd.;

Hero Steels Limited;

Great Eastern Energy Corpn. Ltd,;
Jubilant Life Sciences Ltd.;

CL Educate Limited
Memberships/ Audit Committee Audit Committee
Chairmanships Chairman: Member:
of Audit and Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited; ACC Limited;
Stakeholders’ L&T Finance Holdings Limited; Jubilant Industries Limited;
Relationship Blue Star Limited; Jubilant Agri & Consumer Products

Committees across
Public companies
including ACC
Limited

Bennett & Coleman & Company Ltd;
NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Ltd.

Member:

Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited;
Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited;

L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited;

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Member:

ACC Limited;

Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited;

Limited;

Great Eastern Energy Corporation
Limited;

Hero Steels Limited

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Chairman:

Jubilant industries Limited

Details of Board/
Committee
Meetings attended
by the directors
during the year
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Name of the

Ms Falguni Nayar

Mr Damodarannair Sundaram

ACC

Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Independent Director) Independent Director)

Director 00003633 00016304

Identification

Number

Date of Birth 19.02.1963 16.04.1953

Nationality Indian Indian

Qualification Graduate from Sydenham College | Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India,
of Commerce & Economics and | Post Graduate in Management Studies (MMS), Chennai,
Post Graduate from Indian Institute | Advanced Management Programme (AMP), from
of Management, Ahmedabad Harvard Business School.

Date of 24.04.2014 Proposed Appointment as Independent Director is for a

Appointment on period of five consecutive years commencing from the

Board conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company

Shareholding in NIL NIL

Brief Profile of the
Directors

Ms Nayar has a rich experience of
over two and half decades. She
started her career as a Manager
and Consultant at A F Ferguson
& Company. In 1993, she joined
Kotak Mahindra Group to lead
the M&A and Project Advisory
Initiatives. She has held senior
positions in various capacities and
was the Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of Kotak
Investment Bank from 2006 to
2012. Ms Nayar is the founder and
Chief Executive Officer of Nykaa.
com, a beauty retail platform which
she launched in 2012.

Ms Nayar was recognized as a Top
Woman in Business by Business
Today in 2011 and 2017. She has
also received the FICCI Ladies
Organization Award forTop Woman
Achiever in the field of banking in
2008. In 2017 Ms Nayar has won
the “Woman Ahead” award at The
Economic Times Start-Up Awards
2017.

His experience spans corporate finance, business
performance,monitoring operations, governance, mergers
and acquisitions, talent/people management and strategy.

Mr Sundaram joined Hindustan Unilever Limited (HUL)
as a Management Trainee in 1975 and served in various
capacities as Corporate Accountant, Commercial Manager
and Treasurer till 1990 when he was seconded to Unilever,
London as Commercial Officer for Africa and Middle East
Group between 1990 and 1993.

He was the Commercial Manager of TOMCO integration
team in 1993-94.

He was Chief Financial Officer of Brooke Bond Lipton from
1994-1996 and served in Unilever, London between 1996
to 1999 as Senior Vice-President (Finance, IT and Strategy)
for South Asia and Middle East. In April, 1999, he returned
to HUL as Finance and IT Director. He was elevated as Vice-
Chairman of HUL in April 2008.

Mr Sundaram has a rich experience with HUL of over three
decades. He was twice awarded the prestigious “CFO of the
Year for FMCG Sector” by CNBC TV 18 in the years 2006 and
2008.

He is currently the Vice Chairman and Managing Director
of TVS Capital Funds Limited in partnership with the TVS
Family in a growth capital Private Equity Fund (PE Fund) .
Mr Sundaram brings with him deep financial expertise and
significant understanding of consumer related businesses.

Expertise
in specific
functional areas

Financial services and e-marketing

Has vast expertise in
performance, mergers &
management and strategy

corporate finance, business
acquisitions, talent/people

@ ACC LIMITED
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Name of the Ms Falguni Nayar Mr Damodarannair Sundaram
Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Independent Director) Independent Director)
List of Dabur India Limited; Infosys Limited;
Directorships Tata Motors Limited; GlaxoSmith Kline Pharmaceuticals Limited;
held in other Endurance Technologies Limited; Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited;
companies Tata Technologies Limited; TVS Electronics Limited;
(excluding Kotak Securities Limited SBI General Insurance Company Limited

foreign, private
and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships/

Chairmanships
of Audit and
Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committees
across Public
companies
including ACC
Limited

Audit Committee
Chairman:

Tata Technologies Limited

Member:

Kotak Securities Limited;
Tata Motors Limited

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Member:
Tata Motors Limited

Audit Committee
Chairman:

Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited;
GlaxoSmith Kline Pharmaceuticals Limited;
Infosys Limited

Member:

TVS Electronics Limited;
SBI General Insurance Company Limited

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Chairman:

TVS Electronics Limited

Member:

Crompton Greaves Consumer Electricals Limited

Details of Board/
Committee
Meetings
attended by the
directors during
the year

Please refer to Corporate
Governance Report

Not Applicable

There are no inter-se relationship between the Board Members
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Appointment on
Board

Independent Director is for a period
of five consecutive years commencing
from the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company

Name of the Mr Vinayak Chatterjee Mr Sunil Mehta
Director (Non Executive/ (Non Executive/
Independent Director) Independent Director)
Director 00008933 00065343
Identification
Number
Date of Birth 30.08.1959 22.08.1957
Nationality Indian Indian
Qualification Graduate in Economics (Hons.) from Commerce Graduate from Shri Ram College of
Delhi University; Commerce, Delhi University.
MBA from the Indian Institute of Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Management, Ahmedabad Accountants of India;
Alumni of the Wharton School of Management,
University of Pennsylvania, USA
Date of Proposed Appointment as | Proposed Appointment as Independent Director is for

a period of five consecutive years commencing from
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company

Shareholding in
ACC

NIL

NIL

Brief Profile of the
Directors

He co-founded Feedback Infra in 1990.

FeedbackInfraisIndia’sleading provider
of professional and technical services
in the infrastructure sector. These
services include Advisory, Planning &
Engineering, Project Management and
Operations & Maintenance.

Feedback Infra has ~9000 professionals,
predominantly engineers and
MBAs from India’s Top schools. It is
headquartered in Gurgaon, National
Capital Region of Delhiand has Regional
Offices in  Mumbai, Bhubaneswar,
Bangalore, Chandigarh, Hyderabad and
Ahmedabad and overseas offices in
Dubai, Jakarta, Nigeria and Kathmandu.

Mr Chatterjee has often been called
upon to play a strategic advisory role
to leading domestic and international
corporates, the Government of
India, various Ministries dealing with
infrastructure, as well as multilateral
and bilateral institutions in the
areas of infrastructure planning and
implementation. He is one of the
leading proponents of the Public-
Private Partnership (PPP) model for
developing India’s infrastructure.

Mr Sunil Mehta has over three and a half decades of
proven leadership experience in banking, financial
services, insurance and investments with Citibank and
AlG. In 2013, he left AIG where he was the Country Head
& CEO for AlG India since 2000. Subsequently, he started
SPM Capital Advisers Pvt. Ltd. Mr Mehta is the Chairman
and Managing Director of SPM Capital Advisers Pvt. Ltd.,
aleading business advisory and consulting firm in India.

As Country Head & CEO for AIG in India, Mr Mehta
was responsible for all AIG businesses in India
covering Insurance, Financial Services, Real Estate
and Investments amongst other businesses. He set
up AlG’s insurance JVs with Tatas and was responsible
for expanding AIG's presence across ten businesses in
India which included Life & Non-Life Insurance, Private
Equity, Asset Management, Real Estate, Home Finance,
Consumer Finance, Software Development, Mortgage
Guaranty and Aircraft Leasing. He was on the Board of
all AIG Companies in India and also on the Board of IDFC
Ltd. for several years.

Prior to joining AIG, Mr Mehta worked with Citibank for
over 18 years where he held various senior positions
covering operations, sales & risk process re-engineering,
risk management, public sector business and corporate
banking. His last assignment was Corporate Bank Head
for Citibank India and Senior Credit Officer.

Mr Mehta was an Independent Director on the Board
of State Bank of India till March 2017. He is presently
Chairman of Punjab National Bank and Board Member
of IL&FS Investment Managers Limited. In addition, he is
Senior Advisor to notable international/domestic firms
amongst other responsibilities.

e ACC LIMITED
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Name of the
Director

Mr Vinayak Chatterjee
(Non Executive/
Independent Director)

Mr Sunil Mehta
(Non Executive/
Independent Director)

He is currently the Chairman of the
Confederation of Indian Industry’s (Cll)
“National Council on Economic Affairs”
and has chaired various Infrastructure
and related Committees at the national
level of Cll since 2001.

In 1998, the World Economic Forum
at Davos selected him as one of the
100 Global Leaders of Tomorrow
and in 2011the Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad conferred
on him the “Distinguished Alumnus
Award".

He is a well-read columnist and writes
a monthly column on infrastructure for
Business Standard called “INFRATALK".
He has authored a book titled “Getting it
Right - India’s Unfolding Infrastructure
Agenda” published in 2011.

Mr Mehta was recently asked to Chair the Committee of
Resolution of Stressed Assets by the Honorable Finance
Minister. Other Members of the Committee include the
Chairman of SBI, Managing Director of BOB and Deputy
Managing Director of SBI. The Committee presented the
Sashakt Report to the Finance Minister on July 2, 2018
which is currently under implementation.

Mr Mehta is closely engaged with various Think Tanks
and Chambers of Commerce. He is the founding
Board Member of the Asia Society India Centre and a
Past Chairman of American Chamber of Commerce
(AMCHAM India). He is currently on the India Advisory
Board of US India Strategic Partnership Forum (USISPF).

Mr Mehta has strong interests in building sustainable
communities and is the immediate Past Chairman of
Action for Ability Development and Inclusion (formerly
The Spastics Society of North India). He is actively
engaged with The United Way and on the Boards
of United Way India and Mumbai. He was also the
Chairman of both these organizations and also member
of the Global Transition Board of United Way Worldwide.

Expertise
in specific
functional areas

Expertise in infrastructure planning
and implementation. One of the
leading proponents of Public-Private
Partnerships model for developing
India’s infrastructure.

Rich and varied experience of over three decades in
banking, financial services, insurance & investments

List of
Directorships
held in other
companies
(excluding
foreign, private
and Section 8
Companies)

SRF Limited;

Feedback Energy Distribution
Company Limited;

KEC International Limited;

Apollo Hospitals Enterprises Limited;
Indraprastha Medical Corporation
Limited

Punjab National Bank;
IL&FS Investment Managers Limited;

Sashakt India Asset Management Limited

Memberships/

Chairmanships
of Audit and
Stakeholders’
Relationship
Committees
across Public
companies
including ACC
Limited

Audit Committee
Chairman:

SRF Limited

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Member:

SRF Limited

Nil

Details of Board/
Committee
Meetings
attended by the
directors during
the year

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

There are no inter-se relationship between the Board Members
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@ Board & Management Reports

BOARD’S REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
ACC LIMITED

The Directors are pleased to present the Eighty Third Annual Report of the Company together with the audited
financial statements (Consolidated and Standalone) for the year ended December 31, 2018. The section on
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) forms a part of this report.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Consolidated Standalone
I Crore X Crore

2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenue from Operations* 14,801.62 13,263.12 14,801.35 13,262.59
Other Income 142.66 128.86 138.50 131.65
Total Income 14,944.28| 13,391.98| 14,939.85| 13,394.24
Profit before Tax 1,510.11 1,310.06 1,494.29 1,298.36
Tax Expenses** (10.51) 385.55 (12.34) 382.91
Profit for the year 1,520.62 924.51 1,506.63 915.45
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 1,520.47 924.41 1,506.63 915.45
Non-controlling interests 0.15 0.10 = -
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (4.84) 2.24 (4.85) 237
Total Comprehensive Income 1,515.78 926.75 1,501.78 917.82
Owners of the Company 1,515.63 926.65 1,501.78 917.82
Non-controlling interests 0.15 0.10 = -
Opening Balance in retained earnings 5,526.05 4,983.63 5,541.33 5,007.74
Amount available for appropriations 7,041.68 5,910.28 7,043.11 5,925.56
Appropriations:
Interim Dividend paid for 2017 = 206.57 = 206.57
Final Dividend paid
- For 2017 281.68 - 281.68 -
-For 2016 = 112.67 = 112.67
Tax on Equity Dividend 57.90 64.99 57.90 64.99
Closing Balance in retained earnings 6,702.10 5,526.05 6,703.53 5,541.33

*Figures for Revenue from Operations are comparable numbers .i.e Excise Duty has been removed as the same does not form part of

Revenue post GST implementation.

**Including write back of ¥ 500.63 crore relating to tax provision of earlier years.

2. OVERVIEW OF COMPANY'’S FINANCIAL »  Consolidated Profit Before Tax for the
PERFORMANCE year was ¥ 1,510.11.crore as compared to
> Consolidated income, comprising of %1,310.06 crore in 2017.

revenue from operations (net of excise)

and other income, for the year was > Consolidated Profit After Tax for the year
% 14,944.28 crore, 12% higher as compared was ¥ 1,520.62 crore as compared to
to ¥ 13,391.98 crore in 2017. 3924.51 crorein 2017.

»  Total cons?lidea'ted revenue from operations > No material changes or commitments have
(net of excise) increased to ¥ 14,801.62 crore .
from % 13,263.12 crore in 2017. occurred between the end of the financial

>  Other operating revenue for the year 2018 year and the date of this Report which affect

was ¥ 324.15 crore representing a decrease
of 8 % over the previous year.

the financial statements of the Company in

respect of the reporting year.
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DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended
payment of dividend of ¥ 14 /- per Equity Share
of ¥ 10 face value aggregating to ¥ 316.94 crore
(including tax on dividend).

The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company
is annexed to this Report as Annexure 'A’ and
is also uploaded on the Company’s website at
http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/new_
pdf/Dividend_Distribution_Policy.pdf

Unclaimed dividends pertaining to the
73" Final dividend and the 74™ Interim dividend
respectively for the years 2010 and 2011 totaling
to ¥ 4.08 crore have been transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund in
accordance with Statutory requirements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s paid-up Equity Share Capital
continues to stand at ¥ 187.79 crore as on
December 31, 2018.

During the year, the Company has not issued any
shares or convertible securities. The Company
does not have any Scheme for issue of shares
including sweat equity to the employees or
Directors of the Company.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY
Cash and cash equivalent as at
December 31, 2018 was I 2,933.21 crore

(Previous year ¥ 2,559.66 crore).

The Company’s working capital management
is robust and involves a well-organized process
which facilitates continuous monitoring and
control over receivables, inventories and other
parameters.

CREDIT RATING

As in the previous years, CRISIL has given the
highest credit rating of CRISIL AAA/ STABLE for
long term and CRISIL A1+ for short term financial
instruments of the Company. This reaffirms the
high reputation and trust the Company has
earned for its sound financial management and
its ability to meet financial obligations.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits

falling under the ambit of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to

@ ACC LIMITED

as “The Act”) and the Rules framed thereunder
during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,
GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act are given in the Notes to Financial Statements
(Refer Note No. 47).

ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND OUTLOOK

The Indian economy started the fiscal year 2018
with an upward trajectory showing a robust
growth of 7.4%.The improvement in the economic
scenario has led to increase in investments in
several sectors of the economy.

In the union budget 2019, the Government has
committed to further strengthen infrastructure
initiatives. We believe that these will positively
impact cement demand and boost economic
growth.

The silver linings on the horizon are that World
Bank has forecast that private investments
in India shall grow by 8.8% in FY 2018-19 to
overtake private consumption growth of
7.4%, and thereby drive the growth in India’s
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in FY 2018-19.
Investments are expected to flow in sync with a
rising trend in capacity utilization.

Approximately 129 million houses have
been constructed till December 2018, under
Government of India’s Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana
(Urban). Cement sector recorded a robust growth
during the year as compared to the previous year.

India has retained its position as the third largest
“start-up” base in the world. According to a
report by NASSCOM, over 4,750 technology start-
ups, and about 1,400 new start-ups have been
founded in 2016. India’s labour force is expected
to touch 160 -170 million by 2020, based on rate
of population growth, increased labour force
participation and higher education enrolment,
according to a study by ASSOCHAM and Thought
Arbitrage Research Institute.

The Government of India, under the “Make in
India” initiative, has provided an environment to
give a boost to the manufacturing sector and aims
to take it up to 25% of the GDP from the current



10.

17%. It also aims to increase the purchasing
power of the average Indian consumer, which
would further boost demand, and stimulate
development, in addition to benefitting investors.
The Government’s “Digital India” initiative, which
focuses on three core components: creation
of digital infrastructure, delivering
digitally and increasing digital literacy will lead to
empowerment in the rural areas.

CEMENT INDUSTRY - OUTLOOK AND
OPPORTUNITIES

Cement Industry Overview and Market Size

services

India is the second largest cement producer in
the world with a cumulative 502 million tonnes
per annum (MTPA) cement production capacity
in 2018, which is estimated to touch 550 MTPA
by 2020. Cement sector has recorded growth of
~8.5% during 2018 as compared to ~6% in 2017.
Domestic cement production was higher by ~8%
at 325 million tonnes in 2018, against 301 million
tonnesin 2017.

Cement, being a bulk commodity, is a freight
intensive industry and transporting it over long
distances can prove to be uneconomical. This
has resulted in cement being largely a regional
play with the industry divided into five main
geographic regions viz. (i) North, (ii) South (iii)
West, (iv) East and(v) Central. The Southern
region of India has the highest installed capacity,
accounting for about one-third of the country’s
total installed cement capacity.

Cement demand is expected to be driven by
Eastern, Central and Northern regions. Going
forward, the markets in the Eastern region would
hold out opportunities for ccment companies to
ride the crest of demand.

As per Indian Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF) in
FY 2019, demand for cement is expected to grow
by 7-8% led by affordable housing, rural Individual
Home Builders (IHBs) and infrastructure - led
activities. The housing and real estate sector is the
biggest demand driver of cement, accounting
for about 65% of total consumption in India as at
December2018.Inthe Budget2018-19, Government
of India has announced setting up of an Affordable
Housing Fund under the National Housing Bank
(NHB) for easing credit to homebuyers. This move is
expected to further boost the demand for cement

12.
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from the housing sector.

Other major demand for cement comes from
public infrastructure which is ~ 20% and for
industrial development which is ~ 15%. The
Government of India is strongly focused on
infrastructure development to boost economic
growth. Aiming for 100 smart cities, it also intends
to expand the capacity of the railways and the
facilities forhandling and storage atrailway sidings
and ports with a view to ease the transportation
of cement and reduce transportation costs. These
measures, apart from benefitting the cement
industry would also provide opportunities
for higher demand for cement on account of
increased construction activity.

With anticipated increase on infrastructure
spending, the cement sector is expected to grow
and in turn positively impact India’s economy.

SALES VOLUME & PRICING

Cement sales of the Company in 2018 increased
by 8% to 2837 million tonnes from 26.21
million tonnes achieved in 2017. Retail Segment
(Individual House Builders & Ground plus three
storey (G+3) Buildings) continue to remain the
largest customer segment in terms of volume and
profitability. Your Company has also carved out
for itself a niche in infrastructure, commercial and
institutional buyer segments which contributes
to the bottom line. For these segments which are
mainly “B2B” contracts, an integrated approach
to marketing is followed where the Company
partners with Government authorities and
construction companies to provide value added
products and services for infrastructure and
urban rejuvenation projects. With increasing
urbanization and greater rural empowerment,
the demand from these sectors is expected to
accelerate.

MARKET DEVELOPMENT

The name “ACC” is synonymous with cement.
The Company has, over its 83 years of existence,
assiduously built a strong brand equity and brand
recall and has a strong customer base which is
loyal to the Brand.

Your Company sells ~ 80% of its cement in
retail i.e Business to Consumer (B2C) which it
services through its strong channel network
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of ~ 11,000 Dealers and ~ 35,000 Retailers/
Sub-Retailers located across the length and
breadth of the country. For developing its Business
to Business (B2B) customer base, dedicated
teams have been set up to service residential and
infrastructure segments.

Over the years, the Company’s marketing teams
have developed a deep understanding of
customer preferences and requirements which
enables it to maximize utilization of existing
capacity on “product value-based volume
strategy” This has resulted in creation of new
revenue lines with introduction of new product.
Composite Cement has been launched and its
volumes scaled up in the Eastern region. The
sale of premium products has been ramped
up. Substitution of Ordinary Portland Cement
(OPC) with more environment friendly Portland
Pozzolana Cement (PPC) and Portland Slag
Cement (PSC), and new value added high
performance cements and solutions have been
added to the product portfolio. ACC LEAKBLOCK —
a water proofing solution for retail segment has
been introduced.

With a view to increase the share of wallet per
counter and to remain connected with the
channel and retail customers, various steps have
been taken for effective channel management.
The web based “ACC Dealer Connect App/Portal”
enables the channel to digitally transact and
track information on real time basis and “Service
Connect App” helps to digitally capture 100% site
information of Influencers for effective conversion
and providing on-site services to home builders.
The “Construction ka Doctor” serves as a help desk
to answer technical queries, provide guidance
on cement applications and onsite service
interventions to Individual House Builders, thereby
offering better value proposition to our customers.

ACC's branding team has effectively used
social media to launch and promote the
Company’s product and services thereby further
strengthening the “ACC” Brand.

Thus, your Company is able to create an
experience of “customer delight” through its
products and services and thereby has expanded
its market reach.

@ ACC LIMITED
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CEMENT BUSINESS - PERFORMANCE

2018 2017 | Change
%

Production 28.36 26.56 7 %
- million tonnes
Sales Volume 28.37 26.21 8 %
- million tonnes
Net Sale Value [13,387.09|11,993.63| 12%
(X crore)
Operating 1,981.17] 1,794.15| 10%
EBITDA Rcrore)*
Operating 14.80 14.96 | (16) BPS
EBITDA Margin
(%)

* excluding employee separation cost of X 70.37 crore in 2018
Costs - Cement Business

During the year 2018, the Company maintained
a close focus on effective cost management
through various proactive initiatives across its
facilities and operations.

a) Cost of materials consumed

The input cost of materials consumed per
tonne of cement during the year was higher
by 11% as compared to 2017.

Higher procurement costs of slag impacted
material cost adversely. The surge in demand
for slag and procurement from long lead
sources led to price increase resulting in 55%
increase in the landed cost of slag.

The landed cost of flyash reduced by 4%
as against previous year on account of
increased usage of cheaper wet flyash and
through source-mix optimization.

Increased usage of cheaper activated
gypsum and procurement from cheaper
sources helped in reducing the gypsum
cost by 5%.

The above measures as also other measures
taken by the Company for improving
manufacturing efficiency parameters and
for product mix optimization have to some
extent helped in mitigating the steeprise in
the cost of materials.



b)

Sustained efforts were made to improve
flyash absorption which enabled the
Company to reduce the clinker factor
by producing a higher share of blended
cements which in turn had a positive
impact on the contribution despite sharp
rise in the cost of slag as stated above.

Power & Fuel

Power & Fuel costs account for ~25%
of the total operating cost. Optimizing
power and fuel costs is one of the major
drivers for improving the Company's
operational performance. The Company
constantly endeavours to reduce fuel
costs by maximizing the use of linkage
coal, judicious procurement of market
coal through e-auctions and imports,
betterfuel mix, higher use of cheaper coal
and use of alternative fuels. As a result of
these initiatives, kiln thermal efficiency
improved by 4MJ to 3099 MJ /per tonne
of clinker during the year as against
3103 MJ/per tonne of clinker in 2017,
Electrical energy efficiency improved by
~1 kwh to 69 kwh/t of clinker as against
69.9 kwh/t clinker in 2017 and by 1.6
kwh to 38.5 kwh/t of cement grinding
as against 40.1 kwh/t cement grinding
in 2017. This to a large extent helped in
containing the adverse impact caused
by increase in the per tonne cost of
Power and Fuel to 7% over the previous
year.

Thermal power cost was adversely
impacted on account of increase in prices
of pet coke and imported as well as
domestic coal. Non-availability of linkage
coal owing to prioritization of allotments
to the power sector was another factor
which led to the increase in Thermal Power
Cost. The generation cost per Kwh of the
Company'’s thermal power plants (TPP) in
2018 went up by 6.7% to ¥ 5.39 per unit as
against ¥ 5.05 per unit in 2017.
The Company’s Waste Heat Recovery plant
of 7.5 MW at Gagal delivered a saving of
% 22 crore during the year.

15.
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) Freight & Forwarding expenses

Freight and Forwarding expenses during the
year were X 3,876.08 crore as compared to
% 3,33896 crore in 2017. This was on
account of higher volume of despatches,
rise in diesel prices and increase in packing
material costs on account of increase
in polypropylene prices. Clearing and
forwarding charges were also higher due
to hiring of additional godown space and
higher handling of premium products. This
increase was despite the continuous efforts
made to improve evacuation efficiency,
reduce lead by increasing the market share
in home markets, availing of beneficial
railway schemes for freight reduction,
benchmarking and renegotiation of
contracts with the transporters.

d) Employee costs

Employee costs during the year increased
by 7%. The Company has taken out
various initiatives which are expected
to improve productivity and optimize
employee costs.

CAPACITY EXPANSION

The Board of Directors has granted its approval to
the Company for setting up :

i A Greenfield Integrated Cement Plant at
Ametha, District Katni, Madhya Pradesh
(Clinker capacity of 3 MTPA and Cement
capacity of 1 MTPA) along with expansion
of the existing grinding unit in Tikaria, Uttar
Pradesh (Cement capacity of 1.6 MTPA) and
a third grinding unit also in Uttar Pradesh
(cement capacity 2.2 MTPA)

ii. 1.1. MTPA Cement Grinding Facility at the
existing location at Sindri, Jharkhand.

The above projects are estimated to cost
~ % 3000 crore which is proposed to be funded
through internal accruals.

The said expansion will help the Company to
maintain the price premium and strengthen
its product portfolio. Ramp up of capacity as
aforesaid is also likely to be supported by a
demand growth will enable the Company to
strengthen its market share in the Central and

Eastern markets.
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



16.
16.1

READY MIX CONCRETE AND ICI BUSINESS
Ready Mix Concrete (RMX):

During the year 2018, RMX has surpassed its
performance over the earlier years, witnessing a
substantial growth both in terms of volume and
EBITDA.

Unit 2018 2017 | Change
%

RMX Lakh 31.29 27.29| 15%
Production m3
Volume
RMX Sales Lakh 31.57 2710 16%
Volume m3
Net Sale ¥Cr | 1306.38| 1140.48| 15%
Value
Operating ZCr 133.83| 114.98| 16%
EBITDA
Op. EBITDA % 10.24 10.08| 16BPS
Margin

The RMX business of the Company has been
consistently performing well. RMX sales volume &
EBITDA rose by 16% in 2018 as compared to the
previous year.

During the year, RMX business expanded its
footprint by adding 18 new Plants. These Plants
are located in high contribution and high EBITDA
margin markets across the country. With this
addition, the nationwide network of RMX Plants
comprises of 75 state-of-the-art Plants.

Over the years, RMX business arm of the Company
has developed a wide customer base across
diversified profitable construction segments
ranging from residential / commercial building
complexes to infrastructure projects including
underground metro projects and individual house
builder (IHB) segment. Each segment/ project has
its special requirement of concrete application
and construction needs. The RMX business
with its technical capabilities and its range of
Value Added Products and solutions stands out
among other ready mix concrete suppliers as a
solution provider for varied construction needs.
To support the road segment, a "rapid hardening
ready to use material" has been developed
specially to counter the menace of potholes on
the roads. This 15 minutes pothole repair solution
allows the road to be opened for traffic within
15 minutes after its application. The product has
been successfully demonstrated to the concerned
Municipal authorities in Bengaluru and Mumbai.

@ ACC LIMITED
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Some of the other special application products
recently developed are fire resistance concrete
and thermal insulation concrete.

Keen focus on day-to-day sales, rigorous business
tracking mechanism, a well-defined pricing policy
and increase in sale of “Value Added Solutions”
(VAS) were some of the key success factors for the
RMX business in the year 2018.

B2B- Focused approach on Infrastructure &
Residential Projects

Infrastructure development gained momentum
in 2018 with the impetus received from
Government schemes under implementation for
the development of roads, rail and metro as part
of urban rejuvenation.

With an Integrated B2B approach, the Company
is well poised to offer customised cement
applications, value added products and services
to its customers. RMX teams are engaging with
customers/clients from theinitial stage of projects.
With this integrated marketing approach, B2B
sales have grossed 5.79 mio MTPA in 2018.

RMX teams have been promoting the use of
environmentally friendly blended cement for
use in infrastructure projects. This change in
specification of cement from OPC to blended
cements like PPC/ PSC has been a slow journey
and has posed a huge challenge in view of the set
market practice of making concrete at site which
is more cost effective for the contractors. The RMX
teams’ efforts towards promoting the use of RMX
made with blended cement for infrastructure
projects and large /mid-size real estate developers
has resulted in increased sales of 2.6 mio MTPA
in this product range which represents a 10%
increase over the previous year 2017.

Focus will continue in the current year to win in the
markets with customer engagement at all levels.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (SD)

Your Company’s tryst with sustainability which
began from the nascent years of its incorporation,
has received greater vigour and focused
attention in recent years. Your Company has been
releasing its Sustainability report as per Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) framework since 20009.
The Sustainability Report is available on the
Company'’s website at www.acclimited.com.



17.1 SD 2030 Plan - Building for Tomorrow

In 2016, a structured sustainability strategy was
drawn up under“SD 2030 Plan” defining the focus
areas viz. (i) climate, (ii) circular economy, (iii) water
& nature, and (iv) people & communities, and the
roadmap with measurable targets to achieve the
set goals by 2030. The SD 2030 Plan is aligned
with the LafargeHolcim Group’s Plan. In line with
“SD 2030 Plan’, during the year, the Company has
taken various initiatives to achieve the set targets.
Snippets of this journey are set out below:

17.2

Climate:

17.2.1 CO, emissions

As per the SD 2030 Plan which charts the
sustainable development roadmap, the
Company has taken a target to reduce
Specific CO, emissions by 40% per tonne
of cement (vis-a-vis the base of 1990). To
achieve this, following initiatives were
continued with vigour during the year
which have resulted in reducing specific CO,
emission to 504.55 kg/T of cement in 2018,
areduction of ~3.8% over the previous year.

a)

b)

Clinker Factor

The percentage of CO, emission
is directly proportionate to the
manufacture of OPC. During the
year, the manufacture of blended
cement was increased to ~88%
and composite cement has been
launched in the Eastern Region. This
has enabled a reduction of 1.68% in
CO, emission.

Reducing Thermal Energy: Your
Company has implemented various
energy  conservation  measures
which have helped in reducing the
Thermal energy from 3103 MJ/T to
3099 MJ/T of Clinker.

Green Energy and Power
Generation through Waste Heat
Recovery System

The Company has installed wind
farms in three States viz., Tamil Nadu,
Rajasthan and Maharashtra with a
total capacity to generate ~19MW
of renewable energy. 34.74 million
units of renewable energy were
generated from these captive sources
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d)

during the year. Additional “green
power” of 44.48 million units were
procured through Power Purchase
Agreements. Thus, 80.68 million units
of “green energy” were used in 2018
representing an increase of 83.70% as
compared to the previous year.

The Waste Heat Recovery system at
Gagal Cement Works also generated
52.97 million units of green electrical
energy during the year.

Alternative Fuels and Raw
Materials (AFR)

The manufacture of cement is an
energy intensive process. Coal and
petcoke are the main fuels used by
the cement industry in India. The use
of these fuels is not sustainable as it
produces higher % of CO, emission.
Further the use of coal leads to
depletion of natural resources.
Accordingly, the use of alternative
fuels (AFR) in the production of
cement is a preferred option. The
Company has set up platforms
for co-processing hazardous, non
hazardous and municipal waste for
use as “Refuse Derived Fuel” (RDF)
and biomass in its kilns wherever
permissible by law and recently this
facility at Wadi Cement works has
been expanded.

Through its “Geocycle” activity,
continuous efforts are made by
the Company to provide safe
waste management solutions to
industries and municipalities while
meeting the highest standards of
health, safety and sustainability.
Geocycle is also promoting the use of
alternative fuels through advocacy at
appropriate forums and by creation of
stakeholders’ awareness in this regard.
The Government’s “Swach Bharat”
programme coupled with mega cities
looking for solutions for municipal
waste management, co-processing of
waste for use as RDF is expected to get
greater traction in future.
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17.4

17.5

Controlling Emissions

During the year, the Company achieved 100%
compliance to New Emission Regulations for
cement plants by implementing various primary
and secondary measures. Brief details of these
initiatives are given below:

Dust emission control

Various primary measures such as installation
of Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD)
study in Electrostatic Precipitators (ESPs) along
with up-gradation to 3 phase Transformer
Rectifier sets, high frequency controllers
and rapper panels on coolers etc were
implemented. The above measures have together
resulted in ensuring stack dust emissions in
Cement Plants < 30mg/Nm3.

NOx emission control

Measures for NOx emission control comprising
of CFD modeling, meal curtain and low NOx
burners as primary measures and installation/
commissioning of SNCR systems in all its
Integrated Cement Plants as secondary measures
have been implemented. This has resulted in
ensuring compliance to NOx emissions as per
new emission regulations.

SOx emission control

The Company’s SOx emissions are well within the
specified regulatory limits and do not require any
emission control measures.

All the Company’s Plants are required to have
continuous online reporting of ambient air quality
and process emission on a real time basis on the
websites of regulatory authorities.

Circular Economy:

During the year, 6.05 million tonnes of flyash,
3.31 million tonnes of slag, 1.49 million tonnes
of crushed rock fines and 0.37 million tonnes of
alternative raw materials were consumed, thus

providing sustainable and environmentally
friendly solution for waste management.
Water & Nature:

Water conservation

In line with its SD 2030 Plan to become water
positive, the Company continued its efforts in
water conservation, particularly through the
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creation of new water bodies, rehabilitating and
replenishing existing water tables and to conserve
fresh water through rain water harvesting in
plants, mines, colonies and within the community
in which the Plants operate.

During the year, ACC consumed around
2.23 million m3 of harvested rain water in cement
operation which is almost 46% of total water
consumption.

Biodiversity

This year, in its journey to conserve nature and
preserve biodiversity, International Union for
Conservation of Nature (IUCN) organization was
invited to conduct capacity building program
for environment and mining managers at the
Plants to sensitize and train them in the use of
Biodiversity Indicators & Reporting Systems (BIRS)
for data analytics and planning. As per the SD 2030
Plan, the Company is committed to bring about
a positive change on biodiversity by 2030 vis-a-
vis the baseline of 2020. The baseline assessment
has already been completed ahead of 2020 and
action plan for biodiversity conservation is being
firmed up in consultation with third party experts.

Green Building Centers (GBCs)

As part of the ongoing program to promote
sustainable, green, cost effective and affordable
construction in semi-urban and rural India,
through Green Building centers, the Company
supports local micro-entrepreneurs and small
businesses to make and market affordable
cement-based home building components and
pre-fabricated materials. During the year, the
Company has assisted in setting up 108 new
Green Building Centers. These Green Building
Centers have helped in utilization of 37,577 MT
of Flyash, conservation of 81,416 MT of Earth’s
natural top soil and avoidance of 5,730 MT of CO,
emission during the year. Further, through this
initiative in all 27,769 low cost housing /shelters
have been constructed till date.

Increased conservation  through
enhanced energy and water efficiency, use of
renewable energy, minimization of waste etc,,
during the manufacturing process has

contributed to the betterment of the

resources

environment.



17.7 Product Stewardship: Environment Product

18.

Declaration and Greenpro Certification

Your Company has been one of the first companies
to manufacture eco-friendly products such as
blended cements and it aims to strengthen its
efforts towards environment protection, health
and safety performance throughout the entire life
cycle of its products. During the year 2018, your
Company completed the process of assessing its
impact across life cycles of its products through
Environment Product Declaration (EPD) for all its
cement and concrete products and published the
EPDs. Your Company is the first in India to obtain
certified EPDs for all its cement and concrete
products. These EPDs can be used at National and
International level to enhance the Green Building
Rating. The Company has also obtained Greenpro
certification for all the cement products.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES

ACC has structured its Social Development
interventions through ACC Ayushmaan Trust (now
known as ACC Trust after receipt of necessary
approvals), in alignment with Global Sustainable
Development Goals. Community development
interventions undertaken in previous years
continued with further vigour and widening
of portfolio of projects, that included projects
contributing to national vision of achieving
‘Skilled India’

Total CSR expenditure incurred by your Company
during the yearwas< 20.45 crore which was higher
than the statutory limit. The CSR Projects of the
Company mainly focused on the following broad
thematic areas namely sustainable livelihood,
quality education and Water, Sanitation and
Hygiene (WASH) that are compliant with the Act
and the relevant rules thereunder.

The Company'’s community development projects
reached out to more than 4.79 lakh people
residing in 185 villages across the country.

Initiatives taken by the Company to act as
an enabler for creation of livelihood helped
17,034 farmers to enhance agricultural production
through better methods of agriculture and
animal husbandry. Company’s employability
linked skill development initiatives benefitted
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~2,303 youth. ~132 Self Help Groups (SHGs)
were supported for formation and institutional
strengthening, while existing ~1,430 SHGs were
provided with continued support for sustenance
and bank linkages. Many SHGs have set up micro
enterprises and formulated duly registered
federations to achieve larger common good.
Education initiatives in the vicinity of plants
addressed needs of ~ 44,338 students during
the year. Disbursement of Scholarships under
the Company's VidyaSaarathi scheme which is an
end-to-end online scholarship helped ~ 478
meritorious students from weaker sections of
society across the districts in which the Company's
units are located to get financial support to
pursue their dream of better education. Modern
methods of learning such as smart classes and
interactive kiosks benefitted students in 53 rural
schools. Efforts were made to provide education
to ~ 1,380 girl children as part of the “ACC ki
Laadli” project. Seven Government-run Industrial
Training Institutes (ITls) continued to receive
support under the Public Private Partnership
Scheme with Government of India.

Access to WASH is one of the goals of SD 2030
Plan to be achieved by 2030. The WASH pledge
is an initiative by the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, an Organization
led by CEOs of leading companies including
LafargeHolcim Limited. The Company has
assessed allits Plant sites for WASH and action plan
has been drawn up. The Company’s development
initiatives for WASH benefitted a substantial
cross-section of people. Over 12,581 children
received access to better health and nutrition
through support provided to 305 Anganwadi
centres. ART Centers and STI Clinics supported
by the Company provided counseling, testing
and treatments for HIV/AIDS to more than 3000
persons. The Trust that was established in 2007 to
support ACC’s contribution to combat HIV/AIDs
is now the major driver of ACC's CSR initiatives at
plant locations across India.

The unprecedented rains and floods which
ravaged many parts of Kerala in August 2018
resulted in massive loss of lives and destruction
of Livelihood, property and infrastructure. Your
Company immediately stepped in with resources,

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



19.

manpower and logistics support to provide on-
ground relief and rehabilitation to assist people
and local authorities in the flood impacted areas.
Along with contributions by the ACC Trust, ACC
employees also donated one day’s salary in
this humanitarian effort. 18 ACC Information
Kiosks were set up and 11 ACC Help vans were
continuously deployed to help the victims.

The Company also extended support and
provided relief in Gaja (Cyclone) affected areas of
Tamil Nadu.

The Company’s CSR Projects have been
duly audited by a third party Social Audit
team comprising of renowned experts from
development sector, led by the Head of DOC
Research Institute, Berlin. ACC remains the torch
bearer for the Industry by undertaking Social
Audit for the past four years and making the
assessment report public.

The Company has been awarded accolades for its
impactful CSR activities during the year.

The Company’s CSR Policy as stated earlier is in
alignment with the requirements of the Act. The
CSR Policy Statement and Report on the activities
undertaken during the year is annexed to the
Board'’s Report as Annexure ‘B

HEALTH & SAFETY (H&S)

The focus on health and safety (H&S) of
employees and stakeholders continues. During
the year, employees and workers were engaged
in a meaningful interaction with the ultimate
aim to build a culture at workplace where safety
of life and property is considered as paramount.
New safety standards were rolled out across the
Organization. There was increased engagement
of the Management with the employees and
contract workers through safety campaigns,
Department-wise “safety corner” meets. etc.

Recognizing that building H&S competencies
within the Organization is the key to safe work
environment, Hazard Identification & Risk
Assessment (HIRA) workshops were conducted
for the employees with a view to equip them to
recognize the hazards and risks associated with a
given task and take preemptive action(s).
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The initiatives, “More Boots on the Ground” and
“Visible Personal Commitment” were pursued
vigorously during the year. These initiatives
reinforce the visible personal commitment of
senior management towards promoting safety
culture at workplace through role modeling,
handholding, counseling and imparting shopfloor
training to workers in safe work practices.

Under the Health & Safety Improvement Plan
(HSIP) 2018, onus was placed on the Top
Management to engage with employees and
workers to bring about improvements in areas
such as H&S leadership & accountability, road
safety, health, contractor safety management,
strengthening frontline safety behavior, building
people capability & engagement etc. All these
initiatives resulted in an overall improvement in
safety performance in 2018.

During the year, all cement and RMX plants were
audited for Health and Safety Management system
to provide assurance on the implementation and
effectiveness of these systems and processes as
per LafargeHolcim Group’s defined protocol. For
further strengthening the audit process, an online
audit website has been developed and launched.

Process Safety Management (PSM) program was
launched by the group in February 2018. Pursuant
thereto, PSM champions were identified from
Techport and Plants for auditing the following
important areas in the manufacturing process viz.
Traditional Fuel, Hot Meal, Electrical Safety and
Quarry & Slopes. PSM audit has been completed
for all sites and action plan implementation is in
progress. Audits for diesel tank safety were carried
out across the Company in April, to control liquid
fuel associated hazards.

The Company has been receiving valuable
inputs and support on H&S related matters from
LafargeHolcim, the ultimate holding company.
Global H&S Safety Days were celebrated from
14t — 25" May’18 on the theme “l improve
health and safety every day in my workplace”
As part of the safety celebrations, several events
and activities were organized across all Plants
covering management staff, SFA and contractors
with focus on building people capabilities in the
area of safety.



The practice of sharing key learning from all onsite
LTls and critical incidents across all Plants to avoid
repeat of similar incidence at other locations, has
been introduced as per group requirements. It is
proposed to widen the knowledge sharing base
across all LH Group Plants.

The Suraksha Laher campaign in 2018, was
designed to focus on ‘Safe Work Planning’ As part
of this campaign awareness training was provided
on topics like job risk assessment, work permits,
preparation of work method statement, review of
SOP etc.

Health

During the year, Industrial Hygiene survey was
conducted at Jamul, Bargarh and Tikaria as per
Group template. Further, a Lifestyle Management
Program was also launched during the year.
Employees having moderate to severe health
risks are being regularly monitored and provided
health assistance, and significant reduction
in health risk was observed. “Click2Health” an
online health management system has been
launched on the Company’s intranet portal for
managing health care and for OPD treatment.
Protect your ear, a hearing conservation program
was launched across the Company.

A workshop was organized for promoting Health
and Safety in schools and teachers from all ACC
aided schools participated in the workshop. This is
a unique initiative to make a positive impact with
respect to health and safety behavior in children
in the hope that this in turn would get reflected in
the health and safety behavior of the employees.

Logistics Safety

The focus on road safety continues. In order to
demonstrate logistic safety commitment, the
“ACC Road Safety Policy” was rolled out and
widely circulated at the Plants and drivers were
educated in regard to the same.

The Driver Management Centers set up by the
Company at all Plant locations provided valuable
support for driver training and counseling.
Multiple activities from Defensive Driver
Induction (DDI) for first trip driver to Defensive
Driving Course (DDC), in-cab assessment, tool box
talks, JRM briefing were carried out through these
Driver Management Centers.

20.
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During the vyear, Transport Analytics Center
(TAC) was set up as a nodal point for monitoring
the driving patterns of the drivers through 'In
Vehicle Monitoring System' (iVMS) and provide
counselling to the drivers on safe methods of
driving. The installation of iVMS in the trucks
was also accelerated in order to bring more
vehicles within the ambit of TAC monitoring and
counseling.

In-Camera counseling for drivers was launched
across all plants. In respect of vehicles yet to be
installed with iVMS, camera installed in the driver's
cabin serves to record the journey behavior of the
drivers which is later used for driver counselling.
Blind spots being a major area of safety concern
were identified during the year and safety
measures were taken to eliminate the chances
of an accident. In addition, a video recording on
negotiating blind spot safely was shown to the
drivers, employees and their family members.

“Anti toppling devices” were fitted in Transit Mixers
to prevent accidents caused by roll-over of mixers.

“Star Warehouse Program” which was launched
last year to improve safety standards in warehouse
operations continued during the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company believes that its employees are
its core strength and accordingly development
of people and providing a 'best-in-class' work
environment is a key priority for the Organisation
to drive business objectives and goals. Robust
HR policies are in place which enables building
a stronger performance culture and at the same
time developing current and future leaders.

People for tomorrow

Among the many employee development and
training programmes, the 'People for Tomorrow'
(PFT) programme is designed to ensure a pipeline
of talent which is groomed for succession
planning for critical roles within the Organization.
The Programme which is specifically designed for
manufacturing teams, facilitatesan understanding
of the business by employee, while at the same
time helps the management in assessing and
bridging competency gaps for critical role holders
thereby ensuring a higher level of employee
performance. This in turn translates into better

business performance
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Creating a new performance culture

Performance for the Company is the sum total
of value creation within the Organization. The
leadership focus is such that performance is
measured on a continuous basis and performance
culture is driven to make every month a successful
month. The significant overall improvement in
the performance of the Company during the last-
two years is a testimony to the leadership and
management focus on this performance driven
culture which has resulted in highly engaged and
motivated teams.

Taking employee engagement to next level

ACC has a rich legacy of nurturing and promoting
talent from within the Organization thereby
creating a healthy and vibrant work culture
across the Company.

“Innovate to Excel” is one such engagement
forum which engages employees at a national
level competition across all locations to showcase
their innovative ideas and skills. This platform
challenges employees to question status-quo at
the work place and to take a leap of faith towards
our journey of innovation.

Several cultural and social programmes are
organised within the Company to recognise and
promote talent which goes along way in fostering
camaraderie among employees and promotes a
sense of belonging in the Organization.

Industrial Relations

The Company enjoyed harmonious industrial
relations during the year. The robust employee
relation practices, a collaborative approach to
working and vibrant work culture has created
a win-win situation for both employees and the
Organization. This caring spirit has gone a long
way in maintaining a harmonious environment
across all Units.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace

The Company is an equal opportunity provider and
continuously strives to build a work culture which
promotes the respect and dignity of all employees
across the Organization. In order to provide
women employees a safe working environment
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at workplace and also in compliance with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, the
Company has formulated a well defined policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of complaints
relating to sexual harassment of women at the
workplace. All women who are associated with
the Company-either as permanent employees
or temporary employees or contractual persons
including service providers at Company sites are
covered under the above policy. The said policy
has been uploaded on the internal portal of the
Company for information of all employees.

An Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has been
set up comprising of three female and one male
employee. One of the female employees is the
Chairperson and a male employee is the Secretary
of the Committee. There is one external member
on the Committee who is a specialist in dealing
with such matters. Apart from the above, there
is one nodal person in each unit to receive and
forward complaints either to the First Instance
Person (FIP) who is a woman or directly to the
Committee.

The Committee Members and employees are
sensitized from time to time on matters relating
to prevention of sexual harassment. Awareness
programmes are conducted at unit levels to
sensitize the employees to uphold the dignity of
theirfemale colleagues at workplace. The Company
also promotes e-learning for the employees to
cover various aspects of the subject matter.

No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment
of women employees from any of the Company’s
locations were received during the year ended
December 31, 2018.

INNOVATION

The Company continues with its endeavour to
be an innovative and a responsive Organization
aligned with its objective to cater to customer
needs and optimizing existing and future growth.
The thrust on experimenting with new ideas
and creating new prototypes is the backbone
of the innovation journey and has lead to the
development of several breakthroughs in cement
and concrete applications over the years. More
recently the Company has made forays into the
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leak-proof market and widened its portfolio of
value-added varieties of cement and concrete
for special and customized applications. To better
its best, the Company has developed with its
unique blend of ingredients and cutting edge
technology, premium range of products.The spirit
of innovativeness has reaped significant benefits
and has helped the Company achieve cost
efficiencies in the areas of energy, raw materials
sourcing, logistics, customer excellence and
manpower optimization leading to productivity
improvement. LafargeHolcim has been extremely
supportive in the aforesaid areas by lending their
expertise.

BUSINESS RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES

The Company has a robust governance structure
with well defined roles and responsibilities
for each vertical. This helps in identifing and
managing business risk in a proactive manner and
at the same time empowes the management to
encash business opportunities.

The governance structure inter alia includes a
comprehensive framework for strategic planning,
implementation and performance monitoring
of the business plan which inter alia includes a
well-structured Business Risk Management (BRM)
process. With a view to systematically identify risks
and opportunities and monitor their movement, a
heat map has been designed comprising of two
parameters viz. likelihood of the event and the
impact it is expected to have on the Company’s
operations and performance.

The risks that fall under high likelihood and
high impact are identified as key risks. This
structured process in identifying risks supports
the Executive Committee in strategic decision-
making and development of detailed mitigation
plans. The identified risks are then integrated
into the Company’s Planning Cycle which is a
rolling process to inter alia periodically review the
movement of the risks on the heat map and the
effectiveness of the mitigation plan.

The Key business risks and their mitigation plans
are as described hereinbelow:

Raw Material Risk

Fuel: During the year, the Company was adversely
impacted by steep rise in energy cost. Cement
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manufacturing is an energy intensive process and
there is high dependence on Coal and pet coke,
which form the principal fuels in production of
thermal energy.

Limited availability of domestic coal due to
prioritization on allotment of coal to the power
sector and resultant reduction in rake availability
by the Railways to the non-power sectorimpacted
the availability of coal, thereby hardening the
fuel prices. There was also significant increase in
Petcoke prices during the year.

More than 5 million tonnes of coal and pet
coke are required each year by the Company to
meet the requirements of its kilns and captive
power plants. The volatility of fuel prices in the
international markets coupled with uncertainty
over availability of domestic and linkage coal
continue to pose challenges in regard to coal
availability and pricing to the cement industry as
well as the Company.

Against this backdrop, the Company has taken
various initiatives and proactive measures which
have translated into improved manufacturing
performance, and have helped in softening
the aforesaid cost pressures. Improved fuel mix
at selected plants, progressive increase in the
usage of Alternative fuels, firming up contracts
for part of the volume and balance on the spot
to capitalize on opportunities, spreading out
purchases throughout the year, are some of the
measures adopted by the Company to balance
out the impact of the inflationary costs.

Raw Materials: Limestone being one of the
primary raw materials used in the manufacture
of cement, it is imperative for the Company to
ensure its uninterrupted long-term availability.

As per the Mines and Minerals (Development &
Regulation) AmendmentAct2015 (MMDR),mining
leases granted before the commencement of the
Act, for captive use are extended upto a period
ending on March 31, 2030, or till the completion
of their existing period of renewal, whichever is
later. Going forward the new mining leases will
be allotted for a period of fifty years through fresh
auctions.

Most of the Company’s mining leases extend up
to March 31, 2030 thereby ensuring adequate
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limestone reserves to cater to the requirements
of its plants till the said date, whereafter the
Company will have to participate in auctions.

To address the above risks, the Company has
taken various measures to augment resources
by initiating the process for conversion of its
prospecting licenses into mining leases. The
Company is also participating in auctions with a
view to securing new mining leases for its existing
plants as well as for its expansions at different
locations. Bearing in mind that limestone is a
gradually depleting natural resource, and to
ensure prudent usage of the mineral in the
manufacture of cement, higher percentage of
additives are used which enable consumption of
the low grade limestone, without compromising
on the quality and thereby conserving the mineral
and increasing the life of the mine.

Forest and Wild Life clearances are a pre-requisite
for mining activities. Further, land acquisition is
also becoming more challenging and expensive.
The Management is taking adequate steps to
put in place robust processes for obtaining fresh
Environmental Clearances, wherever necessary.

As mentioned earlier, slag prices hardened during
the year on account of spurt in demand coupled
with shortage caused by wagon non-availability.
In order to minimize the impact of the inflating
slag prices, the Company has diverted its focus to
composite cement.

Market Competition: The cement industry is
witnessing a significant imbalance in its total
installed capacity vis-a-vis the capacity utilization
which presently is ~75%. Despite the capacity
overhang, capacity expansion still continues,
resulting in intense competition and adverse
impact on the Company’s market share, sales
volume and profitability.

Efforts are also being made by the Company to
widen the product portfolio by increasing the
share of its premium products in retail segment,
application based products and value added
products and services to B2B segment.

Cyber Security: With increased reliance on IT
systems and the widespread usage of internet for
doing business there is a constant threat to the
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Company’s sensitive data assets being exposed to
unethical hacking and misuse. The ramifications
from cyber attacks may not only been confined to
mere loss of data but may result in business and
reputation loss.

The Company’s IT systems are fully geared to
meet the threat of “DDOS” attacks which are
highly probable. The Indian Government having
recognized the cyber risks, has also introduced
tighter Cyber Security laws. Responsibilities
have been entrusted to the Directors of the
Company under the Companies Act, 2013 to take
appropriate steps to ensure cyber security.

ACC's Business Landscape presents a large
surface for a possible attack in view of its vast
and disparate network spread across many
remote locations, with complex IT and OT
environment. There is however a strong firewall
and well established Disaster Recovery System
within the LafargeHolcim Group. Most of the
hardware and software have been mapped.
The Company’s cyber security management
framework aligns with industry standards and
regulations. LafargeHolcim has launched a robust
programme on cyber security called “Zenith'
This programme is aimed to facilitate LH Group
Companies stay abreast and vigilant against
possible cyber attacks and remain a step ahead
by taking immediate remedial action.

The Company has adequate processes and
systems in place to review on a regular basis
the cyber security risks. The Risk Management
Committee of the Board is appraised of steps
taken to mitigate cyber security risks.

Legal Risks: The risks arising out of pending
legal cases are reviewed on a regular basis by the
Compliance Committee of the Board from the
perspective of probability of imposition of heavy
penalty or receiving adverse orders which could
have a high financial and/or reputational impact
on the Company. All important cases are closely
monitored by the Company and a broad strategy
is outlined for effective management of litigation
related risks. The appointment of external legal
counsels has also been rationalized based on
the risk associated with the matter, and keeping
in mind the cost of litigation. The Company is in
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the process of developing a well defined system
which not only tracks the status of all pending
litigations but also provides updates on latest
jurisprudence in matters similar to those of the
Company.

With a view to minimize the risks arising from
inadvertent non-compliances with Competition
laws continuous and rigorous Fair Competition
training sessions are conducted and e-learning
modules are rolled out across the Company
for relevant employees particularly those in
sales and purchase functions. The processes of
the Company are subject to both internal and
external audits to identify any gaps which could
lead to potential violation of competition law.
The Commercial documentation/ directive is also
reviewed from time to time and strengthened as
and when required.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
Internal Audit and its adequacy

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit
function is defined in the Internal Audit Charter.
With a view to maintain independence and
objectivity in its working, the Internal Audit
function reports directly to the Audit Committee.

At the beginning of each Financial Year, a risk
based annual audit plan is rolled out after the
same is approved by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Plan is aimed at evaluation of the efficacy
and adequacy of internal control system and
compliance thereof, robustness of internal
processes, policies and accounting procedures,
compliance with laws and regulations. Based on
the reports of internal audit function, process
owners undertake corrective action in their
respective areas. Significant audit observations
and corrective actions thereon are presented to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
(ICFR)

Theinternalfinancial controls within the Company
are commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The controls were
tested during the year and no reportable material
weaknesses either in their design or operations
were observed. The Company has robust policies
and procedures which, inter alia, ensure integrity
in conducting its business, safeguarding of its
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assets, timely preparation of reliable financial
information, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and prevention
and detection of frauds and errors.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

Your Company has over the years established a
reputation for doing business with integrity and
displays zero tolerance for any form of unethical
behaviorEthicalView Reporting Policy” (EVRP) is
the vigil mechanism instituted by the Company
to report concerns about unethical behavior in
compliance with the requirements of the Act
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter
referred to as SEBI Listing Regulations). The Audit
Committee of the Board oversees the functioning
of this policy. Protected disclosures can be made
by a whistle blower through several channels to
report actual or suspected frauds and violation
of Company’s Code of Conduct and/or Ethics
Policy. Details of the EthicalView Reporting Policy
have been disclosed on its Company’s website
-http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/pdf/
ethicalview-reporting-policy.pdf

During the year, the Company reached out to
employees through e-learning modules and
face-to-face training sessions for creating greater
awareness with respect to the Company’s’ Anti
Bribery and Corruption Directive (ABCD) This has
helped in achieving a high level of engagement
and compliance among the employees.

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES

SUBSIDIARIES
Bulk Cement Corporation (India) Limited (BCCI)

During the year under review, the revenue from
operations of BCCI increased to ¥ 18.76 crore
in 2018 compared to X17.27 crore in 2017. The
Profit before tax before considering exceptional
items for the year 2018 was X 3.39 crore as against
X 2.88 crore in the year 2017.

ACC Mineral Resources Limited (AMRL)

ACC had entered into a Joint Venture with
Madhya Pradesh State Mining Corporation
Limited (MPSMC) for development of four coal
blocks allotted to MPSMC by the Government of
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India through its wholly owned subsidiary ACC
Mineral Resources Limited. Consequent upon the
cancellation of the allocation of all coal blocks
including the four coal blocks allotted to MPSMC
by the Government of India as per the Orders of
the Supreme Court passed in September 2014,
AMRL does not have any business activity and
correspondingly did not have any operating
income during the period under review.

OTHER SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has three other Subsidiary
Companies having limestone deposits, viz. Lucky
Minmat Limited, National Limestone Company
Private Limited and Singhania Minerals Private
Limited. Singhania Minerals Private Limited is
operational, while the other two companies are
not operational.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

None of the subsidiaries mentioned in para 25.1
above isamaterial subsidiary as per the thresholds
laid down under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company has
approved a Policy for determining material
subsidiaries in line with the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Policy is also being revised
effective from April, 1, 2019 in line with
the amendments made to the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Policy has been uploaded on the
Company’s website at:

http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/pdf/CG/
Determiningmaterialsubsidiaries.pdf

JOINT VENTURE /ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Onelndia BSC Private Limited is a Joint Venture
Company with equal participation with Ambuja
Cements Limited to provide back office services
to the two Companies with respect to routine
transactional processes.

Your Company also has a Joint Venture with
Aakaash  Manufacturing Company Private
Limited, for manufacture and supply of ready mix
concrete. As on December 31, 2018, the following
is the list of Associate Companies:

. Alcon Cement Company Private Limited

Asian Concretes and Cements Private
Limited
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year 2018 are prepared in
compliance with the applicable provisions of
the Act including Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
audited
together with the Auditors’ Report thereon form

consolidated financial statements

part of the Annual Report.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a Statement
containing salient features of the financial
statements of each of the Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Venture Companies in the prescribed
Form AOC-1 is attached.

The Financial Statements of the subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture companies are
available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 136 of the Act. The Company
shall provide free of cost, a copy of the financial
statements of its subsidiary companies to the
Members upon their request. The statements are
also available on the website of the Company at
www.acclimited.com under the‘lnvestors’section.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

Changes in Directorate

The Independent Directors of the Company have
been appointed by the shareholders at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on September 10,
2014 for a term of five years from their respective
dates of appointment as per the requirements
of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The appointments of Mr Shailesh Haribhakti,
Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta, Mr Ashwin Dani and
Mr Farrokh Kavarana were effective from July, 24,
2014 while those of Mr Arunkumar Gandhi and
Ms Falguni Nayar were effective from April, 24, 2014.

Pursuant to the Company’s Succession policy
applicable to the directors which provides that a
person shall not be eligible for appointment as a
director of the Company upon attaining the age
of seventy five years. Mr Ashwin Dani, Mr Farrokh



Kavarana and Mr Arunkumar Gandhi have attained
or will attain the age of seventy five years during
their current tenure of appointment and have
expressed their inability to seek re-appointment
from the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Directors has placed on record its
sincere appreciation for the rich contribution
made by Mr Ashwin Dani, Mr Farrokh Kavarana
and Mr Arunkumar Gandhi during their tenure of
association as Independent Directors.

Considering the above, it is proposed to appoint
Mr Damodarannair Sundaram, Mr Sunil Mehta
and Mr Vinayak Chatterjee as Independent
Directors with effect from the conclusion of
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for a
period of five consecutive years subject to their
appointment being approved by the Members.
All the above named persons have given their
consent for the appointment and have confirmed
that they are not in any way disqualified from
being appointed as directors. They have also
given their confirmation with regard to their
independent status vis-a-vis the Company.

The persons identified for appointment are
persons of pre-eminence and the Board feels
that it would be enriched further by their
induction as Independent Directors. Detailed
profiles of the above named persons setting
out their accomplishments are appended to the
Explanatory Statement accompanying the Notice
for the Annual General Meeting. The Company has
received notices from a Member under Section
160 of the Act proposing their candidature for
appointment as Directors and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee as also the Board of
Directors have recommended their appointment.

Approval of the Members by ordinary
resolutions for appointing the aforesaid persons
as Independent Directors for a term of five
consecutive years has been sought in the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting of the
Company. (Please refer to Item Nos. 8, 9 and 10 of
the Notice).

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti, Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta
and Ms Falguni Nayar upon completion of
their first term of appointment as Independent
Directors during the current year are eligible
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for re-appointment for another term of five
consecutive years subject to approval of the
Members by special resolution. The said Directors
have given their consent for re-appointment and
have confirmed that they still retain their status as
Independent Directors and that they do not suffer
from any disqualifications for appointment. The
proposal for their re-appointment is based on the
evaluation of their performance carried out by the
Board other than the persons evaluated.

The Company has received notices under
Section 160 of the Act, from a Member
proposing the re-appointment of Mr Shailesh
Haribhakti, Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta and
Ms Falguni Nayar as Independent Directors of the
Company. Approval of the Members by special
resolutions for appointing the aforesaid persons
as Independent Directors for a further term of five
consecutive years has been sought in the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting of the
Company. (Please refer to Item Nos. 5, 6 and 7 of
the Notice).

Directors liable to retirement by rotation

The Independent Directors hold office for a
fixed period of five years from the date of their
appointment and are not liable to retire by
rotation. Out of the remaining 5 Non-Executive/
Non-Independent Directors, in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr N. S Sekhsaria
and Mr Christof Hassig being longest in office
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer their
candidature for re-appointment as Directors.

Board Effectiveness

a. Familiarization Program for the

Independent Directors

The Company has over the years developed
a robust familiarization process for the
newly appointed Directors with respect
to their roles and responsibilities, way
ahead of the prescription of the regulatory
provisions. The process has been aligned
with the requirements under the Act and
other related Regulations. This process inter-
alia includes providing an overview of the
Cement Industry, the Company’s business
model, the risks and opportunities etc.
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Details of the Familiarization Programme
are  explained in the Corporate
Governance Report and are also available
on the Company’s website at http:/
www.acclimited.com/assets/new/pdf/
CG/Familiarization-Programme-for-

Independent-Directors.pdf
b. Board Evaluation

its annual
own

The Board has carried out
performance evaluation of its
performance, the Directors individually as
well as the evaluation of the working of its
Audit, Nomination & Remuneration, Risk
Management and Compliance Committees
as mandated under the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations. The criteria applied in the
evaluation process are explained in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel

of the Company in terms of the provisions of the

Act read with The Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 as on December 31, 2018:

. Mr Neeraj Akhoury, Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

. Mr Sunil Nayak, Chief Financial Officer

. Mr Ramaswami Kalidas, Company Secretary
& Head Compliance

Remuneration Policy and Criteria for selection
of candidates for appointment as Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
leadership positions

in place a policy for
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Members of the Executive
Committee (ExCo) as well as a well-defined criteria
for the selection of candidates for appointment
to the said positions which has been approved
by the Board. The Policy broadly lays down the
guiding principles, philosophy and the basis for
payment of remuneration to the executive and
non-executive Directors (by way of sitting fees
and commission), Key Managerial Personnel and
ExCo. The criteria for selection of candidates for
the above positions cover the various factors
and attributes which are considered by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the

The Company has
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Board of Directors while making a selection of
the candidates. The above policy alongwith the
criteria for selection is available at the website

of the Company at http://www.acclimited.com/

assets/new/pdf/CG/Policy remuneration
selection for appointment.pdf

MEETINGS
Board Meetings

During the year six Board Meetings were
convened and held, the details of which are given
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises five members.
The Chairman of the Committeeis an Independent
Director. The Committee met six times during the
year. Details of the role and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee, the particulars of meetings held
and attendance of the Members at such Meetings
are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

CSR Committee

The CSR Committee comprises of four members
of which three are Independent Directors. The
Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director. The Committee met thrice during
the reporting period. Details of the role and
functioning of the Committee are given in the
Corporate Governance Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH  RELATED
PARTIES

The Company has developed a Related Party
Transactions Manual and Standard Operating
Procedures for the purpose of identification and
monitoring Related Party transactions.

All transactions with Related Parties are placed
before the Audit Committee as also the Board
for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the
Audit Committee and the Board is obtained for
the transactions which are foreseeable and of
a repetitive nature. The transactions entered
into pursuant to the approvals so granted are
subjected to audit and a statement giving details
of all related party transactions is placed before
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
on a quarterly basis. The statement is supported
by a certificate from the CEO & MD and the CFO.



30.

31.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as
approved by the Board of Directors has been
uploaded on the Company’s website and can
be seen at the link http://www.acclimited.
com/assets/new/pdf/CG/PolicyonRPT.pdf
All transactions entered into with related parties
during the year were on arm’s length basis and
were in the ordinary course of business. The
details of the material related party transactions
entered into during the year as per the policy on
Related Party Transactions approved by the Board
have been reported in Form AOC 2 annexed to
the Directors' Report as Annexure 'C..

None of the Directors and the Key Managerial
Personnel has any pecuniary relationships or
transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

TRANSFER OF EQUITY SHARES
UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO
THE [INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

In line with the statutory requirements, the
Company has transferred to the credit of the
Investor Education and Protection Fund set up
by the Government of India, equity shares in
respect of which dividend had remained unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive
years within the time lines laid down by the
MCA. Unpaid/unclaimed dividend for seven years
of more has also been transferred to the IEPF
pursuant to the requirements under the Act.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

Complaint filed under the Competition Act
by the Builders Association of India against
cement manufacturers - Appeal before the
Supreme Court of India

As reported in detail in reports of earlier years,
a penalty of ¥ 1,147.59 crore was levied on the
Company by the Competition Commission of
India based on a complaint filed by the Builders’
Association of India for alleged violation of the
provisions of the Competition Act.

The National Company Law Appellate Tribunal
(NCLAT) vide its judgment dated 25" July 2018,
has dismissed the appeal of the Company
upholding the levy of penalty of ¥1147.59 crore
as imposed by the Competition Commission of
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India vide its Order dated 31" August 2016. The
NCLAT initially vide its Order dated 7" November
2016 had stayed the operation of the CCl's Order
subject to deposit of 10% of the penalty amount.

The Company has preferred an appeal before
the Hon'ble Supreme Court against the above
Order of NCLAT. The Hon’ble Supreme Court vide
its Order dated 5™ October 2018, has admitted
the Company’s civil appeal and ordered for
continuance of the interim orders passed by
NCLAT towards stay on the demand subject to
deposit of 10% of the penalty amount. The matter
is still subjudice.

As at December 31, 2018, the penalty amount of
% 1147.59 crore and interest thereon has been
disclosed as a contingent liability in the Notes to
Financial Statements.(Refer Note —40(A)(a)).

CCl's Order on Complaint filed by Director,
Supplies & Disposals, State of Haryana in 2013

The Director, Supplies & Disposals, State of
Haryana had filed a complaint before CCl
alleging collusion and bid rigging by cement
manufacturers in violation of Section 3(1) and
3(3)(d) of the Competition Act. In January 2017,
the Competition Commission of India (CCl) passed
an Order against seven cement manufacturers
including the Company imposing a penalty
calculated at the rate of 0.3% of the average
turnover of the last three years viz. 2012-13 to
2014-15. In respect of the Company, the amount
of penalty works out to X 35.32 crore.

An Appeal is pending before NCLAT in the said
matter against the Orders of the Competition
Commission of India.

As at December 31, 2018, the penalty amount of
X 35.32 crore is disclosed as a contingent liability
in the Notes to Financial Statements.(Refer Note
40(A)(b)).

Reference is drawn to the 'Emphasis of Matter' by
the Auditors in their reports on the above matters.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditor

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAl Firm Registration Number
117366W/W-100018) were  appointed  as
Statutory Auditor of the Company at the
81 Annual General Meeting held on
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March 29, 2017 to hold office from the conclusion
of the said Meeting till the conclusion of the
86™ Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022
subject to ratification of their appointment
by the Members at every intervening Annual
General Meeting held thereafter. The requirement
of seeking ratification of the members for
continuance of their appointment has been
withdrawn consequent upon the changes made
by the Companies (Amendment)Act, 2017 with
effect from May 07, 2018.Hence the resolution
seeking ratification of the members for their
appointment is not being placed at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

Cost Auditor

M/s D C Dave & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No 30611), have been appointed
as Cost Auditor of the Company for the year
2018 under Section 148 of the Act read with The
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment
Rules 2014.

M/s D C Dave & Co have confirmed that they
are free from any disqualifications as specified
under the Act. They have further confirmed their
independent status.

The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is
required to be placed before the Members in a
general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly,
Resolution seeking Members' ratification for the
remuneration payable to M/s D C Dave & Co, Cost
Auditor is included at item No.11 of the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting.

Secretarial Auditor

M/s. Pramod S Shah & Associates, a firm of
Company Secretaries in Practice, have been
appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company pursuant to the provisions of
Section204ofthe Act,the Companies(Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended.
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed to
the Board’s Report as Annexure‘D:.

AWARDS

During the year under review, your Company
received numerous awards and accolades which
were conferred by reputable organizations and
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distinguished bodies for achievements in diverse
fields such as Health & Safety, Manufacturing
and Environment Management, Corporate
Governance, etc.

Corporate Excellence

° ClI-ITC  Sustainability Awards 2018 -
Received the highest recognition for
‘Outstanding  Accomplishment, under
Corporate Excellence category.

Business and Financial Reporting Excellence

° Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) - Awarded a plaque
'‘Commended Annual Report in Category
VIl - Manufacturing and Trading Sector
(Turnover equal to X 3000 crore or more)' for
Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Corporate Social Responsibility

° The Government of Odisha awarded
ACC the ‘Most Innovative CSR Project’
for VidyaUtkarsh, at the Make in Odisha
Conclave 2018 in Bhubaneswar, in
recognition towards creating a social,
environmental and economic value for its
host Communities in Odisha.

° Indywood CSR Excellence Award 2018
in the category of Best CSR practices in
Promoting Biodiversity.

° Lakheri plant was awarded the CSR Health
Impact Award - Bronze, for the Women and
Child Health Initiative category.

° ‘Golden Peacock Award for Corporate Social
Responsibility’ at the 12" International
Conference on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) held in Bengaluru.

Environment & Sustainability

° 5 Star rating by the Ministry of Mines
for Sustainable Development to Govari
Limestone Mines in Chanda, Mehgaon and
Bamangawan Mines in Kymore and Jamul
Limestone Mines.

° Gagal Plant won 'Sustainability 4.0 2018
award' instituted by Frost & Sullivan
and The Energy and Resources Institute
(TERI) for continious improvement in the
field of Sustainable Development in the
category 'Leaders Award-Large Business
Process Sector. Sustainability 4.0 awards



is designed to honour the efforts made
by the companies who actively integrate
sustainability principles into their business
culture.

The Company was awarded the GreenPro
certification for ACC Suraksha Power, ACC
Concrete+ Xtra Strong, ACC HPC Long
Life, ACC Gold Water Shield and ACC F2R
Superfast products by the Confederation
of Indian Industries (Cll) at the 14 Green
Cementech conference.

Thondebhavi Plant was recognised as an
Energy Efficient Unit by the Confederation
of Indian Industry (Cll) at the 19* National
Award function for Excellence in Energy
Management 2018.

Kymore, Jamul and Wadi Plants were
recognised as ‘Excellent Energy Efficient
Unit’ by the Confederation of India Industry
(CIl) at the 19" National Award function for
Excellence in Energy Management 2018.

Jamul Plant was awarded 1 Runner-Up in
Large Scale Category at the Confederation
of Indian Industry (Cll) Energy Conservation
(encon) Awards function 2018.

Thondebhavi Plant won the 1%t Prize
in Energy Excellence in Grinding Unit
category at the Quality Circle Forum of
India (QCFI), Hyderabad Chapter awards, in
collaboration with Cement Manufacturers
Association (CMA), National Council for
Cement and Building Materials (NCCBM)
and Cement Sustainability Initiative.

Jamul Plant won the 1% Prize in Energy
Excellence in Integrated Unit category at
the Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI),
Hyderabad Chapterawards, in collaboration
with Cement Manufacturers Association
(CMA), National Council for Cement and
Building Materials (NCCBM) and Cement
Sustainability Initiative.

Wadi Plant won the 1% Prize in Alternate
Fuels and Raw Materials Excellence and
2" Prize in Environment Excellence at
the Quality Circle Forum of India (QCFI),
Hyderabad Chapterawards, in collaboration
with Cement Manufacturers Association
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(CMA), National Council for Cement and
Building Materials (NCCBM) and Cement
Sustainability Initiative.

° ACC was conferred with the prestigious ‘Yes
Bank Natural Capital Award 2018’in the‘Eco-
Corporate category under Manufacturing
Sector’for its sustainability initiatives.

Manufacturing

° At the Mines Environment and Mineral
Conservation Week (MEMCW) celebrated
in Dehradun, Gagal Plant won the
1t Prize in Overall Performance, Mineral
Conservation,  Scientific  Development
of Mines, Sustainable Development and
Afforestation and the 2" prize in Air and
Water Monitoring.

Communication

° Awarded Silver Prize in the Environmental
Communications category for Sustainable
Development Report 2017 at the 58" ABCI
Annual Awards.

° Awarded Bronze Prize in the Social
Responsibility Communications category
for Muskaan - an animated film on female
infanticide at the 58" ABCl Annual Awards.

° Awarded Bronze Prize in the External
Magazines category for the Indian Concrete
Journal at the 58" ABCI Annual Awards.

Corporate Governance

° ACC won the Golden Peacock Award for
Excellence in Corporate Governance for the
year 2018 at the 18™ Annual London Global
Convention on Corporate Governance &
Sustainability and Global Business Meet in
London.

° Awarded a Certificate of Recognition for
Excellence in Corporate Governance by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(Icsh.

Corporate

° Awarded the title of the ‘Third Fastest
Growing Company - Large Category 2017-
18" (Cement Category) at the Third Indian
Cement Review Awards, held at the 10%

Cement Expo.
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Health &Safety

° Chaibasa Plant won the award for ‘OSH
Innovation Award-Employee Awareness-
Reactive’ for the implementation of In-Cab
assessment for drivers and counselling
on critical driving behaviours during
an assessment on harsh acceleration,
harsh brakes, over speeding and harsh
manoeuvres.

° Lakheri Plant won the award for ‘OSH
Innovation Award-Employee Awareness—
Proactive’ for the implementation of
Proactive analysis of GPS data and
counselling through Driver Management
Centres, which resulted in a lower incidence
of road accidents and an increase in the
percentage of safe kilometres at the
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) India
Awards 2018.

° ACC was adjudged winner of ‘Innovation
in OSH-Safety implementation—Proactive’
for its implementation of In-Cab camera in
truck - a tool used to identify behavioural
aspects of truck drivers of truck drivers
in response to highly dynamic traffic
conditions at the Occupational Safety and
Health (OSH) India Awards 2018.

° Thondebhavi Plant received the prestigious
Greentech Safety Award 2018 in the
‘Gold Category, in the Cement sector for
‘Outstanding  Achievements in Safety
Management, at the 17" Annual Greentech
Safety Award.

° Jamul Plant won the ‘Rio Tinto Health &
Safety Award - for Opencast Mines’ (2017-
2018) for their exemplary performance in
implementation of safety management
systems and safe work culture.

ENHANCING SHAREHOLDERS VALUE

Our commitment is to create and return value
to shareholders. Accordingly, your Company is
committed to achieving high levels of operating
performance, cost competitiveness, enhancing
the productive asset and resource base and
striving for excellence in all areas of operations.
Your Company firmly believes thatits successinthe
market place and good reputation are among the
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primary determinants of value to the shareholder.
Our close relationship with customers and an
understanding of their challenges drive the
development of new products and services. With
our expertise and know-how, we aim to offer our
customers solutions that enhance their projects
and build trust in our partnerships. Beyond these
solutions, our market growth activities are focused
on creating new channels to serve our customers
more effectively. Innovation is present not only
in our products and services, but also in the way
we execute growth opportunities. Anticipating
customer needs early and being able to address
them effectively requires a strong commercial
backbone. At ACC, we are developing this
strength by institutionalizing sound commercial
processes and building world-class commercial
capabilities across our marketing and sales.

Your Company is also committed to creating value
for its other stakeholders by ensuring that its
corporate actions positively impact the economic,
societal and environmental dimensions of the
Triple Bottom Line.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Annual Report contains a separate section on
the Company’s corporate governance practices,
together with a certificate from the Company’s
Auditors confirming compliance, as per SEBI
Listing Regulations.

BUSINESSRESPONSIBILITYREPORTING

A separate section on Business Responsibility
forms part of this Annual Report as required under
Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information on conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated in
Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule, 8 of
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided
in Annexure ‘E’ to the Directors’ Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to the remuneration and
other details as required under Section 197(12)
of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder is
enclosed as Annexure ‘F'to the Board’s Report.
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The information in respect of employees of the
Company required pursuant to Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 will be provided
upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act,
the Report and Accounts are being sent to the
Members and others entitled thereto, excluding
the aforesaid Annexure which is available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered
Office of the Company during business hours on
working days of the Company up to the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member
is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such
Member may write to the Company Secretary in
this regard.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company has been
placed on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at http://www.acclimited.com/newsite/
annualreport2018/Form_MGT_7.pdf

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL
STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirms that the Company
has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies
Secretaries of India (SS1 and SS2) respectively
relating to Meetings of the Board and its
Committees which have mandatory application.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and
according to the information and explanations
obtained by them, your Directors make the
following statement in terms of Section 134 of the
Act:

a) that in the preparation of the annual
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b)  thatsuch accounting policies as mentioned
in Note 2 of the Notes to the Accounts have
been selected and applied consistently
and judgment and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of

42,
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affairs of the Company as on December 31,
2018, and of the profit of the Company for
the year ended on that date;

Q) that proper and sufficient care has been
taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls laid
down by the Directors were followed by
the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f) that proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws
have been devised and such systems were
adequate and were operating effectively.

INTEGRATED REPORTING

The Company being one of the top 500 companies
in the Country in terms of market capitalization,
as part of its voluntary initiatives, has drawn up its
first Integrated Report which encompasses both
financial and non-financial information to enable
the Members to take well-informed decisions and
have a better understanding of the Company’s
long term perspective. The Report also touches
upon aspects such as Organisation’s strategy,
framework, performance
prospects of value creation based on the six forms

governance and
of capital viz. financial capital, manufactured
capital, intellectual capital, human capital, social
and relationship capital and nature capital. The
Integrated Report for the year 2018 has also
been hosted on the Company’s website www.
acclimited.com.

The Annual Report also carries a detailed section
containing the “Business Responsibility Report”.
Since 2007, the Company has been publishing
an annual Corporate Sustainable Development
Report conforming to the guidelines of the Global
Reporting Initiative. From the year 2014, these
reports are based on the GRI G4 guidelines in
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accordance with the “Comprehensive” option and
have been externally assured.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the support received
by the Company from the Central and State
Government  Ministries and Departments,
shareholders, customers, business associates,
bankers, employees, trade unions and all other
stakeholders.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Board'’s Report and Management Discussion
& Analysis may contain certain statements
describingthe Company’sobjectives, expectations
or forecasts that appear to be forward-looking
within the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations while actual outcomes may
differ materially from what is expressed herein.
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The Company is not obliged to update any such
forward-looking statements. Some important
factors that could influence the Company’s
operations comprise economic developments,
pricing and demand and supply conditions
in global and domestic markets, changes in
government regulations, tax laws, litigation and
industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N S Sekhsaria

Chairman

Mumbai
February 05,2019
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

This Policy is called “ACC Limited — Dividend Distribution
Policy” (hereinafter referred to as“the Policy”). The Policy
is framed pursuant to Regulation 43A of Securities
& Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Policy
has come into effect from December 17, 2016 as per
approval granted by the Board.

The Policy lays down the broad criteria which the
Company would take into consideration for the purpose
of ascertaining the amount of dividend to be declared
keeping in mind the need to maintain a balance
between the payout ratio and retained earnings, in
order to address future needs of the Company. The
policy serves as a guideline for the Board of Directors
and the decision of the Board of Directors with respect
to the amount of dividend declared for any given period
will be final and shall not be open to challenge by any
person on the basis of the Policy.

Dividend would continue to be declared on per share
basis on the Ordinary Equity Shares of the Company
having face value of ¥ 10 each. The Company currently
has no other class of shares. Dividend other than interim
dividend shall be declared at the annual general meeting
of the shareholders based on the recommendation of
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has the
authority to declare interim dividend.

Subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the
Company’s dividend payout will be determined based
on available financial resources, growth/investment
requirements and fair shareholder return. The Company
will broadly take into consideration the following
financial parameters and/or internal and external factors
to determine whether or not to declare dividend or to
determine the quantum of dividend to be declared.

INTERNAL FACTORS

° Profits earned during the financial year and
the retained profits of the previous years in
accordance with the provisions of Section
123 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed
thereunder;

° Cash flow position of the Company and the
debt : equity ratio;

° Projections with regard to the performance of the
Company;

° Fund requirement to finance Capital Expenditure;

° Fund requirement to finance any organic/
inorganic growth opportunities or to finance
working capital needs of the Company;

° Opportunities for investment of the funds of the
Company to capture future growth;

° Dividend payout history.
EXTERNAL FACTORS

° Business cycles and long term/ short term
industry outlook;

° Cost of external financing;

° Changes in the Government policies, rate of
inflation and taxes structure etc,;

° Quantum of dividend payout by other comparable
concerns etc.

The Company may recommend additional special
dividend in special circumstances.

In the event of a loss or inadequacy of profits in a given

year, Company may, taking into consideration the
shareholder expectations, past dividend payout history
etc. declare payment of dividend out of its reserves as
may be permitted by the law.

Likewise, in the event of challenging circumstances such
as adverse economic cycles and industry projections,
the performance of the Company in the coming years,
pressure on cash flow on account of various factors
such as higher working capital requirements etc., the
Company may, decide not to declare a dividend even
when in a given year, the Company had generated
profits.

In case it is proposed not to declare dividend during any
financial year, the grounds thereof and the information
on the manner in which the retained profits of the
Company, if any, are being utilized shall be disclosed to
the Members in the Board’s Report forming part of the
Annual Report of the Company for the given financial
year.

The Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director and
the Chief Financial Officer, considering various internal
and external factors and the overall performance of
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the Company, shall jointly make a recommendation
to the Board of Directors with regard to whether or
not to declare a dividend and in case a dividend is
recommended, the quantum of dividend to be declared

The retained earnings of the Company may be used in
any of the following ways:

. Capital expenditure, and for the purpose of any
organic and/ or inorganic growth,

° Declaration of dividend,

@ ACC LIMITED

° Issue of Bonus shares or buy back of shares,

° Other permissible usage as per the Companies
Act, 2013.

The policy may be modified as may, in the opinion of the
Board of Directors be deemed necessary.

The Policy will be available on the Company’s website:
www.acclimited.com and will also be disclosed in the
Company’s Annual Report.
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ANNEXURE ‘B’'TO BOARD'’S REPORT

CSR POLICY STATEMENT

Our vision is to be one of the most respected companies in India, delivering superior and sustainable value
to all our customers, business partners, shareholders, employees, and host communities.

Our CSR initiatives focus on the holistic development of our host communities while creating social,
environmental and economic value to the society.

To pursue these objectives we will continue to:

. Uphold and promote the principles of inclusive growth and equitable development.

. Devise and implement Community Development Plans based on the needs and priorities of our host
communities and measure the effectiveness of such development programmes.

. Work actively in the areas of Livelihood advancement, Enhancing employability and Income
Generation, Improving Quality and reach of Education, Promoting Health and Sanitation, conserving
the Environment and supporting local Sports, Arts and Culture.

. Collaborate with like-minded bodies such as Governments, Civil Society Organisations and Academic
Institutions in pursuit of our Goals.

. Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives.
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO BOARD'’S REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(Schedule VII - (ii)
Promotion of
education including
special education
and employment
enhancing vocation
skills especially
among children,
women, elderly

and the differently
abled and livelihood
enhancement
projects)

Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
Bundi (Rajasthan),

Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),
Bargarh (Odisha),

West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),
Purulia (West Bengal),

Durg (Chhatisgarh),

Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
Bellary (Karnataka),
Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
Gulbarga(Karnataka),
Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu),
Erode (Tamil Nadu) and Kerala

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, 3. Average net profit of the Company for last
including overview of projects or programs three financial years.
proposed'to be undertaken'and a refer.ence to |Years 2017 2016 2015 |
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or Net Profit 125872 86276  818.93
programs. ®in Crore)
Please :efefr ;c]o tze CSRI EOIICY statement set outat Average net profit of the company for last three
page 81 of this Annual Report. financial years is ¥ 980.14 Crore.
Web link : http://www.acclimited.com/source/
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of
new/csr/CSR-Policy-finalised-after-28-Nov-2016- the amount as in itepm 3 above§ P
Board-CSR-Committee-meeting.pdf
% 19.60 Crore
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
Mr Shailesh Haribhakti, Chairman 5.  Details of CSR spends for the financial year.
(Independent Director) a)  Total amount to be spent for the financial
Ms Falguni Nayar, Member year ended December 31, 2018:
(Independent Director) % 19.60 Crore
Mr Farrokh K Kavarana, Member b)  Amount unspent, if any:
(Independent Director)
Not Applicable
Mr Neeraj Akhoury, Member
(MD&CEO)
c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
Sr.No.  CSR Project/Activities Sector Locations - Districts (States) Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Outlay  Spentonthe Expenditure  Spent:Direct
(Budget) project or upto or through
Projector programs(X  reporting  implementation
Program in Crore) period agency in
wise in Sub - Heads: in Crore) Crore)
Crore)
1. Direct
Expenditure
on Projects or
parishad
2.Overheads*
1. ACCDISHA  Youth Employability Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 5 3.93 3.93 3.93

@ ACC LIMITED



@ Board & Management Reports

Sr.No.  CSR Project/Activities Sector Locations - Districts (States) Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Outlay  Spentonthe Expenditure  Spent:Direct
(Budget) project or upto or through
Projector programs(X  reporting  implementation
Program in Crore) period @ agency in
wise (Tin Sub - Heads: in Crore) Crore)
Crore)
1. Direct
Expenditure
on Projects or
parishad
2, Overheads*
2. ACC-LIESA  Sustainable Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 3 1.77 1.77 1.77
Agriculture Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
(Schedule Vi - (i)~ Bundi (Rajasthan),
Promotion of Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),
education including  Bargarh (Odisha),
special education West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),
and employment Purulia (West Bengal),
enhancing vocation Durg (Chhatisgarh),
skills especially Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
among children Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
women, elderly Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
and the differently Gulbarga (Karnataka),
abled and livelihood ~ Bellary (Karnataka),
enhancement Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka)
projects) and Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
3. ACC - Women Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 3 2.09 2.09 2.09
Swavlamban Empowerment Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
(Schedule VIl - Bundi (Rajasthan),

(iii) Promoting
gender, equality,
empowering
women, setting up
homes and hostels
for women and
orphans; setting up
old age homes, day
care centres and
such other facilities
for senior citizens
and measures for
reducing inequalities
faced by socially
and economically

backward groups)

Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),
Bargarh (Odisha),

West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),
Purulia (West Bengal),

Durg (Chhatisgarh),
Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
Gulbarga (Karnataka),

Bellary (Karnataka),
Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
and Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
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Sr.No.  CSR Project/Activities Sector Locations - Districts (States) Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Outlay  Spentonthe Expenditure  Spent:Direct
(Budget) project or upto or through
Projector programs(X  reporting  implementation
Program in Crore) period @ agency in
wise (Tin Sub - Heads: in Crore) Crore)
Crore)
1. Direct
Expenditure
on Projects or
parishad
2, Overheads*
4.  ACCVidya Quiality Education Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 4 5.46 5.46 5.46
Utkarsh (Schedule VIl - (“) Katn|(Madhya Pradesh),
Promotion of Bund.l (Ra.Jasthan),
education including Gaurigan; (U.ttarpradesh),
special education Bargarh (Odisha),
and employment West .Slnghbhum (Jharkhand),
enhancing vocation Purulia (Wes't Bengal),
skills especially Durg (Chhatisgarh),
among children, Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
women, elderly Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
and the differently Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
abled and livelihood  GulParga (Karnataka),
enhancement Bellary (Karnataka),
projects) Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
Shrawasti (Uttar Pradesh),
Shahazanhapur (Uttar
Pradesh), Jaunpur (Uttar
Pradesh), Mirzapur (Uttar
Pradesh),Mewat (Haryana),
Sirmaur (Himachal Pradesh),
Sheopur (Madhya Pradesh),
Rudraprayag (Uttarakhand),
Alwar (Rajasthan), and
Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
5. ACCVidya Scholarship and Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 2 0.73 0.73 0.73
Saarathi support Katni (Madhya Pradesh),

(Schedule VII - (ii)
Promotion of
education including
special education
and employment
enhancing vocation
skills especially
among children,
women, elderly

and the differently
abled and livelihood
enhancement
projects)

Bundi (Rajasthan),

Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),
Bargarh (Odisha),

West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),
Purulia (West Bengal),

Durg (Chhatisgarh),

Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
Gulbarga (Karnataka),

Bellary (Karnataka),
Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
and Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
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Sr.No.  CSR Project/Activities Sector Locations - Districts (States) Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Outlay  Spentonthe Expenditure  Spent:Direct
(Budget) project or upto or through
Projector programs(X  reporting  implementation
Program in Crore) period @ agency in
wise (3in Sub - Heads: in Crore) Crore)
Crore)
1. Direct

Expenditure
on Projects or
parishad

2.Overheads*

6. ACC- Health Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 3 2.00 2.00 2.00
Arogyam (Schedule VIl - Katni (Madhya Pradesh),

Bundi (Rajasthan),

Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),

Bargarh (Odisha),

West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),

Purulia (West Bengal),

Durg (Chhatisgarh),

Dhanbad (Jharkhand),

Chandrapur (Maharashtra),

(i) Eradicating
hunger poverty

and malnutrition,
promoting
preventive health
care and sanitation
and making available

safe drinking water)
Yavatmal (Maharashtra),

Gulbarga (Karnataka),
Bellary (Karnataka),
Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),

and Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)

7. ACC- Sanitation Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 3 2.28 2.28 2.28
Sampoorn (Schedule VIl - Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
Swachhata Bundi (Rajasthan),

(i) Eradicating
Gauriganj (Uttarpradesh),

Bargarh (Odisha),

West Singhbhum (Jharkhand),
Purulia (West Bengal),

Durg (Chhatisgarh),

Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
Chandrapur (Maharashtra),

hunger poverty
and malnutrition,
promoting, health
care including
preventive health
care and sanitation
and making available
safe drinking water) Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
Gulbarga (Karnataka),
Bellary (Karnataka),
Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),

Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
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Sr.No.  CSRProject/Activities Sector Locations - Districts (States) Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
Outlay  Spentonthe Expenditure  Spent:Direct
(Budget) project or upto or through
Projector programs(X  reporting  implementation
Program in Crore) period @ agency in
wise (Tin Sub - Heads: in Crore) Crore)
Crore)
1. Direct
Expenditure
on Projects or
parishad
2, Overheads*
8. ACC Conservation of Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 1 1.17 1.17 1.17
Sanrakshit Environment Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
Paryavaran (Schedule VI Bundi (Rajasthan),
— (iv) Ensuring Gauriganj (U.ttarpradesh),
environmental Bargarh (Odisha),
sustainability, West §|nghbhum (Jharkhand),
ecological balance, Purulia (Wes't Bengal),
protection of flora ~ Purg (Chhatisgarh),
and fauna, animal Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
welfare, agro forestry, Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
conservation of Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
natural resources and Gulbarga (Karnataka),
maintaining quality Bel’lary (Karnataka),
of soil, air and water;) Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
Aurangabad (Maharashtra)
and Beed (Maharashtra)
9. ACC-Drona Promoting Local, Arts Bilaspur (Himachal Pradesh), 1 1.02 1.02 1.02
and Culture Katni (Madhya Pradesh),
(Schedule VIl - Bunqi (Ra.jasthan),
(vii) Training to Gauriganj (U.ttarpradesh),
promote rural sports, Bargarh (Odisha),
nationally recognized West?mghbhum (Jharkhand),
sports, Paralympic Purulia (Wes.t Bengal),
sports and Olympic ~ Purg (Chhatisgarh),
sports) Dhanbad (Jharkhand),
) Chandrapur (Maharashtra),
v) F’rotectlo.n of Yavatmal (Maharashtra),
national heritage, art Gulbarga (Karnataka),
and culture including
) Bellary (Karnataka),
restoration of Chikkaballarpur (Karnataka),
buildings and sites of and Coimbatore (Tamil Nadu)
historical importance
and works of art;
setting up public
libraries; promotion
and development of
traditional arts and
handicrafts;
TOTAL 25.00 20.45 2045 20.45

* Company has spent on salary/administrative overheads in addition to ¥ 20.45 Crore.
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Details of some of the implementing agencies:

1. ACC Trust, 2. Agranee Jan Kalyan Anusthan, 3.Hand in Hand, Jamul, 4. Amhi Amchya Arogyasathi, 5. Patang,
Sambalpur, Odisha, 6. Head Held High, Bangalore 7. ACC MAVIM Loksanchalit Sadhan Kendra - CMRC- Ghugus,
8. Imayam Social welfare Association, 9. American India Foundation, New Delhi 10. Siruthuli, Tamil Nadu
11. Dilasa Janvikas Pratishthan, Aurangabad, 12. Forum for Rural Development (FORD), 13. Shanti Ashram, Tamil Nadu
14. HARITIKA, 15. Himachal Pradesh Voluntary Health Association(HPVHA), Shimla, 16. Ranthambhor Seva Sansthan,
Jaipur 17. IIMPACT, New Delhi, 18. PHIA Foundation, Ranchi, Jharkhand 19. Jan Sevak Samiti, Bhilai, 20. Jan Mangal
Sansthan 21. Loka kalyan Parishad, 22. Mahashakti Foundation, 23.Mahatma Gandhi Integrated development and
Education Institute, Bandikui, Rajasthan, 24.Naad Gunjan Kala Parishad, 25. Zivanta Analytics, Kolkata 26. Development
Alternative, New Delhi 27. HelpAge India, New Delhi, 28. Sarva Seva Samiti Sanstha, Bargarh 29. SATTVA Media and
consulting Pvt. Ltd, Bangalore, 30. SEED CSR, New Delhi, 31.Self reliant initiatives through joint action (SRIJAN),
32. SERDS, Kadirannagari Palli, Bagepalli Tal, 33. Loka Kalyan Parishad, 34. Sanskar, 35. Association for Sarva Seva
farm 36. Manav Vikas Sansthan, 37. Seetha Skill Centre, 38. UDYOGINI, 39. AHEAD Trust, 40. Sadbhawana Sewa Evam
Shiksha Sansthan, Jamul, 41. GPR Strategies and Solutions.

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount
in its board report.

Not Applicable

7. Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy
is in compliance with CSR objective and Policy of the company.

ACC CSR projects were designed, implemented and periodically monitored based on need assessment reports
and CSR Policy of the Company, which in turn is based on and implemented as per statutory requirements.

SHAILESH HARIBHAKTI NEERAJ AKHOURY
Chairman, CSR Committee Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 5,2019
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ANNEXURE‘C’'TO BOARD’S REPORT

FORM NO. AOC-2

January to December - 2018

Particulars of contracts contracts/arrangements made with related parties

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

No contracts or arrangements or transactions were entered into during the year ended December 31, 2018, which

are not at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended December

31,2018 are as follows;

Name of the related party Nature of Duration of Salient Terms Amount
Relationship Contract (in%
Crore.)
Nature of Contract
Purchase of goods Holding Company
Ambuja Cements Limited Holding Company |June 1,2018 - Based on Transfer 12.1
December 31,2018 | Pricing Guidelines
12.1
Sale of Goods
Ambuja Cements Limited Holding Company |June 1,2018 - Based on Transfer 26.2
December 31,2018 | Pricing Guidelines
26.2
Use of Technology and Knowhow
Holcim Technology Ltd Fellow Subsidiary |January 1,2018 - Based on Transfer 144.5
December 31,2018 | Pricing Guidelines
144.5

Notes:

1. On April 16,2018, the Shareholders have approved the Master Supply Agreement between the Company and
Ambuja Cements Ltd for sale of purchase of cement, clinker, raw materials and spare parts
2. OnJune 13,2018 the Shareholders have approved the execution of the Technology and Knowhow Agreement
with Holcim Technology Ltd for 3 years from January 1, 2018

ACC LIMITED
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ACC Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by ACC Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended 31 December, 2018, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the year ended 31 December, 2018
according to the provisions of:

(1)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made there under;

(2)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(3)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed there under;

(4)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made there under;

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended
from time to time;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (SS -1 &SS - 2).

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with a proper balance of Executive Director,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
No change in the composition of the Board of Directors
have taken place during the period under review..

Adequate notice is given to all directors before
scheduling the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for enabling meaningful
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During the period, all the decisions in the Board
Meetings were carried unanimously.

We have relied on the representation made by the
Company, its Officers and Reports of the Statutory
Auditors for the systems and mechanism framed by the
Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and
Regulations applicable to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company which are commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

@ ACC LIMITED

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned
above.

We further report that during the audit period there
were no specific events/actions which have a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For Pramod S. Shah & Associates
(Practising Company Secretaries)

Pramod Shah-Partner
Pramod S. Shah & Associates
FCS No.: 334

COP No.:3804

Date: 28/01/2019
Place: Mumbai
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

A1: POWER COST OPTIMISATION

During the year efforts were made to reduce the impact
of increasing electrical energy cost by partly replacing
grid power through consumption of Open Access (OA)
power from comparatively cheaper sources. However,
abrupt changes in additional charges for OA power
through Exchange made it unviable most of the time.
Inspite of this, enhanced intake of Solar power through
Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) at Thondebhavi
increased the Open Access consumption to 81.3 % from
73%. At Kudithini, the OA power reduced to 83.5 %
from 87%, inspite of enhanced intake of Solar Power. At
Gagal the OA quantum reduced to 6.44 % from 32%. In
addition, consumption of OA power was started at Wadi
and Madukkarai with 10% & 5% respectively of the grid
power consumed.The total saving was I 16.8 Crore in
power cost YOY basis.

A2 : RENEWABLE POWER OBLIGATION

Your Company is trying to reduce the cash outflow for
purchase of RECs against Renewable Power Obligation.

The captive wind power generation sources contributed
considerably in this front. Besides this, the Company has
sourced 44.49 million units collectively at Thondebhavi
and Kudithini to fulfill the Solar RPO and excess units
are being used to fulfill Non Solar RPO. This resulted an
additional saving of approxX 5 Crore.

A3: CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Energy conservation and efficiency measures were
undertakeninvariousareasofthe cementmanufacturing
and Captive Power Plants (CPPs), through Operational
and Capex measures. A few highlights are as under:

Dynamic reactive power compensation to
improve grid power factor

Focus on Productivity Rate Index (PRI)
improvement through Computational Fluid

Dynamics (CFD) studies.
Energy audits of all integrated plants
. Installation of High level controllers

Installation of medium voltage drives for process
fans and Boiler Feed Pumps

Replacement of conventional lights with LED
across the plants
Jamul, Wadi and Kymore plants were adjudged as
Excellent Energy Efficient units by Confederation of
Indian Industries (Cll) during the year.

Plant wise briefs are as under

Jamul - Installation of dynamic reactive power
compensation system to improve the power
factor; Installation of high level control system for
kiln control;

Gagal - Installation of high level controller for
kiln control; Improving coal conveying phase
density by controlling the speed; Compressed air
optimization and daily tracking of compressed air
power consumption; Design and implementation
of ‘Meal Curtain’ through CFD Study for
improvement of Productivity Rate Index, as well
as coating reduction at Kiln inlet;

Chanda-Installation of High level controller for
kiln control; Installation of Online Condenser
Cleaning system in CPP;

. Wadi -Condenser tube replacement of TG 2&5.
Improvement of Calciner string fan efficiency
by replacing with high efficiency fan & drive;
Modification in Cooler duct at Wadi 2 through
CFD Study to reduce dust accumulation in cooler
riser duct and improve kiln stability; Selection and
fixing AFR feeding point through CFD study for
optimum combustion and enhancement of AFR
usage; Reduction in clinker cooler Temperature by
replacement of cooler fan and motor(FA 4 & 5) and
Replacement of impeller of Cooler fan FA 6 & FA 7;
Replacement of Cooler 3 compartment plates;
Reduction of losses by replacing GRR with SPRS in
Raw Mill #1 fan; Reduction in primary air in burner
from 9.9 % to 6.7% by replacing the existing
fan with high pressure and low volume blower;
Replacement of Separator cone of Cement mill;

Tikaria —Conversion of Cement Mill # 1 to mono-
chamber from double chamber to increase the
mill output; Replacement of CM# 3 Recirculating
fan cone and inlet damper; Installation of vacuum
pump in CPP; Installation of Medium Voltage
Variable Frequency Drive (MVVFD) for Boiler Feed
pump; Replacement of inefficient reciprocating
compressors  (Flyash Handling as well as
Instrument Air) with screw compressor along with
VFD in CPP;

Kymore - Installation of MV drives for process fans
of bag house of line-1 and Preheater fan and Atox

mill fan of line-2;
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Kudithini — Installation of automatic shut off valve
for the compressed air line to avoid leakages;
Interlocking of compressors to avoid idle running;

Chaibasa - Installation of vacuum pump in place
of steam ejector in CPP; Installation of VFD for
Boiler feed pump in CPP to reduce Auxiliary power
consumption; Installation of the online condenser
cleaning system for the CPP;

Sindri - Optimization of compressed air usage
which resulted in avoiding operation of one
compressor; PRI improvement of mills by
modification & grinding media pattern changes;
Installation of capacitor bank for power factor
improvement;

Bargarh -PC fuel firing and Transport Line was
modified after CFD study for reduction of Specific
Thermal energy; Preheater - top cyclone & Stage
Il cyclone modification through CFD study
to improve cyclone efficiency; Improved fan
efficiencies for Cement mill separator fan, VRM
Bag house fan, PH Fan, Kiln bag house fan and
Sepax fan by installing vortex breaker at fan inlet
based on CFD Study;

Madukkarai - Selection and fixing AFR feeding
point for better AFR material distribution through
CFD study to achieve optimum combustion and
enhancement of AFR usage;

Lakheri-Improved VRM fan efficiency by installing
vortex breaker at fan inlet based on CFD Study.

Green Power

ACC Renewable Energy Portfolio consists of 19
MW in the form of Wind Farms across 3 states and
has generated approx 34.74Million Units of green
power. (Rajasthan - 12.44Million Units, Tamil Nadu
- 18.67 Million, Maharashtra — 3.62Million units);

These units helped ACC to meet the Renewable
Purchase Obligation (Non Solar) for Madukkarai
Plant (Tamil Nadu) & Lakheri Plant (Rajasthan)
fully, besides getting power at a very cheaper
cost;

In Maharashtra, ACC Thane complex and Bulk
Cement Corporation of India, Kalamboli are
operating mainly on renewable energy with
negligible cost through the ACC wind turbines at
Satara, Maharashtra. This resulted in power cost
avoidance of X 2.5 Crore;

The Renewable Power Obligations of other
plants are met by purchasing Renewable Energy
Certificates (Solar & Non Solar).

@ ACC LIMITED

Additional Proposals being implemented for further
conservation of energy

Design of ‘Meal Curtain’ through CFD Study for
improvement of PRI as well as coating reduction
at kiln inlet is planned for Gagal-2, Lakheri and
Wadi-2;

Selection of AFR feeding point through CFD for
optimum combustion and enhancement of AFR
usage is planned for Kiln-2 of Kymore;

. Installation of High level controller is planned for
kiln control & mill control;

Upgradation of existing fans,
compressors with high efficient ones;

pumps &

Installation of variable speed drives for process
fans for clinkering as well as grinding section,
Boiler Feed Pump for Captive Power Plant;

On Line Condenser cleaning system for CPP at
Bargarh, Kymore and Chanda;

. Upgradation of Energy Management System for
Kymore and Tikaria.

Impact of the above measures for reduction of
energy consumption and consequent impact on cost
of production

The measures stated in points (a) above would further
improve the thermal and electrical energy efficiency of
the Plants.

The capital investment on energy conservation
equipments

Your Company invested X ~ 48.8 Crore on productivity /
efficiency improvement, besides implementation of low
cost measures to reduce energy consumption

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Research & Development (R&D)

1.  Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by
the Company

a) Conservation of resources through
maximization of use of low-grade limestone
for cement manufacture, improving quality
of blended cement through innovative
processing utilizing industrial by-products
for improved quality Performance of ACC
Plants;

b) Maximization of use of Petcoke as a fuel and
optimizing a lowest cost Fuel Mix plant wise;

<) Improving the grinding efficiency of
Petcoke and Coal through in-house
patented process;



e)

f)

h)

Characterization of Industrial wastes and
looking into possibilities environmentally
friendly co-processing of wastes in
cement manufacture leading to thermal
substitution and conservation of natural
resources;

Recycling of wastes and research for
efficient use of scarce materials;

Development of new products or
developing new methods of evaluation and
Characterization analysis;

Development and wuse of Cement
Grinding aid and accelerators for PPC,
PSC and Composite Cement for improved
performance in Concrete and achieving
higher % Fly ash in PPC, higher % Slag in
PSC and higher % Fly ash and % Slag in
Composite cement;

Productivity research  for increased
efficiency in use of resources development
of Application Oriented Cements with
decreased CO, emissions;

Development of Cements tailored for
specific market clusters and application
segments;

Development and  manufacture  of
Composite Cement with improved concrete
performance;

Development of one of its kind Cement in
India for reducing water seepage;

Development waterproofing of Internal
Compound as a part of new initiative;

Development of cement based Niche
products and Dry Mix Mortars;

Quality Benchmarking exercise for different
market clusters of ACC products;

Monitoring in all the plants, the Cement
performance in  Concrete  through
application oriented testing;

Quality audit from mining to packing as well
as labs to ensure proper sampling, ensuring
reproducibility and repeatability of
evaluation at each stage of manufacturing
process, with automation and availability
of analysis data through Laboratory
Information Management System (LIMS).

Benefits derived as result of above R & D

a)

Maintain a lead position in all the market
clusters of the country;

<)
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Effective use of marginal quality raw
materials and fuels with improved clinker
quality;

Launch of special high performance
products like F2R, Concrete+, ACC Gold for
specific Market segments / Market climatic
conditions;

Launch of LeakBlock

compound;

waterproofing

Increased absorption of blending materials
like fly ash and slags in blended cements;

Effective replacement of the costlier natural
Gypsum by cheaper by products without
affecting the quality of cement targeting
reduced gypsum cost per tonne of Cement;

Fuel efficiency;

Reduction in Sp.power consumption for
grinding;

Effective use of SPC at each stage of Cement
Manufacture for improving consistency
of Operations and consistency in Product
Quality.

Future plan of action

a)

d)

Focus on development of products
aimed at enhancing use of cement in
various applications and development
of Application Oriented Cement based
cementitious material;

Exploratory research works on the above
specified areas;

Use of waste / by-products in cement
manufacture as alternative materials;

Improve product quality particularly
with respect to long term durability and
reduction in cost of manufacture.

Expenditure onR&D

X Crore
R & D Expenditure (X Crore) 6.15
Total R&D expenditure as
percentage of Revenue from
operation (%) 0.04
Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

% Crore
Foreign exchange earned -
Foreign exchange used 147.52

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



ANNEXURE ‘F'TO BOARD’S REPORT

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

1)

Ratio of Remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the

Company for the year 2018

Median Remuneration of all the employees of the Company (X in Lakhs) 4.88
Percentage increase in Median Remuneration of all the employees 2.14%
Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company 6731
Name of Director and KMP Remuneration % Increase in Ratio to
(X in Lakhs) remuneration median
in financial | Remuneration
2018 2017| year2018 of all
employees

Non Executive Directors
Mr N S Sekhsaria, Chairman 54.10 55.80 (3) 11
Mr Jan Jenisch, Deputy Chairman 21.00 4.16 -e 4
(appointed w.e.f. 17 Oct 2017)
*Mr Martin Kriegner 4.30 44.00 -* 1
Mr Christof Hassig 23.00 22.50 2 5
Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma 20.50 21.00 (2) 4
Mr Eric Olsen - 15.47 NA *# NA
Resigned w.e.f. September 21, 2017)
Independent Directors
Mr Shailesh Haribhakti 42.70 4410 (3) 9
Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta 4490 46.90 (4) 9
Mr Ashwin Dani 42.10 43.60 (3) 9
Mr Farrokh K Kavarana 42.90 47.60 (10) 9
Mr Arunkumar Gandhi 53.30 53.80 (1) 11
Ms Falguni Nayar 23.10 26.40 (13) 5
Executive Director
Mr Neeraj Akhoury 713.10 A 415.26 -@ 146
MD&CEO
(appointed w.e.f. February 4, 2017)
Other KMPs
Mr Sunil Nayak 336.15 294.23 14 69
Chief Financial Officer
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Name of the Director and KMP Remuneration % Increase in Ratio to

(X in Lakhs) remuneration median

in financial | Remuneration
2018 2017| vyear2018 of all
employees

Mr Ramaswami Kalidas 103.31 24.12 -@ 21
Company Secretary & Head Compliance,
(appointed w.e.f. September 26, 2017)
Mr Surendra Mehta - 59.60 N.A. N.A.
Company Secretary & Head Compliance
(from April 21, 2017 upto September 25, 2017)
Mr Burjor Nariman = 29.62 N.A. N.A.
Company Secretary & Head Compliance
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2017)

@ Figures are not comparable as they were appointed during the year 2017

*Mr Martin Kriegner has waived his right to receive Directors’ commission from the year 2018 and sitting fees with effect from the meeting
held on 17.10.2018

Athis includes the Performance Linked Incentive of X 243.63 lakhs for the year 2017
The average percentile increase in the salaries of the employees other than Managerial Person (i.e.. MD&CEO)
is 8%. Mr Neeraj Akhoury, MD&CEO was appointed on February 4, 2017 and therefore no comparison can be

made on a like to like basis. The average increase in remuneration of employees other than the managerial
person is in line with the industry practice and is within normal range.

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company’s Report on
Corporate Governance pursuant to the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as
amended for the year ended December 31, 2018.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Your Company models its effective governance on the
pillars of ethics, values and professionalism all of which
have been integrated into its DNA over the last eighty
two years of its existence. As part of its growth strategy,
ACC believes in emulating the ‘best practices’ that are
followed in the area of Corporate Governance across
various geographies.

The Company emphasizes on the need for complete
transparency and accountability in all its dealings, in
order to protect the interests of all its stakeholders. The
governance framework encourages the efficient use of
resources and equally calls for accountability for the
stewardship of these resources. The Board considers
itself as the repository of the trust and faith of the
stakeholders and acknowledges its responsibilities
towards them for creation of wealth in a sustainable
manner.

Corporate  Governance is the creation and
enhancement of long term sustainable value for
our stakeholders through ethically driven business
processes. The Governance Philosophy of your
Company is built on the bedrock of ethical values
and the highest standards of professionalism, which
the Company has effectively embraced,sustained
and institutionalized for  decades. Integrity,
transparency, fairness, accountability and adherence
with the law are inextricably embedded in the
Company’s business practices, ensuring ethical and
responsible leadership both at the Board as well
as the Management level. Your Company strongly
believes that the solid Corporate Governance
practices, which have evolved over the years from the
dynamic culture, positive thought processes and past
experiences, have been the key enablers in inculcating
stakeholder trust and confidence, attracting and
retaining financial and human capital, and in meeting
societal aspirations.

The Company has rigorously stood by the core principles
of Corporate Governance, which have been the edifice
of its two-fold governance model, with the Board of
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Directors and the Committees of the Board at the apex
level, and the Management structure at the operational
level. The Board and its Committees guide, support
and complement the Management team, which in turn
assumes accountability and endeavours to achieve the
set objectives and enhancing stakeholder value.

Board of Directors

ACC is a professionally managed Company functioning
under the overall supervision of the Board of
Directors. Its Board comprises of the required blend
of Independent and Non-Independent Directors,
including an Independent Lady Director in line
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the “SEBI
Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time.
The Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
(MD&CEO) of the Company is the only Executive Director
on the Board.

The Board of Directors is made up of eminent and
qualified persons who ensure that the long standing
culture of maintaining high standards of Corporate
Governance is further nurtured. The Board sets out the
overall corporate objectives and provides direction
and independence to the Management to achieve
these objectives for value creation through sustainable
profitable growth. The Board seeks accountability of the
Management in creating long term sustainable growth
forensuring fulfilment of stakeholders’aspirations. It also
sets out standards of corporate behaviour and ensures
compliance with laws and regulations impacting the
Company’s business.

Committee of Directors

Having regard to the significant contributions
that Committees make in assisting the Board of
Directors in discharging its duties and responsibilities,
the Board through its following Committees closely
monitors various areas of business viz. Audit Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination
& Remuneration Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee. All these are Committees mandated under
law and operate within the terms of reference laid down
by the Board. Apart from the above, the Board has set
up the Compliance Committee which oversees the legal
compliance process and the status of litigations both by
and against the Company.



Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
(MD&CEO)

The MD&CEO is in overall operational control and
responsible for the day-to-day working of the Company.
He functions under the superintendence, direction and
control of the Board. He gives strategic directions, lays
down policy guidelines and ensures implementation of
the decisions of the Board of Directors and its various
Committees.

Executive Committee (ExCo)

The ExCo comprises of persons belonging to the Senior
Management Cadre. The composition of the Committee
has been widened during the year to include the Chief
Commercial Officer, Chief Marketing Officer & Head-
New Products and Services, Head-Strategy in addition to
the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Manufacturing Officer,
Chief People Officer and Chief Procurement Officer. The
Committee supports the MD & CEO and operates within
the framework of the strategic policies laid down by the
Board and is responsible and accountable for overall
business deliverables. The ExCo meets on a regular basis
to review and monitor the performance vis-a-vis the
annual plans and budgets, discusses cross functional
operational matters and addresses business challenges
and issues.

Organization Structure, Roles and Responsibilities

ACC has a function-based organization structure,
which enables operational challenges to be addressed
efficiently, swiftly and proactively. Led by the Managing
Directorand Chief Executive Officer, it comprises verticals
for the functions of Sales & Marketing, Manufacturing,
Resources, Finance,
miscellaneous Corporate Services. Cement Plants and
Marketing Units are grouped into three regional clusters,
viz. North, East and SouthWest. The Regional Heads for
Sales, Logistics, Finance and HR have a direct reporting
line to the respective Vertical Heads. The Heads of Plants
report to the respective Manufacturing Cluster Head
in the Region. Procurement activities are managed by
the India Procurement Organization executed from five
Procurement Cluster Offices. The Finance, Secretarial
and Compliance functions report to the Chief Financial
Officer whereas the Health & Safety and Legal functions
report to the MD&CEO.

Human Procurement and
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board as on December 31,2018

Category No. of Directors

Non Executive & Independent 06
Directors including Independent
Woman Director

Other Non Executive Directors 05
Executive Director 01
Directors’ Profile

The Board of Directors comprises of professionals of
eminence and stature drawn from diverse fields. They
collectively bring to the fore a wide range of skills and
experience to the Board, which elevates the quality of
the Board's decision making process.

Non Executive and Non Independent Director
Mr Sekhsaria is a doyen of the Indian Cement Industry
and one of the most respected business personalities in
India. He has introduced new standards in management,
marketing, efficiency and corporate social responsibility
to an industry which he has helped transform.
Afirst generation industrialist, Mr Sekhsaria obtained his
Bachelors Degree in Chemical Engineering with honours
and distinction from the University of Bombay. He is the
Principal Founder-Promoter and current Chairman of
Ambuja Cements Limited. Mr Sekhsaria was invited to
join the ACC Board in 1999 and was appointed Deputy
Chairman in January, 2000. He is the Chairman of the
Company since the year 2006.
Mr Sekhsaria built Ambuja Cements Limited, setting
up benchmarks for the Indian Cement Industry which
had not been attained before. His acumen as an
entrepreneur and technocrat transformed the company
into the most efficient and profitable cement company
in the country and redefined industry practices by
changing the perception of cement from a commodity
to a branded product. Mr Sekhsaria has championed the
cause of community development by establishing the
Ambuja Cement Foundation and transformed it into a
model of excellence in social responsibility.
With his considerable wealth of experience, Mr Sekhsaria
brings immense value to the ACC Board. Under his
leadership, ACC has achieved significant improvements
in the areas of project management, logistics and
in overall cost-competitiveness. The impact of this
guidance is tangible from the high growth trajectory
ACC has experienced since 1999.

Mr Sekhsaria is a Member on the Nomination &

Remuneration Committee.
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Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

Doyen of the Cement Industry,
he has been responsible for
transforming the Cement
Industry by setting benchmarks
in the areas of Management,
Marketing & Logistics and
manufacturing efficiencies and
sustainable development
Ambuja Cements Limited;

JM Financial Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited

List of Directorships
held in other
companies
(excluding foreign,
private and Section
8 Companies)

Mr Jan Jenisch, (DIN:07957196) -

Non Executive and Non Independent Director

Mr Jenisch was inducted on the Board with effect from
October 17, 2017 upon his appointment as the CEO of
LafargeHolcim, the Parent Company.

Mr Jenisch is a German National and has joined
LafargeHolcim as its Chief Executive Officer on
September 1, 2017. Prior to his joining LafargeHolcim,
Mr Jenisch has served with Sika AG since 1996 in
various management functions and countries. He was
appointed to the Management Board of Sika in 2004 as
Head of the Industry Division and served as President
Asia Pacific from 2007 to 2012. Mr Jenisch was the
Chief Executive Officer of Sika AG from 2012. Under his
leadership, Sika expanded into new markets and set
new standards of performance in sales and profitability.
Mr Jenisch graduated from the University of Fribourg,
Switzerland and holds an MBA degree.

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

List of Directorships

held in other companies
(excluding foreign, private
and Section 8 Companies)

Mr Neeraj Akhoury (DIN:07419090) - MD&CEO

Mr Akhoury brings with him over two decades of rich
experience in the steel and cement industries with
expertise in sales and distribution, marketing & supply
chain operations, management & corporate strategy.
He began his career with Tata Steel in 1993 and joined
Lafarge SA Group (LafargeHolcim Group since July 2015)
in 1999. He was a Member of the Executive Committee
of Lafarge India, heading Corporate Affairs, followed by
Sales in 2011. He moved to Nigeria as CEO & Managing
Director of Lafarge AshakaCem PLC. Thereafter, he was
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Business Management

Ambuja Cements Limited

appointed Strategy & Business Development Director
for Middle East & Africa at the Lafarge headquarters
in Paris. He has also served as CEO of Lafarge Surma
Cement Limited and as Country Representative of
LafargeHolcim Bangladesh.

Mr Akhoury has a degree in Economics from Allahabad
University, followed by a one year management
programme from XLRI, India. He is an alumnus of the
Harvard Business School (General Management).

Mr Neeraj Akhoury is a Member on the Compliance

Committee, Risk Management Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee of the Board.

Expertise in Specific Corporate Strategy,
Functional Areas Sales and Distribution
Management

List of Directorships

held in other companies
(excluding foreign, private
and Section 8 Companies)

Bulk Cement Corporation
(India) Limited;

Holcim Services

(South Asia) Limited

Mr Martin Kriegner (DIN:00077715) -

Non Executive and Non Independent Director

Mr Martin Kriegner is an Austrian national and a
Member of LafargeHolcim’s Executive Committee since
August 2016, with overall responsibility for India and
South East Asia. Since January 2018 heis also responsible
for operations in Australia and New Zealand. He is a
graduate from the Vienna University with a Doctorate
in Law and has obtained an MBA at the University of
Economics in Vienna.

Mr Martin Kriegner joined Lafarge in 1990 and became
the CEO of Lafarge Perlmooser AG, Austria in 1998. He
moved to India as the CEO of Lafarge’s cement operations
in 2002 and later served as Regional President Cement for
Asia, based in Kuala Lumpur. In 2012, he was appointed
CEO of Lafarge India for the Cement, RMX and Aggregates
business. In July 2015, he became Area Manager Central
Europe for LafargeHolcim operations and was appointed
Head of India effective March 1, 2016.

Mr Kriegner is a Member on the Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

List of Directorships

held in other companies
(excluding foreign, private
and Section 8 Companies)

Operations, Finance &
General Management

Ambuja Cements
Limited
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Mr Shailesh Haribhakti (DIN:00007347) -

Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti is a career Chartered Accountant,
with over four decades of experience in developing and
leading one of India’s most respected and diversified
Chartered Accounting firms-Haribhakti & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants. He stepped away from the
Company’s management on attaining the age of 62
in 2018. He is now pursuing the establishment of high
quality auditing globally through a “not for profit”
initiative surrounding his recently authored book -
“Audit Renaissance”.

To provide universal dispersion of his knowledge &
experience in corporate governance, he has teamed
up with senior and highly respected professionals to
manage Intuit Consulting Pvt. Ltd. which will provide
digitally enabled Governance & Compliance support to
corporations globally.

Apart from the directorships mentioned herein below
Mr Haribhakti is on the Board of Gaja Capital Group
and also serves on Advisory Boards of Doha Bank and
Excellence Enablers Private Limited.

To serve the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME)
community he has set up a verification, diligence and
shared services firm known as New Haribhakti Business
Services Group through a process of interactivity over
the internet and digitization. This group will serve to
support safe lending and timely recovery of finances in
the MSME sector.

To give wings to equity investing in a “New India” he
has established along with like minded professionals
Mentorcap Management Pvt. Ltd. to invest in a new
age car washing enterprise, alkaline water and solar
refrigeration through the supply chain.

Mr Haribhakti actively promotes “shared value” creation
and a green environment through his own enterprise
Planet People & Profit Consulting Private Limited and
his leadership roles as Chairman of United Way and
Chairman/Member of the CSR Committees of some
of the Boards that he serves on. He has successfully
established the concept of “Innovate to Zero” which is in
alignment with the idea of making the impact of every
intervention focused, widespread, co-operative and far-
reaching.

Mr Haribhakti has a passion for teaching, writing
and public speaking. He was associated with [IM-
Ahmedabad as visiting faculty from 1981-83. He has led
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BMA, lIA (Mumbai), ICAI (WIRC), IMC, FPSB and Rotary
Club of Bombay over the last several decades. For two
years he served on the Standards Advisory Council of
the IASB in London and was Chairman of NPS (National
Pension Scheme) Trust from 2015-2017. He frequently
contributes his views on public forums, to the press and
to the electronic media.

Mr Haribhakti is the Chairman of the Corporate Social
Responsibility and Risk Management Committees of the
Board and Member of the Stakeholders' Relationship,

Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance
Committees.
Expertise Auditing, Tax and Risk Advisory
in Specific Services
Functional Areas
List of Ambuja Cements Limited;
Directorships Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited;
held in other Blue Star Limited;
compar.nes NSDL E-Governance Infrastructure
(excluding Limited:
foreign, ;?rlvate Mahindra Lifespace Developers
and Section 8 -
. Limited;
Companies)
Bennett Coleman & Company
Limited;
Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited;
L&T Finance Holdings Limited;
L&T Mutual Fund Trustee Limited

Mr S K Roongta (DIN:00309302) -
Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Roongta holds a Bachelors degree in Engineering
from Birla Institute of Technology & Science (BITS), Pilani
and a Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management -
International Trade, from the Indian Institute of Foreign
Trade (IIFT), New Delhi. He is a Fellow of the All India
Management Association (AIMA).

Mr Roongta has wide and varied experience in public
sector undertakings. He is presently Non- Executive
Chairman of Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
(BALCO) and Talwandi Sabo Power Limited (TSPL). Earlier,
during his tenure as Chairman of SAIL from August 2006
to May 2010, the ranking of SAIL among ‘World Class
Steel Makers’ moved up to the second position from the
seventeenth position, as per World Steel Dynamics, USA.

Mr Roongta headed a panel of Experts on the Reforms in
the Central PSEs, constituted by the Planning Commission.
He has also been a Member of the Committee formed by
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the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, to formulate a Policy
Document on Corporate Governance.

He is associated with several academic institutions,
and has been the Chairman, Board of Governors, IT
Bhubaneswar (2012-2015) and is presently on the Board
of Management of J.K. Lakshmipat University. He is also
associated with apex Chambers of Commerce, being a
member on National Executive Committee of Federation
of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI),
Chairman of the National Expert Committee on Minerals
& Metals of Indian Chambers of Commerce (ICC) and
co-chairs Industry Committee of PHD Chamber of
Commerce and Industry.

Mr Roongta is a recipient of several awards and
accolades including SCOPE Award for excellence and
for outstanding contribution to the Public Sector
Management - Individual Category and IIM - JRD
Tata award for Excellence in Corporate Leadership in
Metallurgical Industries - 2016.

Mr Roongta is a Member on the Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee and Compliance Committees
of the Board.

Expertise in Specific | General Management and
Functional Areas expert knowledge in Mines
and Metallurgy industries
Jubilant Agri and Consumer
Products Limited;

Hero Steels Limited;
Talwandi Sabo Power
Limited;

Jubilant Industries Limited;
Jubilant Life Sciences
Limited;

CL Educate Limited;

Bharat Aluminium Co. Ltd.;
Great Eastern Energy

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and
Section 8 Companies)

Corporation Limited

Mr Ashwin Dani (DIN:00009126) -

Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Dani holds a BSc (Hons) degree from the Institute
of Science, University of Mumbai. He completed
B.Sc. (Tech) -Paints, Pigments and Varnishes from U.D.C.T.
(now known as Institute of Chemical Technology),
University of Mumbai. He holds a Masters Degree
in Polymer Science (USA) and a Diploma in Colour
Science (USA).

@ ACC LIMITED

Mr Dani started his career in 1967, as a Development
Chemist with Inmont Corp. (now known as BASF),
Detroit, USA, a major supplier of automotive OEM
and refinishes. He joined Asian Paints Ltd. in 1968 as
Senior Executive and moved through successive senior
positions like Director - R&D, Works Director, Whole-time
Director and as Vice Chairman and Managing Director
from December, 1998 to March, 2009. Mr Dani has an
in-depth knowledge of supply chain managementandis
mainly responsible for the strong and committed dealer
network at Asian Paints Limited which, inter alia, has
contributed to that company’s superior performance.
Currently, he is the Non-Executive Chairman of Asian
Paints Limited.

Mr Dani is the past President of the Indian Paint
Association (IPA) and has received a number of awards
for his contributions to the Paint Industry. He was the
Vice President of Federation of Indian Chambers of
Commerce and Industry (FICCI). He was a member of the
Central Board of Trustees - Employees Provident Fund
of the Government of India and was also the President
of the Board of Governors of the UDCT (presently ICT)
Alumni Association, Mumbai. Currently, he is a member
on the Board of Management of ICT Mumbai.

Mr Dani is the Chairman of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and is a Member on the Audit
Committee of the Board.

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

Rich experience in Supply
Chain Management and
Sustainable Development
Resins and Plastics Limited;
Hitech Corporation Limited;
Asian Paints Limited;
Guijarat Organics Limited

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and
Section 8 Companies)

Mr Farrokh Kavarana (DIN:00027689) -
Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Kavarana holds a B.Com. (Hons.) degree from the
University of Bombay and an MBA from the Wharton
School, University of Pennsylvania. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales
and a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

Mr Kavarana retired in 2014 as a Director of Tata Sons
Limited and Tata Industries Limited, the apex holding
companies of the Tata Group, after a career spanning
four decades with the Group. He was Chairman of
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several Tata Companies in India and abroad - Tata AlG
General Insurance Company Ltd., Tata AlA Life Insurance
Company Ltd., Tata Projects Limited and Trent Limited.
He was Executive Chairman of Tata Asset Management
Ltd. from 2005 to 2009 and of Tata Infotech Ltd. from
2000 to 2005. He served as Executive Director of
Tata Motors Limited from 1994 to 2000. He was Vice
Chairman & Managing Director of Tata International
AG, Switzerland and Tata Ltd., UK., from 1975 to 1994
responsible for Tata Sons’ overseas operations and
investments. Prior to his association with Tata Group,
Mr Kavarana was with McKinsey & Co. Inc. in London
and Washington D.C. from 1970 to 1974.

Mr Kavarana is involved with several social and
charitable institutions and is Chairman - Lady Tata
Memorial Trust, Trustee - Nani Palkhivala Memorial Trust
and the National Centre for the Performing Arts. He was
a founder Trustee of Childline India Foundation from
1999 to 2014. He is a recipient of the Dadabhai Naoroji
International Millennium Award 2005 and the Wharton
India Alumni Award 2009.

Heisa Memberon the Audit Committee, the Nomination
& Remuneration and the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committees of the Board. He is the Chairman of the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and of the
Compliance Committees of the Board.

Expertise in Specific| Financial Management,
Functional Areas good governance practices
and rich exposure from his
directorships in Tata Group
Companies in India and
abroad

The Great Eastern Shipping
Company Limited

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and
Section 8 Companies)

Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma (DIN:02449088) -

Non Executive and Non Independent Director

Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma was the Chairman of Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) until he attained
superannuation from the Corporation with effect from
January 1, 2019. LIC has confirmed that Mr Sharma will
continue to be their representative on the Company'’s
Board after his superannuation. Prior to his taking over
as Chairman of LIC on December 16, 2016, he served
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as Chairman (In-charge) from September 16, 2016
and Managing Director, LIC from November 1, 2013.
From December 2010 to November 2013, he served
as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer, LIC
Housing Finance Limited (LICHFL), a premier housing
finance company in the country.

Mr Sharma is a post graduate from Patna University.
He joined Life Insurance Corporation of India as Direct
recruit Officer in 1981 and grew up with the Corporation
since then. He held various challenging assignments
pan India and in all operational streams including
‘in-charge’ positions at different Working
across the length and breadth of the Country has
added immensely to his experience and honed his
understanding of demographics of the Country,
socio-economic needs of different regions and multi-
cultural challenges in the implementation of Corporate’s
objectives.

levels.

As MD&CEO of LICHFL, he stabilized the operations of
the Company under most challenging circumstances
of negative media glare, intense scrutiny by Regulator
and others and turned it around to be the best Housing
Finance Company in 2011.

He has been an inspirational leader who utilizes
negotiation skills gained over thirty seven years of
extensive experience in insurance and financial sectors.
He has the ability to connect at grass root levels, believes
in bottom-up approach and has the ability to see the big
picture and translate it to reality. He is known as Growth
Leader, leading the Organization to surge ahead and
turnaround on its growth path in all the segments of
performance.

Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma was Chairman, Board
of Directors of LICHFL, LIC (International)
Bahrain B.S. C. (C), Life Insurance Corporation Singapore
Pte. Ltd. and other companies. He was also Director on
Board of Kenindia Assurance Co. Ltd.

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

Business strategy,

Product Development &
Branding, Risk Mitigation &
Compliance

Tata Steel Limited;
Mahindra & Mahindra
Limited;

ICICI Bank Limited
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Mr Arunkumar Gandhi (DIN:00007597) -

Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Arunkumar Gandhi is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales
and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

He was with N M Raiji & Co., Chartered Accountants,
as a partner from 1969 and in 1993 became a Senior
Partner. He occupied this position till July 2003. As
partner, Mr Gandhi audited several public and private
sector entities. He is an expert on share valuation and
corporate re-structuring (i.e. mergers/demergers).

He was the Executive Director of Tata Sons Limited
from August 2003 till August 2008 and was thereafter
appointed Director of Tata Sons Limited, on whose
Board he served upto March 2013.

Mr Gandhi has been assisting the Tata Group in acquiring
diverse assets and companies across the globe. This
has enabled the Tata Group to acquire critical assets,
resources access to world class R&D facilities. In these
transactions, he advised on business valuation, financial
due diligence, counter-party negotiations, financing
and applicable merger control provisions.

Over the last twenty years, Mr Gandhi has served as a
Director on the Board of several Indian and foreign
companies.

Mr Gandhi is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a Member of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
of the Board.

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

Auditing, Tax Planning,
Corporate Restructuring
and in particular the area of
business valuation
Huhtamaki PPL Limited;
Walchandnagar Industries
Limited

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and
Section 8 Companies)

Ms Falguni Nayar (DIN:00003633) -
Non Executive and Independent Director

Ms Falguni Nayar is a Graduate from Sydenham College
of Commerce & Economics and a Post Graduate from
Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.

Ms Nayar has a rich experience of over two and half
decades. She started her career as a Manager and
Consultant at A F Ferguson & Company. In 1993, she
joined Kotak Mahindra Group to lead the M&A and
Project Advisory Initiatives. She has held senior positions
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in various capacities and was the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of Kotak Investment Bank
from 2006 to 2012. Ms Nayar is the founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Nykaa.com, a beauty retail platform
which she launched in 2012.

Ms Nayar was recognized as a Top Woman in Business
by Business Today in 2011 and 2017. She has also
received the FICCI Ladies Organization Award for Top
Woman Achiever in the field of banking in 2008.1n 2017
Ms Nayar has won the “Woman Ahead” award at The
Economic Times Start-Up Awards 2017.

Ms Nayar is a Member on the CSR Committee and Risk
Management Committees of the Board.

Financial services and
e-marketing

Tata Motors Limited;
Endurance Technologies
Limited;

Dabur India Limited;

Tata Technologies Limited;
Kotak Securities Limited

Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and
Section 8 Companies)

Mr Christof Hassig (DIN:01680305) —

Non Executive and Non Independent Director

Mr Christof Hassig heads the Corporate Strategy and
Mergers & Acquisitions function in LafargeHolcim,
reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

Before joining the former Holcim Limited in 1999, Mr
Christof Hassig worked for twenty five years at UBS in
many different functions, including as Global Relationship
Manager and Investment Banker for multinational
corporates in Switzerland and other countries.

Within the former Holcim Limited, he was reporting
directly to the Chief Financial Officer with many direct
links to all other Executive Directors including Chief
Executive Officer. For the past fifteen years, he has
built and led the department of Corporate Financing &
Treasury. This function spans across all the geographic
regions and includes matrix organizations with the
finance department of the operating companies in
various countries.

InDecember2012hetookoveradditionalresponsibilities
as head of the newly created Mergers & Acquisitions
function at Group level. In March 2013, the Group’s
Insurance Department was moved and integrated into
the Corporate Finance & Treasury Department.

He started his career with a three year apprenticeship in
Banking followed by a Masters in Banking and Advanced
Management Programme at Harvard Business School in 2006.



Expertise in
Functional Areas

Specific | Corporate Finance &Treasury,
Mergers & Acquisitions
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Directorships and Memberships on Committees:

The total number of Directorship(s) held by the Directors,

and the position of Membership/Chairmanship on
Committees held by them is given below. All the
Directors are compliant with the provisions of the Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations. None of the Directors are
interested inter-se.

List of Directorships Ambuja Cements Limited
held in other
companies (excluding
foreign, private and

Section 8 Companies)

Name of Director Date of *Number of
Appointment Directorship(s)

held in Indian

Category *¥*Committee(s)
position
(including ACC)

Member Chairman

public listed
companies
(including ACC)

Mr N S Sekhsaria Non Executive/Non Independent  27.12.1999 2 0 0
(Chairman)

Mr Jan Jenisch Non Executive/Non Independent  17.10.2017 2 0 0
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr Neeraj Akhoury Executive 16.12.2016 1 1 0
(Managing Director &

Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Martin Kriegner Non Executive/Non Independent  11.02.2016 2 2 0
Mr Shailesh Haribhakti Non Executive/ Independent 17.02.2006 7 7 3
Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta Non Executive/ Independent 03.02.2011 6 3 1
Mr Ashwin Dani Non Executive/ Independent 15.12.2011 3 3 2
Mr Farrokh Kavarana Non Executive/ Independent 03.05.2013 2 3 1
Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma  Non Executive/ Non Independent 06.02.2014 4 0 0
Mr Arunkumar Gandhi Non Executive/ Independent 24.04.2014 3 3 1
Ms Falguni Nayar Non Executive/ Independent 24.04.2014 4 2 0
Mr Christof Hassig Non Executive/Non Independent  09.12.2015 2 0 0

*Excludes Directorships held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies

*¥ Committees considered are Audit Committee & Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

Board Diversity

Your Company has over the years been fortunate to
have eminent persons from diverse fields as Directors
on its Board.

Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee has formalized a policy on
Board Diversity to ensure diversity of the Board in terms
of experience, knowledge, perspective, background,
gender, age and culture. The policy on diversity is posted
on the Company’s website and can be accessed on web
link http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/new_pdf/
Policyondiversityoftheboard.pdf

Independent Directors

Independent Directors play a significant role in the
governance processes of the Board. With different points
of views arising from their expertise and experience,
they enrich the Board’s decision making and also

prevent possible conflicts of interest that may emerge
in such decision making.

The appointment of Independent Directors is carried
out in a structured manner in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee identifies
candidates based on certain laid down criteria and takes
into consideration the need for diversity of the Board
and accordingly makes recommendations to the Board.

The Company has appointed Independent Directors
for a term of five years from their respective dates of
appointmentas per the requirements of the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations. The appointments of Mr Shailesh
Haribhakti, Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta, Mr Ashwin
Dani and Mr Farrokh K Kavarana were effective from
July 24, 2014 while those of Mr Arunkumar Gandhi and
Ms Falguni Nayar were effective from April 24, 2014.
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The Company’s Succession Policy as applicable to the
Directors provides that a person shall not be eligible
for appointment as a Director upon reaching the age of
seventy five years.

In consequence thereof, Mr Ashwin Dani, Mr Farrokh
K Kavarana and Mr Arunkumar Gandhi, all of whom
have completed/will complete the age of seventy five
years during their present tenure of appointment, have
expressed their inability to continue as Directors from
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In view of the above, the Board has, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, at its Meeting held on February 5, 2019,
recommended for approval by the shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, the appointment of
the following persons as Independent Directors from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting for a
consecutive period of five years:

«  Mr Damodarannair Sundaram
+ MrVinayak Chatterjee
« Mr Sunil Mehta

The detailed profile of the persons proposed to be
appointed has been provided as part of the Explanatory
Statement accompanying the Notice for the Annual
General Meeting.

In addition, as Mr Shailesh Haribhakti, Mr Sushil Kumar
Roongta and Ms Falguni Nayar, will be completing their
first term of appointment of five years during the course
of the current year, it is proposed to re-appoint them at
this Annual General Meeting for another term of five
consecutive years subject to approval of the Members
by Special Resolution.

None of the existing or proposed Independent Directors
serve as “Independent Directors” in more than seven
listed companies in line with the requirements of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. The said Independent Directors
have also confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations as amended.

Confirmation as regards
Independent Directors

independence of

In the opinion of the Board, both the existing
Independent Directors and those who are proposed to
be appointed at the Annual General Meeting, fulfil the
conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and
are independent of the Management.

@ ACC LIMITED

Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year under review, the Independent
Directors met twice on April 18,2018 and December 12,
2018, inter alia to:

. Review and recommend the renewal of
Technology & Knowhow Agreement with Holcim
Technology Ltd. for a further period of three years
effective from January 1, 2018.

. Review of the performance of Non Independent
Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;

. Review of the performance of the Chairman of the
Company, taking into account the views of the
Executive and Non- Executive Directors;

. Assessment of the quality, content and timelines
for the flow of information between the
Management and the Board, which is necessary
for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties;

. Evaluation of the performance of the Corporate
Secretarial function; and

. Other related matters.

The Independent Directors have expressed satisfaction
at the robustness of the evaluation process, the Board’s
freedom to express its views on matters transacted
at the Meetings and the openness and transparency
with which the Management discusses various
subject matters specified on the agenda of meetings.
The consolidated Evaluation Report of the Board
was discussed at the Meeting of the Board held on
December 12, 2018 and the action areas identified in
the process are being implemented to ensure a better
interface at the Board/Management level.

Induction Programme for new Directors and
Ongoing Familiarization Programme for existing
Independent and Non Independent Directors

A formal induction programme for new Directors and
an ongoing familiarization process with respect to the
business/working of the Company for all Directors is a
major contributor to familiarize the directors with the
dynamics of the cement industry to facilitate engaging
them in meaningful deliberations and in taking
informed decisions.

Whileinducting a Director on the Board, aformal letter of
appointment is issued to such Director which, inter alia,
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities
of the Director and the Board’s expectations from him/
her. The compliances required from a Director - under
the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and other relevant



regulations are also explained in detail to the Directors
and necessary affirmations obtained from them in
respect thereto.

By way of an introduction to the Company, the
Director is presented with a book on the rich legacy
of the Company which traces its history of over 82
years of its existence, past Annual Reports, Sustainable
Development Report, brochure on the CSR activities
pursued by the Company, copies of “The Indian
Concrete Journal” which is a well accepted journal on
civil engineering and construction, published by the
Company which, inter alia, discusses topics on various
types of cement and their applications and "ACC Parivar”
the Company’s house magazine.

A presentation is also shared with the newly appointed
director which provides an overarching perspective
of the cement industry, organizational set up of the
Company and governance model, the functioning of
various divisions/departments, the Company’s market
share and the markets in which it operates, brand equity,
internal control processes and other relevant information
pertaining to the Company’s business.

The above initiatives help the Director to understand
the Company, its business and the regulatory
framework in which the Company operates and equips
him to effectively fulfil his role. In addition to the above,
Board Members are regularly informed through mailers
about developments in the cement industry, regulatory
developments and changes which impact the Company.

Directors are also encouraged to visit the Company’s
plants to have a better insight of the manufacturing
processes, facilities and the social environment in
which the Company functions. Further, as an ongoing
process, the Board is updated on a regular basis
through presentations and discussions on the overall
economic trends, the legal and regulatory framework
and amendments thereto, the performance of the
Company and that of the cement industry, analysis
of the circumstances which have helped or adversely
impacted the Company’s performance with its peers in
the industry as available in the public domain and the
initiatives taken/proposed to be taken to bring about
an overall improvement in the performance of the
Company, marketing strategy, business risks, mitigation
plan etc.

With a view to familiarize the Directors with the
best practices in the cement industry, the Company
had, in June 2018, arranged a visit for the Directors
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to LafargeHolcim’s state-of-the-art Research and
Development Center in Lyon, France, one of their
cement/RMX Plants and construction sites in the area.
LafargeHolcim, the ultimate Holding Company of ACC
is by a distance, the leading international player in
the business of cement, aggregates and construction
materials and the visit of our Directors to their R&D
Centre was very informative and insightful particularly
with respect to the initiatives taken by LafargeHolcim
for substituting, wherever possible in production,
natural raw materials with alternative materials to
conserve non-renewable natural resources and also
for reduction of CO, emissions. The Directors also had
interactions with the Directors of the Ultimate Holding
Company to understand the Group’s vision and the 2030
Sustainability Plan with a view to align local operations
in India to the Group’s vision.

Based on suggestions received from some Independent
Directors during the previous year’s evaluation process,
anew initiative has been rolled out through the initiative
of the Chairman to organize a Directors’ Conclave
wherein eminent personalities from various disciplines
shall be invited to share their experiences and insights
with the Board as well as the members of the Senior
Management to widen their horizon on different issues.
To begin, the first conclave was flagged off in November
2018 through an interactive session with Mr Nandan
Nilekani, Chairman, Infosys Limited who addressed
the gathering and provided his incisive insight on the
impact of emerging digital technologies on businesses.

Details of the programme for familiarization of
Independent Directors with the working of the Company
are available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed through web link http://www.acclimited.com/
sh/FPID.pdf

Performance Evaluation of the Board and Individual
Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, and the SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the
annual evaluation of its own performance, as well as the
working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration,
Compliance and Risk Management Committees. A
structured questionnaire was prepared after taking
into consideration, inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board'’s functioning such
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance
of specific duties, obligations and governance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the Remuneration of Directors

performance of individual directors. The Chairman of  The policy for payment of remuneration to Directors,
the Board of Directors interacted with all the Directors ~ Key Managerial Personnel and Members of the
Management Executive Committee is set out in the
website of the Company at http://www.acclimited.com/
assets/new/pdf/CG/Policy_remuneration_selection_
for_appointment.pdf

individually to get an overview of the functioning of
the Board/Committees, inter alia, on the following
broad criteria i.e. attendance and level of participation

at meetings of the Board/Committees, independence Terms of remuneration of Mr Neeraj Akhoury,

of judgement exercised by Independent Directors,  Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD&CEO)

interpersonal relationship etc. The terms and conditions of appointment and

Based on the inputs received from the Directors, an ~ remuneration of Mr Neeraj Akhoury, MD&CEO, were
approved by the Members of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting held on March 29, 2017 and can be

accessed through web link http://www.acclimited.com/
Independent Directors with the Company. sh/NT.pdf

action plan has been drawn up in consultation with

the Directors to encourage greater engagement of the

Remuneration of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration of the Directors during the year is set out below. The remuneration paid to the Directors is in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and has been duly approved by the shareholders of the Company. None of
the Directors of the Company have any pecuniary relationship with the Company.

T Lakhs
Name of the Director Salary Commission Sitting Fees
Mr N S Sekhsaria, Chairman - 50.00 4.10 54.10
Mr Jan Jenisch, Deputy Chairman - 20.00 1.00 21.00
Mr Neeraj Akhoury, MD&CEO "713.10 - - 713.10
*Mr Martin Kriegner = = 4.30 4.30
Mr Shailesh Haribhakti - 36.00 6.70 42.70
Mr Sushil Kumar Roongta = 36.00 8.90 44.90
Mr Ashwin Dani - 36.00 6.10 42.10
Mr Farrokh K Kavarana = 36.00 6.90 42.90
Mr Vijay Kumar Sharma - 20.00 0.50 20.50
Mr Arunkumar Gandhi = 45.00 8.30 53.30
Ms Falguni Nayar - 20.00 3.10 23.10
Mr Christof Hassig = 20.00 3.00 23.00

*Mr Martin Kriegner has waived his right to receive Directors’commission from the year 2018 and sitting fees with effect from the meeting held on
17.10.2018

"The remuneration of MD&CEO includes the Performance Linked Incentive of ¥243.63 lakhs for the year 2017

The remuneration drawn by the Key Managerial Personnel during the year, other than the MD&CEO whose
remuneration has been stated above, is as under:

T Lakhs
Name of Key Managerial Personnel Salary Commission  Sitting Fees Total
Mr Sunil Nayak, Chief Financial Officer 336.15 - - 336.15
Mr Ramaswami Kalidas, 103.31 - - 103.31

Company Secretary & Head Compliance
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MEETINGS
Board Meetings held during the Year

Dates on which the Board Meetings Total Strength No of

were held of the Board Directors Present
February 8,2018 12 09
February 26,2018 12 10

April 18,2018 12 10

July 23,2018 12 11
October 17,2018 12 11
December 12,2018 12 07

The gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days in line with the requirements
of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting

Name of the Director Attendance at the Board Meetings held on Attendance at
the AGM held
08.02.2018 26.02.2018 18.04.2018 23.07.2018 17.10.2018 12.12.2018 on 13.06.2018
Mr N S Sekhsaria v v v v v v Leave of
Absence
Mr Jan Jenisch Leave of Leave of Leave of v v Leave of Leave of
Absence Absence Absence Absence Absence
Mr Neeraj Akhoury 4 v v v v v v
Mr Martin Kriegner v v v v v v v
Mr Shailesh Leave of v v v v v Leave of
Haribhakti Absence Absence
Mr Sushil Kumar v v v v v v v
Roongta
Mr Ashwin Dani v v 4 v v Leave of 4
Absence
Mr Farrokh v v v v 4 Leave of v
Kavarana Absence
Mr Vijay Kumar Leave of Leave of Leave of Leave of 4 Leave of Leave of
Sharma Absence Absence Absence Absence Absence Absence
Mr Arunkumar v v v v v v v
Gandhi
Ms Falguni Nayar v v v v Leave of Leave of 4
Absence Absence
Mr Christof Hassig 4 v v v v v Leave of
Absence
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The Act facilitates the participation of a Director in
Board/ Committee Meetings through video conference
or other audio visual modes. Accordingly, the option to
participate at the Meetings through video conference
was made available for the Directors except in respect
of such items which are not permitted to be transacted
under the statute through the use of such facility.

Duties and Functions of the Board

The Board of Directors’ primary responsibility is to foster
the Company’s short and long-term success through
sustainable continuance and progress of its business
and thereby create value for its stakeholders. To this end,
the Board of Directors sets out the corporate culture,
lays down high ethical standards of corporate behavior
and ensures transparency in its dealings.

The Board has the responsibility to oversee the conduct
of the Company’s business and to supervise and support
the Management, whichis responsible for the day-to-day
operations. It does this by providing strategic guidance,
monitoring operational performance and ensures that
robust policies and procedures are in place. The Board,
through its various Committees, reviews the identified
risks and the mitigation measures undertaken/to be
undertaken in respect thereof, ensures integrity in the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting systems,
adequacy of internal controls and compliance with all
relevant laws and discharges its functions towards CSR.
In particular, the Board reviews and approves quarterly/
half yearly unaudited financial results and the audited
annual financial statements (both consolidated and
standalone), corporate strategies, business plans,
annual budgets, sets corporate objectives and monitors
their implementation and oversees major capital
expenditure. It monitors overall operating performance,
Health & Safety (H&S) performance and reviews such
other items which require Board’s attention. It directs
and guides the activities of the Management towards
achieving set goals and seeks accountability. The
Agenda for the Board Meetings covers items set out
as guidelines in SEBI Listing Regulations to the extent
these are relevant and applicable. All agenda items are
supported by relevant information, documents and
presentations to enable the Board to take informed
decisions. The Agenda is sent out to the Directors within
the period stipulated in the Secretarial Standards.
The Board processes are also in consonance with the
requirements of the Secretarial Standard-1 relating to
Meetings of the Board and its Committees.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has over the years maintained the highest
standards of Corporate Governance processes, and
has had the foresight to set up corporate governance
practices much before their implementation was
mandated through the introduction of regulatory
requirements. For instance, the Board of Directors
had constituted the Audit Committee in 1986. A
Share Committee was constituted in 1962 to look into
various matters relating to the shares of the Company
and investor relations, which has transformed into the
‘Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee’. Likewise, a
Compensation Committee was constituted in 1992.
This Committee has subsequently been re-constituted
as the 'Nomination & Remuneration Committee' with
wider terms of reference as per statutory requirements.

The constitution, terms of reference and the functioning
of the existing Committees of the Board is explained
hereunder. Each of these Committees demonstrates
the highest levels of integrity and has the requisite
expertise to handle issues relevant to their field. These
Committees spend considerable time and give focused
attention to the various issues placed before it and the
guidance provided by these Committees lend immense
value, support and enhances the qualitativeness of the
decision making process of the Board. The Board reviews
the functioning of these Committees from time to time.

The Meetings of each of these Committees are
convened by the respective Chairmen, who also apprise
the Board about the summary of discussions held at
their Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings
are sent to all Directors individually for their approval/
comments as per the prescribed Secretarial Standard-1
and after the Minutes are duly approved, these are
circulated to the Board of Directors and tabled at the
Board Meetings.

Audit Committee - Mandatory Committee

The Audit Committee acts as an interface between the
statutory and internal auditors, the Management and
the Board of Directors. It assists the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting
processes, reviewing the Company’s established
systems and processes for internal financial controls,
governance and reviews the Company’s statutory and
internal audit processes. More than two thirds of the
Members on the Committee, including the Chairman are
Independent Directors. The Committee is governed by a
Charter which isin line with the regulatory requirements
mandated by the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. All
the Members of the Committee have the ability to read



and understand the financial statements. The Chairman
is a Chartered Accountant of immense repute.

The functions of the Committee inter alia include:

Financial Reporting and Related Processes

Internal

Effective oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting process and the disclosure of financial
information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible.

Reviewing with the Management (i) the quarterly
unaudited financial results drawn up both on
a standalone and consolidated basis and the
Auditors’ Limited Review Reports thereon, (ii)
audited annual financial statements (standalone
and consolidated) and Auditors’ Report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval. This
would, inter alia, include reviewing changes in the
accounting policies and practices and reasons for
such changes, major accounting entries involving
estimates based on exercise of judgement by the
Management.

Review the Management Discussion & Analysis
of the financial condition and results of the
Company'’s operations.

Review of management letters /letters of internal
control weaknesses, if any, issued by the Statutory
Auditors.

Review of internal audit reports relating to
internal control weaknesses, if any

Discuss with the Statutory Auditors, its judgement
about the quality and appropriateness of the
Company'’s accounting principles with reference
to relevant Accounting Standards and the
relevant Rules under the Act as amended from
time to time.

Scrutiny and review of the investments and inter-
corporate loans made by the Company.

Financial Controls and Governance

Processes

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s Accounting system and internal
financial controls.

Review and discussion with the Management on
the Company’s major financial risk exposures and
steps taken by the Management to monitor and
mitigate such risks.

To oversee and review the functioning of the
vigil mechanism implemented in the Company
as EthicalView Reporting Policy (EVR Policy) and

Audit
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to review the findings of investigations into cases
of material nature, if any, and the actions taken in
respect thereof.

Review the scope of the Statutory Audit, the
annual audit plan and the Internal Audit Plan with
a view to ensure adequate coverage.

Review and monitor the auditors’ independence
and performance and effectiveness of the audit
process.

Review and discuss the significant audit findings
from the statutory and internal audits carried
out, the recommendations and Management'’s
response thereto.

Review and recommend to the Board the
appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory
Auditors and Cost Auditors, considering their
independence and effectiveness and their
replacement and removal, if necessary.

Approve such additional services which are to
be rendered by the Statutory Auditors except
those enumerated in Section 144 of the Act, and
payment for such services.

Recommend to the Board the remuneration of
the Statutory Auditors/Cost Auditors.

Discussions with the Chief Internal Auditor on
significant findings and follow-up thereon.
Reviewing the annual Cost Audit
submitted by the Cost Auditors.

Report

Other Functions

To review the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor and to
approve the appointment of the Chief Financial
Officer after assessing the qualifications and
experience of the candidates.

To grant prior approval to all related party
transactions  including any  subsequent
modifications thereto, grant of omnibus approvals
for related party transactions which are repetitive
in nature, are in the ordinary course of business
and on an arms’length pricing basis and to review
and approve such transactions subject to the
approval of the Board or shareholders, as the case
may be.

The scope and terms of reference of the
Committee will be widened further effective
from April 1, 2019, in line with the amendments
made to the listing regulations which become
applicable from the said date.
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The composition of the Audit Committee as at December 31, 2018 and details of the Members participation at the
Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Category Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting held on
Member
07.02.2018 26.02.2018 18.04.2018 23.07.2018 17.10.2018 10.12.2018

Mr Arunkumar ~ Non Executive/ v v v v v v
Gandbhi, Chairman Independent
Mr Martin Non Executive/ 4 v v Leave of v Leave of
Kriegner Non Independent Absence Absence
Mr Sushil Kumar Non Executive/ v v v v v v
Roongta Independent
Mr Ashwin Dani  Non Executive/ v v v v v v

Independent
Mr Farrokh Non Executive/ 4 v v v Leave of  Leave of
Kavarana Independent Absence  Absence

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 13,2018.

All the Members on the Audit Committee are financially
literate and possess sound knowledge in finance,
accounting practices. The representatives of the
Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit
Committee Meetings. They have attended all Audit
Committee Meetings held during the year at which the
financial statements have been placed for review. The
representative of the Cost Auditor is invited to attend
the Meeting of the Audit Committee at which the Cost
Audit Report is tabled for discussion. The Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD&CEO), the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), the Chief Internal Auditor and
the Chief Manufacturing Officer attend the Meetings of
the Committee. The Company Secretary is the Secretary
to the Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
held a separate one-to-one meeting with the Statutory
Auditors and the Chief Internal Auditor to obtain their
inputs on significant matters relating to their respective
areas of audit without the presence of the MD&CEO,
CFO and others representing the Management.

Performance Review of the Audit Committee

The performance of the Audit Committee is assessed
annually by the Board of Directors through a structured
questionnaire which broadly covers composition of
the Committee, frequency of meetings; engagement
of the Members, the quality of discussion, overview of
the financial reporting process; adequacy of internal
control systems and overview of internal and external
audits. The results of the assessment are presented to
the Committee along with the action plan in the areas
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requiring improvement, if any, which are suitably
addressed.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee - Mandatory
Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises
four Members, of which three Members are Independent
Directors. The Committee is governed by a Charter.

The terms of reference of the Committee are:

. to approve transfer/transmission of shares/
debentures and such other securities, as may be
issued by the Company from time to time;

. issue of duplicate share certificates for shares/
debentures and other securities reported lost,
defaced or destroyed, as per the laid down
procedure;

. to issue new certificates against subdivision of
shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share
certificates/certificates relating to other securities;

. to issue and allot right shares/bonus shares
pursuant to a rights issue/bonus issue, subject to
such approvals as may be required;

. to oversee the implementation of ESOS scheme, if
any, implemented by the Company;

. to issue and allot debentures, bonds, and other
securities as approved by the Board of Directors
and subject to such other approvals of the
Regulators as may be required;



. to approve and monitor dematerialization of
shares/debentures/other
matters incidental or related thereto;

securities and all

. to authorize the Company Secretary & Head
Compliance/other Share
Department to attend to matters relating to:

officers of the

. transfer/transmission of shares, issue of
duplicate share certificates for
reported lost, defaced or destroyed, to
issue new certificates against subdivision
of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of
share certificates;

shares

. non receipt of annual reports, notices,
non receipt of declared dividend, change
of address for correspondence etc. and to
monitor action taken;

. to monitor Investor Relation activities of the
Company and give guidance on the flow of
information from the Company to the Investors;

. to monitor expeditious redressal of grievances
of shareholders/security holders and all other
matters incidental or related to issue of shares,
debentures and other securities if any of the
Company;
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. to review reports relating to grievances of
investors, shareholding pattern and other reports
which are to be submitted to the Stock Exchanges
periodically in line with the requirements of the
SEBI Listing Regulations;

. to review overall functioning of the Share
Department;
. in line with the changes brought about to the SEBI

Listing Regulations which are applicable from
April 1,2019, the scope of the Committee shall be
widened to cover the following new areas:

. review of measures taken for effective
exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

. review of adherence to the service
standards adopted by the Company in
respect of various services rendered by
the in-house Share Department, review of
various measures and initiatives taken by
the Company for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants/
annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company;

. any other matters as may be assigned to the
Committee by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as at December 31, 2018 and details of the Members
participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Member

Category

07.02.2018

Attendance at the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Non Executive/
Independent

Mr Farrokh Kavarana,
Chairman

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti Non Executive/

Independent
Mr Arunkumar Gandhi Non Executive/

Independent
Mr Neeraj Akhoury Executive

17.04.2018 19.07.2018 17.10.2018
v v v Leave of
Absence
v v v v
v v v v
v v v v

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 13,2018

Mr Ramaswami Kalidas, Company Secretary & Head
Compliance, functions as the Compliance Officer.

During the year, 44 letters were received from
shareholders, following up on their pending matters/
queries relating to transfers/transmission of shares,

issue of duplicate share certificates and related
matters. These letters were attended within a period
of 30 days from the date of receipt, by the Company
and as of December 31, 2018, all matters/queries were
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All share transfer documents which were lodged
with the Company duly complete in all respects were
processed within the statutory period except for 19
share transfers which were received by the Company
on December 31, 2018. These transfers have been
subsequently processed within the statutory period.

Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee -
Mandatory Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
governed by a Charter. The Chairman of the Committee
is an Independent Director and more than half the
Members on the Committee are Independent Directors.
The Chairman of the Board isa Member of the Committee
but does not chair the Meetings of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia,
include the following:

. Succession planning of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel;

. Identifying and selecting candidates who
are qualified for appointment as Directors/
Independent Directors based on certain laid
down criteria;

. Identifying potential individuals for appointment
as Key Managerial Personnel and to recommend

to the Board of Directors their appointment and
removal;

. Review the performance of the Board of Directors,
and Key Managerial Personnel based on certain
criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the
overall remuneration of the Board of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, the Committee
ensures that the remuneration is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
the best managerial talent, the relationship of
remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks and that
the remuneration involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short term and
long term objectives of the Company;

. To recommend to the Board of Directors the
extension or continuance in office of the
Independent Directors on the basis of the report
of their performance evaluation.

. In line with the amendments made to the Listing
Regulations, effective from April 1, 2019, the
functions of the Committee shall be extended
to recommend to the Board, all remuneration,
in whatever form, which is payable to Senior
Management.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at December 31, 2018 and the details of
Members’ participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Member Category

Attendance at the

N&R Committee Meetings held on

10.04.2018 12.12.2018

Mr Ashwin Dani, Chairman Non Executive/ Independent 4 Leave of Absence
Mr N S Sekhsaria Non Executive/Non Independent v v
Mr Martin Kriegner Non Executive/ Non Independent v v
Mr Shailesh Haribhakti Non Executive/ Independent v v
Mr Farrokh Kavarana Non Executive/ Independent v Leave of Absence

The Chairman of the Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 13,2018

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee -
Mandatory Committee

The Company has always been conscious of its obligations
vis-a-vis the communities it impacts and has been
pursuing various CSR activities long before these were
mandated by law. As required under the Act,a Committee
of the Board was constituted in 2013 to oversee and give
direction to the Company’s CSR activities.
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The terms of reference of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee (CSR) broadly includes:

. To review CSR projects with a view to ensure that
they are in line with the CSR objectives and Policy
of the Company and are aligned with Schedule VII
of the Act;

. To have oversight for ensuring that CSR projects
are designed, implemented and periodically



Integrated Report

monitored based on “need assessment” of the
communities;

. To review the annual CSR budget and recommend
the same to the Board of Directors for approval;

. To approve the amount of expenditure to be
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incurred on the various CSR initiatives;

. Providing guidance in the manner in which
the CSR projects undertaken by the Company
could make an impactful intervention across the
communities in which the Company operates.

The composition of the CSR Committee as at December 31, 2018 and the details of Members’ participation at the

Meetings of the Committee is as under:

Name of the Member Category

Attendance at Corporate Social

Responsibility Committee Meetings held on

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti, Chairman
Ms Falguni Nayar
Mr Farrokh Kavarana

Mr Neeraj Akhoury Executive

The Company’s CSR Policy is comprehensive and is in
alignment with the requirements of the Act and the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals. The
CSR Policy can be accessed at the Company’s website at
http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/new_pdf/ACC-
CSR-Policy-sd-by-MD-CEO-Neeraj-Akhoury.pdf and the
CSR Report forms part of the Board’s Report.

Risk Management Committee -
Committee as per Listing Regulations

Mandatory

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an
on-going process within the Company. The Company
has a dynamic risk management framework to identify,
monitor, mitigate and minimize risks as also to identify
business opportunities.

The Risk Management Committee was constituted
by the Board of Directors in 2014. The Committee is

Non Executive/ Independent

Non Executive/ Independent

17.04.2018 19.07.2018 03.12.208
Non Executive/ Independent v v v
v v v
v v Leave of Absence
v v v

governed by a charter and its objectives and scope
broadly comprise of:

. Reviewing the Business Risk Management (BRM)
Policy and framework in line with local legal
requirements and SEBI Listing Regulations;

. Review risks trends, exposure, their potential
impact analysis, and mitigation plans;

. Defining framework for identification, assessment,
monitoring, mitigation and reporting of risks.

. Reviewing risks including cyber security and
evaluating the treatment including initiating
mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-
defined cycle;

. Reviewing the robustness of the risk management
processes followed by the Management;

The composition of the Committee as at December 31,2018 and the details of Members’participation at the Meetings

of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Member Category

Attendance at the Risk Management

Committee Meetings held on

16.10.2018 03.12.2018

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti, Chairman ~ Non Executive/ Independent 4 v
Ms Falguni Nayar Non Executive/ Independent Leave of Absence 4
Mr S K Roongta Non Executive/ Independent v v
Mr Neeraj Akhoury Executive v 4

Compliance Committee - Non Mandatory Committee

Recognizing the importance of the Company being compliant with various laws and regulations which
impact its business, the Board of Directors constituted the Compliance Committee in 2008. The Compliance
Committee plays an important role in building a regime of “zero tolerance” to any form of non-compliance,

which is a pre-requisite for a robust governance mechanism.
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The terms of reference of the Committee broadly
comprises of:

reviewing the legal environment in which the
Company operates with a view to understand the
implications of major legislative and regulatory
developments and their interpretation by the
Courts of law that may significantly affect the
interests of the Company;

reviewing compliance with the provisions of
Competition Law and to provide guidance in
regard to the development of the laws in India
and abroad;

reviewing compliance with all applicable statutes,
rules and regulations based on reports received
from the MD&CEQ, Committee
Members and the Company Secretary & Head
Compliance and to recommend corrective
actions, if any, where required;

Executive

. reviewing significant legal cases filed by and
against the Company to determine, inter alia, the
probability of liabilities arising therefrom which
are of a contingent nature.

The composition of the Compliance Committee as at December 31,2018 and the details of the Members participation

at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of the Member Category

07.02.2018 17.04.2018 19.07.2018

Attendance at the Compliance Committee Meetings held on

16.10.2018

Mr Farrokh Kavarana Non Executive/ Independent

Mr Shailesh Haribhakti Non Executive/ Independent

Mr S K Roongta Non Executive/ Independent

Mr Neeraj Akhoury Executive

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company does not have any “material subsidiary”as
defined in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Accordingly, the requirement of appointing an
Independent Director of the Company on the Board of
Directors of the material unlisted subsidiary company
as per Regulation 24 of the SEBI Listing Regulation does
not apply.

The Company’s policy on “material subsidiary”is placed
on the company’s website and can be accessed through
weblink http://www.acclimited.com/sh/DMS.pdf

The Audited Annual Financial Statements and the
Unaudited Quarterly Financial Statements along with
the Auditors Limited Review thereon of Subsidiary
Companies are tabled at the Meetings of the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company for
an overview prior to their consolidation with the Parent
Company.

Copies of the approved Minutes of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee as
applicable to the Subsidiary Company and the approved
Minutes of the Board Meetings of all Subsidiary
Companies are provided to the ACC Directors and
tabled at the Board Meeting of the Parent Company.
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DISCLOSURES
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The Company has followed the relevant Accounting
Standards notified by the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 while preparing
Financial Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Transactions entered into by the Company during
the year with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis.
These transactions are also subject to scrutiny by an
external Independent Agency. The policy on related
party transactions has been placed on the Company’s
website and can be accessed at http://www.acclimited.
com/sh/RPT.pdf In line with the amended SEBI Listing
Regulations, this Policy will be amended suitably
effective from April 1,2019.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT TOOL

The Company has in place an on-line legal compliance
management tool, which is devised to ensure
compliance with all applicable laws which impact the
Company'’s business. The tool is intended to provide an
assurance to the Board on legal compliances as ensured
by the Company.



CONFIRMATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS'
ACCEPTANCE OF RECOMMENDATION OF
MANDATORY COMMITTEES

In terms of the amendments made to the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board of Directors confirm that during
the year, it has accepted all recommendations received
from its mandatory committees.

STRICTURES AND PENALTIES

No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory
authority on any matters related to capital markets
during the last three years.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Business
Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the
Board and to all employees. The Company follows a
policy of “Zero Tolerance” to bribery and corruption in
any form and the Board has laid down the “Anti -Bribery
& Corruption Directive” which forms an Appendix to
the above Code. The Code has been posted on the
Company'’s website www.acclimited.com

The Code lays down the standard of conduct which is
expected to be followed by the Directors and by the
employees in their business dealings and in particular
on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in
business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The
Code gives guidance through examples on the expected
behaviour from an employee in a given situation and
the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management
Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.
All Management Staff were required to complete an
e-learning module on the above subject, in addition to
the face-to-face training conducted by the Compliance
team of the Company from time to time.

FAIR COMPETITION DIRECTIVE PROGRAMME

Fair Competition Directive programme which was earlier
known as Value Creation in Competitive Environment
(VCCE) was introduced in the Company as early as 2008
and the Company has been carrying out extensive
training sessions for creating awareness among relevant
employees on fair competitive practices.

Under the fair competition programmes, training
sessions are conducted on an annual basis for the
concerned employees of the Company, particularly
those in sales and purchase functions, on various
aspects of competition law and on behavioral aspects
for ensuring fair competition in the market place.
E-Learning training is imparted to all such employees in
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addition to face-to-face training and includes a specific
module on“Do’s and Don't’s”in a tender bidding process.

In addition to the above, the processes of the Company
are subject to periodic reviews and where required, are
being further strengthened.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company is committed to the high standards of
Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility.

The Company has an “EthicalView Reporting” (EVR)
Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mis-
management, if any. The EVR Policy ensures that
strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with
concerns and also ensures that no discrimination
is meted out to any person for a genuinely raised
concern. Pursuant thereto, a dedicated helpline
“ACC Ethics Helpline” has been set-up which is managed
by an independent professional organization. The Ethics
Helpline can be contacted to report on any suspected or
confirmed incident of fraud/misconduct on:

E-Mail: acc@ethicalview.com

Online reporting on https:integrity.lafargeholcim.com
. National Toll Free Number: 18002092008
. Fax Number: +91(22) 66459575
. Address: PO Box 137, Pune 411 001

A Committee consisting of Senior Employees has been
constituted which looks into the complaints raised
and recommends appropriate action where necessary.
The Committee reports to the Audit Committee which
in turn apprises the Board on such matters as may be
necessary.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
has formulated the “Code of Internal Procedures and
Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring And Reporting
of Trading by Insiders” and the “Code of Practices
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information” (ACC Code) which allows
the formulation of a trading plan subject to certain
conditions and requires pre-clearance for dealing in
the Company’s shares. It also prohibits the purchase or
sale of Company’s shares by the Directors, designated
employees and connected persons, while in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to
the Company and during the period(s) when the Trading
Window to deal in the Company’s shares is closed.

The Company Secretary & Head Compliance is
responsible for implementation of the ACC Code.

The Board of Directors, designated employees and
connected persons have affirmed compliance with the

ACC Code.
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In line with the amendments introduced recently
by SEBI, the above Code will be amended suitably
to align it with the amendments which are effective
from April1, 2019.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company follows a robust process of communicating
with its stakeholders and investors. For this purpose,
it provides multiple channels of communications viz.
through dissemination of information on the on-line
portal of the Stock Exchanges, Press Releases, the Annual
Reports and placing relevant information on its website.

The unaudited quarterly results (both standalone and
consolidated) are announced within forty-five days
of the close of the quarter. The audited annual results
are announced within sixty days from the close of the
financial year, as required under SEBI Listing Regulations.
The aforesaid financial results are disseminated to the
Stock Exchanges within thirty minutes from the close of
the Board Meetings at which these are considered and
approved. The results are published in leading English
daily newspapers and the Marathi translation of the
same is published in leading Marathi daily newspapers.

The audited financial statements form a part of the
Annual Report which is sent to the Members within the
statutory period and in advance of the Annual General
Meeting.

The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly/half
yearly and the annual audited financial statements and
the press releases of the Company are also placed on
the Company’s website: www.acclimited.com and can
be downloaded.

The presentations on the performance of the Company
are placed on the Company’s website for the benefit
of the institutional investors, analysts and other
shareholders immediately after the financial results are
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

The Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges,
information required to be disclosed under Regulation 30
read with Part A of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing
Regulations including material information which have a
bearing on the performance/operations of the Company
or which is price sensitive in nature. All information is
filed electronically on BSE's on-line Portal — BSE Listing
Centre (Listing Center) and on NSE Electronic Application
Processing System (NEAPS), the on-line portal of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The Board of Directors has approved a policy for
determining materiality of events for the purpose of
making disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. An internal
Management Committee comprising the MD&CEQ, the
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Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary &
Head Compliance has been constituted and empowered
to decide on the materiality of information for the
purpose of making disclosure to the Stock Exchanges.
The policy on the above is being modified in line with
the amendments made to the SEBI Listing Regulations
which are effective from April1, 2019.

Disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges are also made
available on the Company’s website under the heading
‘Announcements’and can be accessed through weblink
http://www.acclimited.com/an

Facility has been provided by SEBI for investors to place
their complaints/grievances on a centralized web-based
complaints redress system viz. SEBI Complaints Redress
System (SCORES). The salient features of this system
are: centralized database of all complaints, on-line
upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concerned
companies and on-line viewing by investors of actions
taken on the complaints and their current status.

A separate dedicated section under ‘Corporate
Governance’ on the Company's website gives
information on unclaimed dividends and details of
shares transferred to Investor Education & Protection
Fund Authority — Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Quarterly compliance reports and other relevant
information of interest to the investors are also placed
under the Corporate Governance Section on the
Company'’s website.

The Company also uploads on the BSE Listing Centre
and on NSE's NEAPS portal, details of analysts and
institutional investor meetings which are either held by
the Company or in which the Company participates.

Reminders to shareholders are sent for enabling them to
claim returned undelivered share certificates, unclaimed
dividend etc.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY PROVISIONS

The status with regard to compliance by the Company
with discretionary requirements as listed out in Part E of
Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations is as under:

. The position of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and that of the Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer are separate.

. Chairman’s office is separate from that of the
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer.

. The audit report on the Company’s Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31,
2018 is unmodified.

. The Chief Internal Auditor reports directly to the
Audit Committee.



The Company follows a robust process of
communicating with the shareholders which has
been elaborated in the Report under the Heading
“Means of Communication”

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Annual General Meeting

Date : Friday, March 22,2019
Time :3.00 PM.
Venue : Pama Thadani Auditorium,

Jai Hind College, “A” Road,

Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020
Financial Year : January - December, 2018
Dividend Payment : March 28, 2019, if declared
Date

Investor Services

The Company has an in-house Share Department
located at its Registered Office which offers all
share related services to its Members and Investors.
These  services include  transfer/transmission/
dematerialization of shares/payment of dividends/sub-
division/consolidation/ renewal of share certificates and
resolutions of investor grievances.

The Company is registered with SEBI as a Registrar to an
Issue/Share Transfer Agent in Category Il Share Transfer
Agent and the Registration Code is INRO00004124.

Address for Correspondence with the Company

ACC Limited

Share Department

“Cement House”

121, Maharshi Karve Road, Mumbai 400020

Telephone No.: (022) 33024469

Communication by E-mail: sujata.chitre@acclimited.com

Communication by Members

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form
should correspond with the Depository Participant
with whom they maintain their Demat Account/s for
queries relating to shareholding, updation of change of
address, updation of bank details for electronic credit
of dividend. However, queries relating to non-receipt of
dividend, non-receipt of annual reports, or on matters
relating to the working of the Company should be
addressed to the Company.

Members who hold shares in physical form should
address their requests to the Company for change of
address, change in bank details, processing of unclaimed
dividend, subdivision of shares, renewal/split/
consolidation of share certificates, issue of duplicate
share certificates and such requests should be signed by
the first named Member, as per the specimen signature
registered with the Company. The Company may also,
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with a view to safeguard the interest of its Members and
that of the Company, request for additional supporting
documents such as proof of identity and/or address as
considered appropriate in addition to the requirement
of certified copies of PAN cards.

Members are requested to state their DP ID & Client ID/
Ledger Folio number in their correspondence with the
Company and also to provide their E-mail addresses and
telephone numbers to facilitate prompt response from
the Company.

Exclusive E-Mail ID & Toll Free Number

The Company has designated an e-mail ID to enable
the Members and Investors to correspond with the
Company. The e-mail ID is ACC-InvestorSupport@
acclimited.com

The Company has also set up a toll free number 1800-
3002-1001 to facilitate the Members/Investors to
contact the Company. The toll free services will be
available on all working days during the office hours
except Saturdays, Sundays and all public holidays of the
Company from 9.15 a.m. till 5.00 p.m.

Plant Locations

The locations of the Company’s Plants are given on the
inside cover page of the Annual Report. The details of
the Plants along with their addresses and telephone
numbers are also available on the Company’s website.

MARKET INFORMATION

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company’s shares are listed on the following Stock
Exchanges and the Listing Fees have been duly paid to
the Exchanges:

Name and Address of Stock ISIN Number for

the Stock Exchanges Code/ NSDL/CDSL
Scrip Code (Dematerialised

shares)

BSE Limited 500410

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy

Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai 400 001

The National Stock ACC

Exchange of India INE012A01025

Limited

Exchange Plaza,
Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East),

Mumbai 400 051
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ACC Share Price on BSE vis-a-vis BSE Sensex January-December 2018

BSE Sensex ACC Share Price No. of shares Turnover
Close traded during () crores
Low Close the month
g 3

January 2018 35965.02 1856.00 1702.00 1716.40 1000377 181.05
February 2018 34184.04 1745.15 1562.65 1625.80 327759 53.95
March 2018 32968.68 1641.00 1503.30 1508.20 244297 38.15
April 2018 35160.36 1621.50 1500.00 1583.50 289216 45.19
May 2018 35322.38 1594.50 1291.95 1356.20 485282 66.94
June 2018 35423.48 1400.00 1261.00 1338.30 559565 73.83
July 2018 37606.58 1551.25 1255.00 1527.15 1507091 216.84
August 2018 38645.07 1670.00 1500.50 1638.90 587624 93.09
September 2018 36227.14 1676.00 1441.85 1550.50 572239 89.79
October 2018 34442.05 1588.05 1322.20 1373.20 1958640 270.32
November 2018 36194.30 1528.70 1378.05 1484.90 495391 72.39
December 2018 36068.33 1572.95 1369.70 1504.80 594695 89.00

ACCShare Price on BSE & BSE Sensex
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ACC Share Price on NSE vis-a-vis S&P CNX Nifty January - December 2018

S&P CNX ACC Share Price No. of shares Turnover
Nifty (Close) traded during X Crore
High Low Close the month
Z i Z

January 2018 11027.70 1857.45 1700.05 1715.25 6313022 1130.00
February 2018 10492.85 1744.85 1565.00 1623.05 7458451 1226.85
March 2018 10113.70 1642.90 1498.95 1507.50 5458094 849.42
April 2018 10739.35 1629.00 1509.40 1587.15 5997525 937.40
May 2018 10736.15 1595.30 1290.00 1354.60 13366347 1838.01
June 2018 10714.30 1371.00 1260.15 1339.90 11839573 1557.94
July 2018 11356.50 1552.00 1255.65 1529.75 21501084 3067.29
August 2018 11680.50 1669.55 1499.05 1638.75 13294208 2114.12
September 2018 10930.45 1678.90 1433.05 1552.35 11820084 1858.07
October 2018 10386.60 1588.20 1322.55 1374.80 19262126 2761.73
November 2018 10876.75 1528.00 1378.10 1485.50 11681615 1711.02
December 2018 10862.55 1573.00 1385.00 1508.10 11323549 1690.30

ACCShare Price on NSE & S&P CNXNIFTY
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SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM / DIVIDEND AND
OTHER RELATED MATTERS

Share Transfers

Share Transfer Forms (SH-4) for shares held
in physical mode which are received by the
Company, complete in all respects are promptly
processed and the share certificates are returned
to the transferees within a period of fifteen
days from the date of receipt of transfer. Share
transfer forms which are incomplete or cases
where the Company has noticed irregularities in
the document are immediately returned to the
transferees by registered post.

SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/
GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 amended
Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations
pursuant to which after December 5, 2018 transfer
of securities could not be processed unless the
securities are held in the dematerialized form
with a depository. The said deadline has been
extended by SEBI to April 1,2019.

Pursuant thereto, the Company has sent letters
to those shareholders holding shares in physical
form advising them to dematerialize their holding.

Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to dematerialize their holdings at
the earliest as it will not be possible to transfer
shares held in physical mode as per extension
of the deadline announced by SEBI.

Nomination facility for shareholding

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act,
facility for making nomination is available for
Members in respect of shares held by them.
Members holding shares in physical form may
obtain a nomination form (Form SH-13), from the
Share Department of the Company or download
the same from the Company’s website. Members
holding shares in dematerialized form should
contact their Depository Participants (DP) in this
regard.

Permanent Account Number (PAN)

Members who hold shares in physical form
are advised that SEBI has made it mandatory
that a copy of the PAN card of the transferor(s),
transferee(s), surviving joint holders/legal heirs
be submitted to the Company while obtaining the
services of transfer, transposition, transmission
and issue of duplicate share certificates.
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Members attention is invited to SEBI's circular
no SEBI/HO/MIRSD/0081/CIR/P/2018/73 dated
April 20, 2018 pursuant to which the Company
has written to shareholders holding shares in
physical form requesting them to furnish details
regarding their PAN as also their bank details for
payment of dividend through electronic mode.
Those shareholders who are yet to respond to the
Company'’s request in this regard are once again
requested to take action in the matter at the
earliest.

Subdivision of shares

The Company had subdivided the face value of its
Equity Shares from 3100 to %10 in the year 1999.
The old shares having face value of %100 are no
longer tradable on the Stock Exchanges. Members
still holding share certificates of the face value of
%100 are requested to send the certificates to the
Share Department of the Company for exchange
with shares of the face value of 10 each.

Dividend

a. Paymentofdividend through Automated
Clearing House (ACH)

The Company provides the facility for direct
credit of the dividend to the Members’
Bank Account. SEBI Listing Regulations also
mandate companies to credit the dividend
to the members electronically. Members
are therefore urged to avail this facility
to ensure safe and speedy credit of their
dividend into their bank account through
the Banks' “Automated Clearing House”
mode. Members who hold shares in demat
mode should inform their Depository
Participant, whereas Members holding
shares in physical form should inform the
Company of the core banking account
details allotted to them by their bankers.
In cases where the core banking account
details are not available, the Company will
issue the demand drafts mentioning the
existing bank details available with the
Company.

b. Unclaimed Dividends

The Company is required to transfer
dividends which have remained unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of seven years from
the date, the dividend has become due
for payment to the Investor Education
& Protection Fund (IEPF) established by



the Government. Accordingly, during the
financial year 2019, unclaimed dividends
pertaining to the following periods will be
transferred to IEPF:

. 74 Final Dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

. 75" Interim Dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Before transferring the unclaimed dividends
to IEPF, individual letters are sent to those
Members whose unclaimed dividends
are due for transfer so as to enable them
to claim the dividends before the due
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date for such transfer. The information on
unclaimed dividend is also posted on the
website of the Company www.acclimted.
com.

In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/
MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20,
2018, the bankers to the dividend accounts
opened by the Company for the earlier
years have credited back the amount of
dividend lying unpaid beyond the validity
period into the relevant bank accounts. The
Company is in the process of reconciling
the above accounts for necessary action.

The dates by which the dividend amounts will be transferred to IEPF are as under:

Financial Year

31.12.2011 (74 Final)
31.12.2012 (75t Interim)
31.12.2012 (75" Final)
31.12.2013 (76™ Interim)
31.12.2013 (76" Final)
31.12.2014 (77 Interim)
31.12.2014 (77t Final)
31.12.2015 (78 Interim)
31.12.2015 (78" Final)
31.12.2016 (79t Interim)
31.12.2016 (79" Final)
31.12.2017 (80t Interim)
31.12.2017 (80" Final)

_ m A ma a ma a a

Transfer of the ‘Shares’ into Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) (in
cases where dividend has not been paid
or claimed for seven consecutive years or
more)

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Act read
with Investor Education & Protection
Fund (IEPF) Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 as
amended, and Notifications issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to
time, the Company is required to transfer
the shares in respect of which dividends
have remained unpaid/unclaimed for a
period of seven consecutive years or more
to the IEPF Account established by the
Central Government. As required under the
said Rules, the Company has transferred the
required number of shares to the IEPF.

Date of Rate of Dividend Due date for
Declaration per share (J) transfer to IEPF
28.03.2012 17.00 01.06.2019
26.07.2012 11.00 29.09.2019
05.04.2013 19.00 09.06.2020
25.07.2013 11.00 28.09.2020
09.04.2014 19.00 13.06.2021
24.07.2014 15.00 27.09.2021
20.03.2015 19.00 24.05.2022
17.07.2015 11.00 20.09.2022
13.04.2016 6.00 17.06.2023
26.07.2016 11.00 29.09.2023
29.03.2017 6.00 02.06.2024
17.07.2017 11.00 21.09.2024
13.06.2018 15.00 18.08.2025

Guidelines for Investors to file claim in
respect of the Unclaimed Dividend or
Shares transferred to the IEPF

With effect from September 7, 2016,
Investors/Depositors unpaid
dividends, matured deposits or debentures
etc. have been transferred to IEPF under
Companies Act, 1956 and/or the Act, can
claim the amounts. In addition, claims can
also be made in respect of shares which
have been transferred into the IEPF, as per
the procedures/guidelines stated below:

whose

i. Download the Form IEPF-5 from the
website of [EPF (http://www.iepf.
gov.in) for filing the claim for the
refund of dividend/shares. Read the
instructions provided on the website/
instruction kit alongwith the e-form
carefully before filling the form.
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iil After filling the form, save it on your
computer and submit the duly filled
form by following the instructions
given in the upload link on the
website. On successful uploading, an
acknowledgement will be generated
indicating the SRN. Please note down
the SRN details for future tracking of
the form.

iii.  Takeaprintoutofthedulyfilled Form
No.IEPF-5 and the acknowledgement
issued after uploading the form.

iv. Submitanindemnity bondin original,
copy of the acknowledgement and
self attested copy of e-form along
with other documents as mentioned
in the Form No.I[EPF-5 to the Nodal
Officer (IEPF) of the Company at its
Registered Office in an envelope
marked “Claim for refund from IEPF
Authority” / “Claim for shares from
IEPF” as the case may be. Kindly note
that submission of documents to the
Company is necessary to initiate the
refund process.

V. Claim forms completed in all respects
will be verified by the concerned
Company and on the basis of
Company’s Verification Report, refund

vi.

will be released by the IEPF Authority
in favour of claimants’ Aadhar linked
bank account through electronic
transfer and/or the shares shall be
credited to the demat account of the
claimant, as the case may be.

The Nodal Officer of the Company for IEPF
Refunds Process is Mr Naresh Motiani whose
e-mail id is naresh.motiani@acclimited.com

Dealing with securities which have remained
unclaimed

Regulation 39(4) of SEBI Listing Regulations
read with Schedule VI "Manner of dealing with
Unclaimed Shares’, had directed Companies
to dematerialize such shares which have
been returned as “Undelivered” by the postal
authorities and hold these sharesinan“Unclaimed
Suspense Account” to be opened with either one
of the Depositories viz. NSDL or CDSL.

All corporate benefits on such shares viz. bonus,
dividends etc. shall be credited to the unclaimed
suspense account as applicable for a period
of seven years and thereafter be transferred
in accordance with the provisions of Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer, and Refund) Rules,
2016 (IEPF Rules) read with Section 124(6) of the
Act.

The details of operations of the demat “Unclaimed Suspense A/c” of ACC Limited during the year are as under:

Particulars No. of shareholders No. of shares
Aggregate no. of shareholders and outstanding shares held 1925 195454

in the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 01.01.2018

Number of shareholders/legal heirs to whom the shares 12 810
were transferred from the Unclaimed Suspense Account

upon receipt and verification of necessary documents

Number of shareholders whose shares were transferred 1303 78710
from the Unclaimed Suspense Account to IEPF authority

MCA Demat Suspense Account

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares 610 ¥115934

in the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 31.12.2018

*Voting rights in respect of the aforesaid 115934 shares held in the Unclaimed Suspense A/c are frozen till the time such shares are claimed
by the concerned shareholders and the shares are re-transferred in their names.

As on December 31, 2018, 30 claimants have lodged claims with the Company reclaiming in the aggregate of
5,020 shares which have been transferred in to the Unclaimed Suspense A/c of ACC Limited. The Company is
yet to receive necessary documentation from these claimants.
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vii.

Integrated Report

Pending Investors’ Grievances

Any Member/Investor whose grievance has not
been resolved satisfactorily, may kindly write to
the Company Secretary & Head Compliance at
the Registered Office with a copy of the earlier
correspondence, if any.

Financial Highlights @ Board & Management Reports

Financial Statements

an independent external auditor with a view to
reconcile the total share capital admitted with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
and held in physical form, with the issued and
listed capital. The Auditor’s Certificate in regard

to the same is submitted to BSE Limited and The
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and is

viii. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

As required by the Securities & Exchange
Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the
Company'’s share capital is being carried out by

also placed before Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee and the Board of Directors.

Distribution of shareholding as on 31t December, 2018

No. of Shares

Physical % of NSDL % of CDSL % of Total No.of % of
share share share Shares share
capital capital capital capital

No. of shares No. of %
slab share-

holders

1-50 61793 62.22 154340 0.08 685820 037 242494  0.13 1082654 0.58
51-100 12176 1226 165322  0.09 659490 035 178028  0.09 1002840 0.53
101-200 9004 9.07 263853 0.14 873300 047 216565  0.12 1353718 0.72
201-500 8149 8.21 509972  0.27 1796253 096 386646  0.21 2692871 143
501-1000 3988 4.02 459272 0.24 2032200 1.08 407062  0.22 2898534 1.54
1001-5000 3473 3.50 1034275 0.5 5085947 271 931357  0.50 7051579 3.76
5001-10000 359 036 336337 0.18 1834433 098 331570 0.18 2502340 1.33
>10000 373 0.38 834295 044 167819604 8937 548828  0.29 169202727 90.10
Total 99315 100.00 3757666 2.00 180787047 96.27 3242550 1.73 187787263 100.00

The Company has entered into agreements with both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby shareholders have an option to dematerialize their shares with
either of the depositories.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2018

| NSDLﬁ

M Physical
2.00 %

W CDSL
1.73%
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Shareholding Pattern as on 31 December, 2018

Category No. of Shares held
Promoter

i Ambuja Cements Limited 93984120

ii. Holderind Investments Ltd. 8411000

Banks, Financial Institutions,
Insurance Companies & Mutual Funds

i Banks 571830
ii. Financial Institutions 22137431
ii.  Insurance Companies 4401283
iv.  Mutual Funds 16762376
Central & State Governments 287815
Foreign Portfolio Investors 13483478
NRIs / Foreign Nationals 1204802
Directors 0
Public and Others 26543128
TOTAL 187787263

%
50.05 54.53
448 }
0.30 23.36
11.79
234
8.93
0.15
7.18
0.64
0.00
14.14
100.00

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON DECEMBER 31, 2018

Promoters
54.53%

Public and Others
14.14% ’

NRIs/Foreign Nationals
0.64% ’

Foreign Portfolio Investors Y

0y
7.18% Central &/v

State Governments
0.15% T

Banks,
Financial Institutions,
Insurance Companies
& Mutual Funds
23.36%
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Statement showing Shareholding of more than 1% of the Capital as on December 31,2018

Sr. Names of the shareholders
No.

1 Ambuja Cements Limited (Promoter)
Holderind Investments Ltd (Promoter)
2 Life Insurance Corporation of India

TOTAL

Number of Percentage of
shares Capital
93984120 50.05
8411000 4.48
19405142 10.33
121800262 64.86

Global Depository Receipts (GDR) or any Convertible instrument, conversion dates and likely impact on Equity

NIL

Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities

The Company does not have any exposure to commodity price risk. However, foreign exchange exposure risks have
not been hedged by any derivative instrument or otherwise.

Particulars of past three Annual General Meetings

AGM Financial Year

Special Resolutions passed

82" Calendar Year 2017 Birla Matushri 13.06.2018 3.00 p.m.  No Special Resolution was passed
Sabhagar, 19,

81 Calendar Year 2016 Sir Vithaldas 29.03.2017 3.00 p.m.  No Special Resolution was passed

80t Calendar Year 2015 Thackersey Marg, 13.04.2016  3.00 p.m.  Special Resolution for adoption of

Mumbai 400 020

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM)

No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the
period under reference.

Details of Resolution passed through postal ballot,
the persons who conducted the postal ballot
exercise and details of the voting pattern

Pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, Notice dated February
26, 2018 was sent to the Members seeking their

Particulars

Total Postal Ballot Forms received

Less: Invalid Forms received

Net valid Postal Ballot Forms received

Postal Ballot Forms with assent for the Resolution

Postal Ballot Forms with dissent for the Resolution

Articles of Association was passed

approval through Postal Ballot for passing of an Ordinary
Resolution for approval for Related Party Transactions
with Ambuja Cements Limited. Ambuja Cements
Limited and Holderind Investments Limited being
“related parties” of the Company under the Companies
Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, abstained from voting
on the said Resolution as stipulated under Regulation
23(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Mr Pramod S Shah,
Managing Partner of M/s Pramod S Shah & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (Scrutinizer) conducted
the postal ballot process.

Number of Ballots Number of Votes % of Votes
1671 51843405 100
169 30971 0.06
1502 51812434 99.94
1307 48569705 93.69
195 3242729 6.25

The Ordinary Resolution as per Notice dated February 26, 2018 for the approval for Related Party Transactions with
Ambuja Cements Limited was accordingly passed with the requisite majority.
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2018:

Board Meeting for consideration of Accounts for
the financial year ended December 31, 2018 and
recommendation of dividend

Posting of Annual Reports
Book Closure Dates
Last date for receipt of Proxy Forms

Date, Time and Venue of the 83 Annual

General Meeting

Dividend Payment Date
Probable date of despatch of warrants

Board Meeting for consideration of unaudited
quarterly results for the financial year ended
December 31,2019

Audited results for the current financial year ending
December 31,2019

Mumbai
February 5,2019

February 5,2019

On or before February 25,2019

March 7,2019 to March 12, 2019 (both days inclusive)
March 20, 2019 before 3.00 p.m.

March 22,2019 at 3.00 p.m.

Pama Thadani Auditorium, Jai Hind College, “A” Road,
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020

March 28, 2019

On or before March 27,2019

Within forty five days from the end of the quarter, as
stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the
Stock Exchanges

Within sixty days from the end of the last quarter, as
stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the
Stock Exchanges

For and on behalf of the Board

N S Sekhsaria
Chairman

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

As provided under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Board Members
and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended

December 31, 2018.

Mumbai:
February 5,2019

@ ACC LIMITED

For ACC Limited

Neeraj Akhoury
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer



@ Board & Management Reports

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (MD&CEO)
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of ACC Limited (“the Company") to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

a. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow statement for the financial year ended December
31,2018 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:
i these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
any statements that might be misleading;
ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.  We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct.

C. We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Business Conduct as adopted by the Company.

d.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting of
the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation
of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to take to
rectify these deficiencies.

e. We have indicated, based in our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee:

i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii.  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over the
financial reporting.

Yours faithfully

Neeraj Akhoury Sunil Nayak
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai

February 5,2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SCERTIFICATEONCORPORATEGOVERNANCE

To
The Members of ACC LIMITED

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated June 29, 2018.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of ACC LIMITED (“the
Company”) have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the
year ended on December 31,2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2)
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (the Listing Regulations).

Management’s Responsibility

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

5. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements by the Company.

6.  We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion
8. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended December 31, 2018.

9.  We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

B.P.Shroff
Partner
(Membership No. 034382)
Place : Mumbai
Date :February 5,2019

@ ACC LIMITED
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Section A: General Information about the Company

1.  Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L26940MH1936PLC002515
2.  Name of the Company : ACC Limited
Registered Address : Cement House

121, Maharshi Karve Road
Mumbai 400 020

4. Website : www.acclimited.com
5. E-mailid . brrinfo@acclimited.com
6. Financial Year reported . Financial Year ended December 31,2018
7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code wise):
Group Class Sub class Description
239 2394 23941 Manufacture of Clinker and Cement

8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet):

The Company manufactures different varieties of cement viz. Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC), Portland
Pozzolana Cement (PPC), Portland Slag Cement (PSC), Composite Cement and Ready Mix Concrete (RMX)

9.  Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company:

i. Number of international locations : Nil

ii.  Number of national locations : 17 cement plants, 75 Ready Mix Concrete Plants, and
27 offices including Registered Office, Regional Offices
and Sales Offices

10. Markets served by the Company : PanIndia across all markets.

Section B: Financial Details of the Company

1.  Paid up capital (INR) : ¥187.79 Crore

2.  Total turnover (INR) 1 314,477.47 Crore

3. Total profit after taxes (INR) : ¥1,506.63 Crore

4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%):

The Company'’s total spending on CSR is 2.09% of the average profit after taxes in the previous three financial
years.

5.  List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred:
Livelihood
a. ACC DISHA - for Youth Employability
b. ACC Swawlamban - focusing on women empowerment and livelihood

C ACC LEISA - for Farmers' Livelihood (Low External Input Sustainability Agriculture)
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Education

d. ACC VidyaUtkarsh (Quality of Education in Government Schools)

e. ACC VidyaSarthi (Scholarship for Students)

WASH (Water, Sanitation and Health)

f. ACC Arogyam (Preventive, Promotive and Curative health care)

g. ACCSampurna Swachhata (Towards open defecation free villages)
Conservation of Environment

h.  ACC Sanrakshit Paryavaran (Solar, Biodiversity and Soil & Water Conservation)

Promoting Local Arts and Culture

i. ACC Drona (To promote rural sports and traditional Indian culture)

Section C: Other Details
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / Companies?
Yes, the Company has 5 subsidiaries, viz:
a. ACC Mineral Resources Limited
b. Bulk Cement Corporation (India) Limited
C. Lucky Minmat Limited
d. National Limestone Company Private Limited
e. Singhania Minerals Private Limited

2. Do the Subsidiary Company / Companies participate in the BR initiatives of the parent Company? If yes,
then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)?

Business Responsibility initiatives of the parent company are applied by Bulk Cement Corporation (India)
Limited, the Company’s Subsidiary. While Singhania Minerals Private Limited is operational from the previous
year only, the remaining three Subsidiaries are inoperative.

3. Do any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc) that the Company does business with
participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes then indicate the percentage of such entity /
entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

CSRinitiative"ACC ki Laadli”under the Vidya Utkarsh project is a flagship education initiative of ACCs in Northern
and Eastern India. In partnership with a NGO, this initiative has been undertaken to establish learning centres
for girl children in the age groups of 6-14 years. ~1,380 girl children, especially those who have dropped out
of schools and belong to the marginalized and deprived sections of the society have been enrolled in these
schools and provided quality primary education. The aim is to mainstream these girls, and prepare them to
take the class V exam at the State level.

The Project receives contributions from ACC Cement Dealers in the North Region in the form of “Lakshya
points” secured by them in appreciation of their achievements of business targets from ACC. The points are
then redeemed as financial inputs into this project.

The project implementation started in October 2013. So far 50 learning centres have been set up in different
parts of Uttar Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Punjab, Rajasthan, Haryana, Uttarakhand and
Bihar. Educating needy girls at these centres has been in progress since inception of the project.
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Section D: BR Information
Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR:
Details of the Director / Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy / policies:
Director Identification Number (DIN): 07419090
Name: Mr Neeraj Akhoury
Designation: Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Details of the BR head:

Sr.  Particulars Details

No

1 DIN Number (if applicable) NA

2 Name Mr Ramaswami Kalidas

3 Designation Company Secretary and Head Compliance
4 Telephone Number (022) 33024321 /33024255

5 E mail Id brrinfo@acclimited.com

Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / policies (Reply in Y/N):

The National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business
released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These are
briefly as under:

P1- Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout
their life cycle.

P3 - Businesses should promote the well- being of all employees

P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights
P6 - Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible
manner.

P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

P9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 @



Aujiqeureisng 900¢ Y3 yum
Y3} Yym ‘uolyedyoN Aywioguod ui
A)wioyuod uj VI3 Japun os|e si Ad1jod
os|e st A1jod Anjigisuodsay 3y} ‘uonippe
9y} ‘uonippe juswiuoiiAug ul“€10¢C 1Y iKyads
u|'€10Z ‘PY 9jei0dio) jo saluedwo) 'saf ] isplepueis
saluedwo) ay) saullepInb 3y} Jo |euoleulalul
Jo suoisinoid 430 3Y2 suoisinoid ay} (S19) spliepueis / leuoiyeu Aue
0} SW.I0Ju0d 0} SWIoJU0d 0} SW.I0JuU0d uelpuj jo 0} WJoJu0d
- Ao110d A - Aonjod syl A - Ao1j0d syl A neaing ‘A fljodayrssog ¢
islapjoyaels
JUBAS|2J DY) YUM
uol}R}NSUOD U]
pale|nwiio} uaaq
- A - A - A - folodayrsey ¢
s1onpoud
sa2130eud 9|qeuleisns
4H Joylo pue ajes Jo
sa1|0d YH 2in}oejnuew o}
1DNpuod 9)e|[aJ elje-4a3ul
ssauisng yoiym sapijod
J0 9po> JUSWIUOIIAUD
s,Auedwo) 8 Ayjenb
QY3 Ul s,Auedwo) ay) 10}
pappagqws Ul pappagqwia saipijod / Ad1j0d
N A N A s1 Ao1j0d ay | A s1 Ad1jod ay] ‘A eaneynokog |

s1ob.ey pajejas

syobie) paefal S pue sHds
S)1 pue sHds pauiaduod 01
pauJacu0d 0} paddew aie
paddew aie s123foud uno ||y

s329(oud Jno ||y

'(sDds) s|eoo
jusawdolanaQ

'(sDas) s[eoo
jJuswdolansqg
Ayjiqeurelsng

6d Ld sd td €d ad

HsO» saakojdwz
juswabebuz jJjobuidq  Ayjqisuodsay ON
19pjoyayers TENTY 1Pnpoid $J1Y33 ssauisng suonsand is

suoneay £>110d sybry

A9wolsn) Jliqnd juswiuoldinug uewnH

ACC LIMITED

®



@ Board & Management Reports

K¥X*

6d

suone|ay
Jawoisn)

**.>

juswiuoldinug

td

4yso®»
juswabebuzy

1spjoyajers

€d
s9akojdw3g

Jo buieq
lI°M

sbunas|y
9911WWO0D
SAIINDSXF 1V A

pnpoid

S31Y33 ssauisng

islapjoyayess
[euIDIXd

pue |euiaiul
JUeA3JaI || 0}
pajesiunwwod
K|jewo) usaq
£o1j0d Y3 seH
iauluo

PaMB3IA 37 0}
Ao110d ayy Joy
ul] 9y3 a3ed1pu|
i£d110d 3y1 Jo
uonejuswa|dwi
9Y3 995910 0}
[ePYQ / 1033117
/ pieog sy}

JO 9911WWO0d
payads e

aney Auedwo)
9y3 se0Q
{lopaig pieog
91enidosdde
/03>/48umo
/AW Aq paubis
u33q I sey ‘sak
J1 {preog ay1 Aq
panoidde uasq
£o1j0d ayy seH

suonsand

¢

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



6d

suonejay
Jawoisn)

Ld

£o1104
d1qnd

J

pd-buieaw-391wWwWo)

JuswWuodiAug

4SD-p1eog-910¢-AON-

8¢C

J19}je-psosijeuy:

-K2110d-H4SD/1S2/MBU/32IN0S /WO PRI MMM//:d1x 4x

JPdIUSWUOIIAUS/Jpd MOU/MaU/SISSSE/W0 POHWIDIE MMM//-ATT] 4«

#pd"£102-¥0-81-paubis-|eul4-1oNpU0)-§0-3P0D-DDV/4Pd/M3U/5)13558/WOD PAYII MMM//:dRY «

vd

4so B
jJusawabebuy

1spjoyayers

A

€d
saakojdw3y
jo buiaq
lI°PMm

Auedwo>
juaJed ajewn|n
dY3 Woly
wsjueydaw
ybisiano
ue sey os|e
pue siolpny
K1o1nieis ayy
Aq malnal
1uspuadapuy
ue 03} 123[gns

iAouabe [eusayxa
J1o [eusdiul ue

Aq £o110d siyy jo
Bupjiom ays jo
uolenjeAs/ypne

s1 £>110d sy jo juspuadapul

uoleyuswa|dwii N0 pauted

- YL A Auedwo) ay1 seH
¢sapijod/Ao1jod

93U} 0} paje|al

|eyod saouenslb
jurejdwod Slapjoyayels
Jawoisnd ssalppe 0}
ybnoiyy sapd1jod/Ad1j0d
syuiejdwod 33 03 paje|al
paje|as 3onpoud wisiueydaw
ssaippe 0} |essaipal
wisiueydaw 2duenslb e
|essaipai e sey aney Auedwod
Auedwo) ay| A QY1 se0Q
isamijod/Adi0d

9y Juswa|dwi

0} 21N12NJ13S

9sNoy-ul aAey

Auedwo>

A A a1 sa0Q

ad

Aypiqisuodsay
3onpo.d

$31Y33 ssauisng suonsand

oL

ACC LIMITED



@ Board & Management Reports

2a. If answer to Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No; please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)
Sr. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
No.
1 The Company has not understood -- - - - - - - - -
the principles
2  The Company is not at a stage where - - - - - - - - -
it finds itself in a position to formulate
and implement the policies on
specified principles
3 The Company does not have financial - - - - - - - - -
or manpower resources available for
the task
4  ltis planned to be done within next - - - - - - - - -
six months
5 It is planned to be done within next - - - - - - - - -
one year
6  Any other reason (please specify) - - - - - - TheCompany -- TheCompany
has a track has a systematic
record of process of
pioneering assessing
achievements, customer needs
sustained fulfilling them
experience with innovative
and leadership products and
position which services. It also
has benefitted has a customer
the cement complaint
industry at large redressal
in initiating system.
dialogue with
Government.
However, no
need for a
formal policy
has been felt.
3.  Governance related to BR:

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO assess the BR
performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year.

3 to 6 months

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyper-link for viewing this
report? How frequently it is published?:

Yes, the Company publishes its Sustainability Report annually. An electronic version of the report is also
uploaded on the Company’s website to serve as a web version. This report constitutes the Company’s seventh
Business Responsibility Report. The hyperlink for viewing the Sustainability Report of the Company is as under:

http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/pdf/2017-ACC-SD-Report-25-Jul-2018.pdf
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Section E: Principle-wise Performance

Principle 1: Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the Company? Yes/No. Does it
extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The Company considers Corporate Governance as an integral part of good management. The Company has a
Code of Business Conduct (along with Anti- Bribery and Corruption Directive) and a vigil mechanism named
EthicalView Reporting Policy that has been approved by the Board of Directors. These are applicable to all
Directors and employees of the Company and all its subsidiaries, and an annual affirmation is taken from the
designated employees. The Anti-Bribery and Corruption Directive and the EthicalView Reporting Policy also
extend to the Company’s business partners viz. vendors/service providers/customers. The Code is available
on the Company’s website at this web address http://www.acclimited.com/assets/new/pdf/ACC-Code-of-
Conduct-Final-signed-18-04-2017.pdf

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage
was satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company received 67 complaints under the EthicalView Reporting Policy, out of which 33 were resolved
and the balance 34 complaints are under various stages of investigation and completion.

Principle 2: Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability
throughout their life cycle.

1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental
concerns, risks and/or opportunities.

1. Blended cements: The Company manufactures Blended cements viz. Portland Pozzolana Cement (PPC)
and Portland Slag Cement (PSC) which are environmentally more friendly than the conventional OPC.
Industrial wastes such as flyash and slag, which are otherwise not environmental friendly are suitably
used in the manufacture of PPC and PSC which result in partial replacement of virgin limestone and
reduction of associated CO, emissions. ACC has started manufacturing environment friendly composite
cements which use both slag and fly ash in 2018 in Bargarh, Jamul, Sindri, Damodar and Kudithini plants.

2.  Co-processing services: The Company provides waste management solutions, under the brand name
of ‘Geocycle, to waste generating industries and organizations in the country through co-processing
of wastes in cement kilns. This not only ensures a safe and environmentally sustainable solution for
the disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes but it also results in creating environmental and
social benefits such as resource conservation, reduction of Green House Gas(GHG) emissions, local
employment, etc.

3.  Green Building Centers: “Green Building Centers” is the Company’s initiative to facilitate low-cost
housing development in India, by promoting sustainable materials, building techniques and locally
trained workforce. The production of green building materials is carried out in a modern production
environment with main emphasis on Quality and Service. The Green Building Centers have positively
impacted the climate, water and nature as well as the communities at large. The impact on the
environment can be easily measured by reductionin CO, emission, fertile top soil conservation and
utilization of waste materials.

2.  For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw
material etc) per unit of product (optional):

i. Reduction during sourcing / production / distribution achieved since the previous year throughout
the value chain

Consumption per unit of production Current Year Previous Year
(January - December 2018) | (January - December 2017)

Electrical Energy (kWh/ Tonne of Cement) 81.10 84.33

Thermal Energy (K Cal / kg of Clinker) 741 742

CO, Emissions (kg CO, / Tonne of Cement) 505 525
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iii. Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

The Company'’s products do not have any broad based impact on energy during usage phase. However,
as the cement manufacturing process is energy intensive, the Company takes several measures to reduce
thermal and electrical energy consumption in its manufacturing process.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? If
yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

Yes, the Company has all its manufacturing plants close to limestone mines which helps minimize transportation
of the primary raw material. The Company deploys sustainable mining practices. Most bulk materials are
transported inward by rail. Blended Cements are manufactured using flyash / slag which are by-products /
wastes of other industries. Fly ash and slag are not environmental friendly and need to be disposed off in a
careful manner. In the manufacture of clinker, the Company utilizes Alternative Fuel and Raw Materials (AFR)
which help it to conserve natural resources. The Company encourages procurement through vendors who
adopt sustainable practices.

4. Has the Company undertaken any steps to procure goods and services from local and small producers,
including communities surrounding their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve
the capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Yes, the Company has a policy of procuring goods and availing services like horticulture, housekeeping etc.
from nearby suitable sources of supply.

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of
recycling of products and waste? (Separately as < 5%, 5-10%, >10%) Also, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so.

The cement manufacturing process does not directly discharge any significant effluent or waste. ACC has the
facility of consuming used and torn cement bags as Alternate Fuel in some of the manufacturing units. As the
location of cement plants are far away from markets, a very low percentage of used bags get recycled at the
Plants. About 85% of cement manufactured by the Company comprises blended cement which is produced
using slag and fly ash which are wastes from other industrial processes. Recognizing the urgent need to address
global problems of increasing paucity of fossil fuels and rampant practices of unsustainable waste disposal, the
Company has pioneered the use of industrial, municipal and agricultural wastes as Alternative Fuels and Raw
Materials (AFR) in India.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees

1.  Please indicate total number of employees:

Sr. Category of Employees No. of Employees
No.
1. Management Staff 3829
2. Shop Floor Associates 2888
Total 6717

2. Please indicate total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis:

Sr. Category of Employees No. of Employees
No.

Third Party FTE 8312
2. Casual Employees 14

Total 8326

3. Please indicate the number of permanent women employees:

Number of permanent women employees: 262
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4. Please indicate the number of permanent employees with disabilities.
Number of permanent employees with disabilities: 15
5. Do you have an employee association that is recognized by the Management?

Yes, there are recognized trade unions which are affiliated to various central trade union bodies. Company’s
Shop Floor Associates and Office Associates are members of their respective unions.

6. What percentage of permanent employees are members of this recognized employee association?
Approximately 43% of permanent employees are members of recognized employee associations.

7. Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour,
sexual harassment in the last financial year and those pending as on the end of the financial year.

Sr. Category No of complaints No of complaints
No. filed during the pending as on end
financial year of the financial year
1 Child labour / forced labour / involuntary labour Nil Nil
2 Sexual Harassment Nil Nil
3 Discriminatory employment Nil Nil

8.  What Percentage of under mentioned employees were given safety and skill up-gradation training in
the last year?

A. Permanent employees 165%
B. Permanent women employees 165%
C.  Casual/Temporary/Contractual employees : 100%
D. Employees with disabilities *NIL

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? Yes/No

Yes, the Company has mapped its stakeholders through materiality matrix as a part of its stakeholder
engagement strategy development process.

2.  Out of the above, has the Company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders?

Yes, the Company has identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders with the help
of Participatory Rural Appraisal tool based on village micro plan and secondary socio-demographic data of the
community.

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable
and marginalized stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Yes, all CSRinterventions of the Company are intended to target the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders. For instance the education projects of Company are largely focused on government schools
situated in remote rural pockets of India. The scholarship initiative of the Company named VidyaSaarathi which
has been rolled out in 14 districts in 11 States of India, across the Company operations for disadvantaged
students who need financial support to pursue their dreams of higher education.

The Company continues to run two Anti-Retroviral Therapy (ART) centers to support people affected by HIV/
AIDS through medical treatment and counselling. The Company has also supported patients by organizing
them in Self Help Groups and through life skills development programmes and providing nutrition support to
HIV infected as well as affected family members. Moreover, quality education is also being provided to school
going children from the affected families.
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The Company has enhanced access to healthcare for the community through health camps and mobile health
clinics. The Company also jointly works with the local district administration for promoting national campaigns
on Open Defecation Free, Skilling and Water Conservation measures.

The Company continues to engage with the vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders for their sustainable
livelihood. skills training to youth, low external sustainable agriculture projects for farmers, institutionalizing
women SHGregistered federationsandachieving open defecation freevillagesare some of theaccomplishments
during the year 2018.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover only the Company or extend to the Group / Joint
Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

All aspects of the human rights are in-built and covered under the Code of Business Conduct as well as in
various human resource practices/policies.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was
satisfactorily resolved by the Management?

Nil
Principle 6: Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policy pertaining to Principle 6 cover only the Company or extends to the Group / Joint
Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / others?

The Company'’s Corporate Environment Policy extends to cover the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. Does the Company have strategies / initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate
change, global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyper-link for webpage etc.

Yes, the Company is committed to reduce GHGs emissions and has identified five key levers to achieve the
reduction of GHGs:

. Clinker substitution by making Blended Cements

. Alternative Fuel and Raw Materials (AFR);

. Thermal and electrical energy efficiency;

. Increased renewable energy utilization

. Waste heat recovery (WHR) and

. Newer technologies and renewable energy through own assets as well as Open Access

This information is available in our webpage: http://www.acclimited.com/sustainable/environment-and-
energy

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

Yes, the Company has a mechanism to identify and assess potential environmental risks at plant level as well
as corporate level. Potential Environmental risks also form a part of Business Risk Management Model, where
all business related risks are identified and their mitigation strategies and plans are worked upon. For details,
Please refer to BRM section of the Annual Report.

4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism (CDM)? If so, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether any environmental compliance report is
filed?

Yes, the Company has three registered projects under the Clean Development Mechanism(CDM) and
Environmental Compliance Report (Validation & Verification Reports) have been filed and Certified Emission
Reductions Reports were issued.
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5. Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable
energy etc? Y/N. If yes, provide hyper-link to web page etc.

Yes, we have made significant strides in attaining energy efficiency in our cement plants/ captive power plants
by following initiatives:

1.  Three wind farms — one each in Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu and Rajasthan with total capacity of 19 MW
2 Solar power procurement through open access

3 Waste Heat Recovery System (WHRS) at Gagal Cement Works

4,  Waste Co-processing in cement plants.

5 Various energy efficiency improvement initiatives in operations

Details on the above initiatives can be seen at the link: http://www.acclimited.com/sustainable/
environment-and-energy

6.  Arethe Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB
for the financial year being reported?

Yes, the emissions/waste generated by the Company were all within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB.

7.  Number of show cause / legal notices received from CPCB / SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to
satisfaction) as of end of financial year.

Few of our plants received show cause notices from CPCB / SPCB. However all notices were addressed to the
satisfaction of respective regulatory authorities and no cases were pending as at the end of FY 2018.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a
responsible manner

1. Is your Company a member of any trade and chambers of association? If yes, name only those major
ones that your business deals with.

The Company is a Member of:

1. Confederation of Indian Industries (ClI)

2 Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI)
3 IMC Chamber of Commerce and Industry

4. Federation of Indian Mineral Industries (FIMI)

5 National Safety Council (NSC)

6. Swiss India Chamber of Commerce.

2. Have you advocated / lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of
public good? Yes/No; If yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic
Reforms, Inclusive Development Polices, Energy Security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business
Principles, Others)

Yes, the Company advocates through the above associations on the following broad areas which impact the
Cement Industry:

i. Sustainable Mining Practices

ii. Co-processing of municipal & industrial hazardous & non hazardous wastes

iii.  Sustainable Construction

iv. Use of recycled waste materials (construction & demolition waste) in cement and concrete

V. New environmental regulations
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vi.  RPO-REC regulations for cement and power plants
vii.  PAT and Ecerts regulations
viii. Development of new product standards for low carbon cement and concrete products

ix.  Green Buildings
X. Flyash based pre-fab building materials
xi.  Manufactured Sand and aggregate from industrial waste
xii. ~ Promotion of Concrete Roads
Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1. Does the Company have specified programmes / initiatives / projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

Yes, the Company has specific programs / initiatives / projects pursuant to its CSR policy (Ref. http://www.
acclimited.com/source/new/csr/CSR-Policy-finalised-after-28-Nov-2016-Board-CSR-Committee-meeting.pdf)

All sections in the host communities are engaged by the Company for developing their village micro plans
through Participatory methods of planning. Individual projects are thereafter designed to address the various
needs of the host communities as per the priority expressed by the communities. Conscious efforts were made
to prioritize women headed, landless, small & marginal land holding families. Special drive for exclusive skilling
of women and ensuring that half of the scholarships for higher education are granted to girls has been ensured.
HIV+ and differently abled beneficiaries are specially tracked to be brought within the ambit of all social and
business measures.

Implementation of these projects are thereafter monitored by the representatives of the villagers at all locations
and course corrections measures are suggested by them, if needed. A Community Advisory Panel (CAP) has
been set up to help at all stages of CSR Interventions i.e. planning of CSR projects and process monitoring.
The Company has also organised third party social audit committee by taking people from different sectors
to spearhead annual evaluations through rigorous field visits and secondary data analysis. The CSR project
participants include the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized sections of the society.

The Company has carried out CSR projects in pursuance of inclusive development, primarily focusing on:
a. Sustainable Livelihood

b.  Quality of elementary Education

C. Water, Sanitation and Hygiene (WASH)

2.  Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team / own foundation /external NGO/
Govt. structure /any other organization?

The Company’s CSR projects are implemented through its in-house CSR Department, the ACC Trust and
through engagement with other Corporates, Academic and Government Institutions.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Yes, the Company has conducted impact assessments of its CSR initiatives. A third party Social Audit of 100%
CSR expenses was done for the fifth year in a row.

Social Audit Committee, constituted with renowned experts from social sector and academic institutions
assisted by a team of social sector professionals, has conducted the social audit of CSR work at all ACC plant
sites and based on field findings on parameters of Compliance, Relevance, Effectiveness, Efficiency, Rigor of
Implementation and Sustainability. Each Plant location was provided a performance score for the year 2018.
As a measure of good governance practice this score was imbibed in the ACC’s Performance Management
System. The social audit at ACC takes about 30 days of field assessment and reporting.
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4. What is the Company’s direct contribution to community development projects - Amount in INR and
details of the projects undertaken?

The Company spent an amount of ¥20.45 Crore on development projects as mentioned below:

S. Focus Areas Expenditure
No. (R in Crore)
1 ACC DISHA - for Youth Employability 3.93

2 ACC Swawlamban - focusing on women empowerment and livelihood 1.77

3 ACC LEISA - for Farmer’s Livelihood (Low External Input Sustainability Agriculture) 2.09

4 ACC VidyaUtkarsh (Quality of Education in Government Schools) 5.46

5 ACC VidyaSarthi (Scholarship for Students) 0.73

6 ACC Arogyam (Preventive, Promotive and Curative health care) 2.00

7 ACC SampurnaSwachhata (Towards open defecation free villages) 2.28

8 ACC SanrakshitParyavaran (Solar, Biodiversity and Soil&water conservation) 1.17

9 ACC Drona (To promote rural sports and traditional Indian culture) 1.02

Total 20.45

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by
the community? Please explain in 50 words.

Yes, all the community development initiatives of the Company are implemented through a participatory
approach. The portfolio of CSR projects is drawn up from need assessments done by third parties through
participatory rural appraisal method based micro plan. A Community Advisory Panel (CAP), comprising of
different stakeholders from community representatives and opinion leaders of the community i.e. functional
at ACC plant locations, regularly monitors the implementation of CSR initiatives and suggests measures for
course corrections. The community ownership and sustainability are the criteria that are built in CSR initiatives
from the beginning by creating community managed organizations. Community contribution is always a
priority as it ensures continuance of the project through the self- governance model.

Community management principles are inbuilt in all the CSR projects from need assessment stage till the
project graduation stage. Capacity building and institutional sustainability are integral part of all CSR projects.

Stakeholder Engagement Surveys (SES) during Social Audit are conducted annually to collect written feedbacks
of the community. Required modifications are carried out to ongoing initiatives and project outcomes are
assessed. This helps in fostering ownership amongst local communities.

Principle 9:Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a
responsible manner.

1.  What Percentage of customer complaints / consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year
2018?

A total of 1,096 complaints were received from customers in 2018, out of which 36 (accounting for 3.3%) were
pending as of 31t December, 2018.

2. Doesthe Company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)

No, the Company only displays information as mandated by local laws. No additional information is being
provided on the cement bags. However, we have obtained Environment Product Declaration (EPD) for
all our Cement and Concrete Products. Cement EPD can be viewed at https://www.environdec.com/
Detail/?Epd=13228 and Concrete EPD can be viewed at https://www.environdec.com/Detail/epd1116. All
our Cement Products are Cll Greenpro certified. The above certifications are the first of its kind in the Indian
Cement Industry.
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Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the Company regarding unfair trade practices,
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive behavior during the last five years and pending as on
end of financial year? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Builders Association of India (BAI) had in July 2010 filed a complaint before the Competition Commission
of India (CCl) alleging anti competitive practices on the part of major cement manufacturers including the
Company, which was investigated. The CCl has thereafter passed an Order against the cement manufacturers
and a penalty of ¥ 1,147.59 Crore was levied on the Company.

This Order has been challenged by the cement manufacturers including your Company before the Competition
Appellate Tribunal (COMPAT), which granted the Stay subject to the Company depositing 10% of the penalty
the matter has since been transferred to National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT).Vide its judgment
dated 25™ July 2018, the NCLAT has dismissed the appeal of the Company. The Company has preferred an
appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court against the above Order of NCLAT. The Hon'ble Supreme Court vide
its Order dated 5% October 2018, has admitted the Company'’s civil appeal and ordered for continuance of the
interim orders passed by NCLAT towards stay on the demand subject to continuance of the deposit of 10% of
the penalty amount.

All matters before the COMPAT (including Compilaint filed by the Director General (Supply & Distribution),
Department of Civil Supplies, Government of Haryana) have been transferred to the NCLAT and the appeal is
pending.

Did your Company carry out any consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends?

Yes, a Customer Satisfaction Survey is carried out by the Company every year.
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ANALYSIS OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL

The following table sets forth the breakup of the Company’s expenses as part of the Revenue from operations (net)

Amount in X Crore

2018 % of 2017 % of
Revenue from Revenue from
operations operations
Net Sales 14,477.47 97.81 12,908.94 97.33
Other operating revenue 323.88 2.19 353.65 2.67
Revenue from operations (net) 14,801.35 100.00 13,262.59 100.00
Other Income 138.50 0.94 131.65 0.99
Cost of material consumed 2,370.23 16.01 1,982.52 14.95
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 89.26 0.60 0.84 0.01
Changes in inventories of finished goods, (124.98) (0.84) (14.90) (0.11)
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 881.06 5.95 818.95 6.17
Power and fuel 2,998.12 20.26 2,71445 20.47
Freight and Forwarding expense 4,011.41 27.10 3,450.97 26.02
Finance costs 89.20 0.60 102.30 0.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense 599.64 4.05 640.12 4.83
Other expenses (including net of Excise 2,531.62 17.09 2,400.63 18.09
duty paid and recovery)
Profit before tax 1,494.29 10.10 1,298.36 9.79
Tax expenses 488.29 3.30 38291 2.89
Tax adjustments for earlier years (500.63) (3.38) - -
Profit for the year 1,506.63 10.18 915.45 6.90
Other Comprehensive Income for the (4.85) (0.03) 2.37 0.02
year, net of tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the 1,501.78 10.15 917.82 6.92
year

Financial results for the year are not comparable with previous year due to following reasons:

(@)  Employee benefits expense for the current year includes X 70 Crore (Previous year - Nil) on account of charge
for Employee Separation Scheme.

(b)  Inthe current year, provision for tax of ¥ 501 Crore relating to earlier years written back.

The Company has demonstrated its capacity to execute multiple strategies and strengthened the culture of
protecting its reputation and driving competitive advantage. The Company has delivered a profit after tax of
31,006 Crore (excluding tax write back) as compared to ¥ 915 Crore in 2017.

Over the previous year, net sales growth is 12% and operating EBITDA (excluding severance cost) growth is 11%.
This growth was achieved by executing a set of priorities, both on revenue and cost levers, improving efficiency
and strengthening our customer & market approach. This enabled the Company to improve the performance
continuously over the last several quarters.
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The analysis of major items of the financial statements is given below:

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (NET EXCISE DUTY):

Amountin X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Cement* 13,041.09 11,560.46 1,480.63 12.81
Clinker 130.00 208.00 (78.00) (37.50)
Ready Mix Concrete 1,299.10 1,131.45 167.65 14.82
Income from services rendered 7.28 9.03 (1.75) (19.38)
Other operating revenue 323.88 353.65 (29.77) (8.42)
TOTAL 14,801.35 13,262.59 1,538.76 11.60

*Does not include cement sale to RMX
Revenue from operations has increased due to following reasons:

° The Company achieved highest ever sales in current year. The Company’s cement sales volume is at
28.37 million tonnes as compared to 26.21 million tonnes during previous year.

° The cement business delivered sales volume growth of 8% as compared to previous year basis driven by
stronger demand and greater focus on premium products.

° The cement market continued to witness vigorous price competition. Average selling price of cement
increased by 2% in 2018 over 2017 (excluding impact of change in commercial term).

° Continued thrust on promotion of the Company’s range of premium products, yielded an increase of
about 36% in the sales volume of these products during the year.

° The Company’s Ready Mix Concrete (RMX) business showed positive momentum throughout the
year, achieving overall growth of 16% in sales volume during the year. Sale of Ready Mix Concrete has
increased from 27.10 Lakh Cubic Metres to 31.57 Lakh Cubic Metres.

° During the year, RMX business expanded its footprint by adding 18 new Plants. These Plants are located
in high contribution and high EBITDA margin markets across the country. With this addition, the
nationwide network of RMX Plants comprises of 75 state-of-the-art Plants.

Other operating revenue includes accrual of incentives from State Governments under incentive schemes,
write back of provision which is no longer required, scrap sales and other miscellaneous Income.

Other operating revenue has decreased mainly due to following reason:

° Other operating revenue of previous year included insurance claims of ¥ 31 Crore on account of
breakdown of Property, Plant and Equipment.

OTHER INCOME:
Amount in X Crore
| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Other income 138.50 131.65 6.85 5.20

Other income consists of income on investment of surplus funds, interest on Income Tax, gain on sale and
fair valuation of financial assets, dividend from non-current investments and net gain on disposal of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

Other income has increased marginally due to following offsetting reasons:

° Interest income on bank deposits and gain on sale of mutual funds has increased by X 36 Crore due to
increase in surplus funds. Cash and cash equivalent has increased by 12% as compared to previous year.

° In the previous year, the Company received interest on Income Tax of ¥ 15 Crore as a result of conclusion
of assessments and other proceedings relating to earlier years.

° In the previous year, the Company sold its investment in Shiva Cement Limited and gain of ¥ 10 Crore

was recorded under Other Income.
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3. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED:

Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Change%

Cost of materials consumed 2,370.23 1,982.52 387.71 19.56%

Cost of material consumed has increased due to following reasons:

° Cement production has increased by 7% from 26.56 million tonnes to 28.36 million tonnes. Cost of
material consumed of cement business has increased from X 564/t to 624/t (up by 11%).

° Ready Mix Concrete production has increased by 15% from 27.29 Lakh Cubic Metres to 31.29 Lakh Cubic
Metres.

° Slag prices up by 55% due to surge in demand and consequential need to procure long lead sources.
Overall cost of consumption of slag has increased by ¥ 138 Crore.

° The landed cost of flyash reduced by 4% as against previous year on account of increased usage of
cheaper wet flyash and through source-mix optimization.

° Increased usage of cheaper activated gypsum and procurement from cheaper sources helped in
reducing the gypsum cost by 5%.

° Purchase of clinker has increased by ¥ 95 Crore and purchase of limestone has decreased by ¥ 30 Crore.

° Sustained efforts were made to improve flyash absorption which enabled the Company to reduce the
clinker factor by producing a higher share of blended cements which in turn had a positive impact on
the contribution despite sharp rise in the cost of slag as stated above.

4. CHANGES ININVENTORIES:

Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Change%
Changes in inventories of finished (124.98) (14.90) (110.08) 738.79%
goods, work-in-progress and Stock-
in-Trade

° Movement of change in inventories is mainly on account of increase in finished goods stock as compared
to previous year. Inventory of finished goods is ¥ 293 Crore as on December 31, 2018 as compared to
%161 Crore in December 31, 2017.

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE:

Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Change%

Employee benefit expense 881.06 818.95 62.11 7.58

Employee costs registered an increase of 7.58% due to following reasons:

° During the current year, the Company has incurred an amount of ¥ 70 Crore on account of Employee
Separation Scheme to improve the manpower productivity.

° Increase in employee benefits expenses due to normal annual increments with effect from April 01,
2018.

° The Company has achieved the employee cost optimization by delivering strategic change and putting
in place the operational capabilities. This helped the Company in reducing the employee cost. Employee
head counts have also reduced from 7,422 in 2017 to 6,731 in 2018.
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6. POWERAND FUEL:

Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Change%|

Power and Fuel

2,998.12 2,714.45 283.67 10.45

Power and fuel cost has increased due to following reasons:

Clinker production is almost at previous year level. Power and Fuel cost of cement business has increased
from ¥ 1030/t to 1051/t (up 2%). Power cost per tonne of clinker production has increased by 10%.

Overall fuel cost has been impacted adversely due to increase in fuel prices. Imported petcoke price has
increased by 22% from previous year. Landed cost of imported and domestic coal has also increased in
the range of 9% to 12%.

The Company continued fuel mix optimization during the year. Considering the higher pet coke prices,
usage of domestic coal has increased to 28% in 2018 as compared to 25% in 2017. Usage of pet coke has
reduced to 64% as compared to 67% in 2017.

The cost of generation at our thermal power plants (TPP) has gone up by 7% to X 5.39 per Kwh in 2018
against X 5.05 per Kwh in 2017, mainly due to increase in CPP coal prices and non-availability of linkage
coal.

The average cost of purchased power during the year is X 6.43 per kwh as compared to X 6.53 per kwh in
the previous year.

Controlling costs is an on-going exercise. To mitigate the impact of rising fuel prices, the Company
engaged in a cost control program leading to the following manufacturing efficiencies:

° Electrical energy efficiency improved by 3.23 kwh to 81.10 kwh/t of cement during the year as
against 84.33 kwh /t cement in 2017.

° Electrical energy efficiency improved by ~ 1 kwh to 69.0 kwh/t of clinker during the year as against
69.9 kwh /t clinker in 2017 and by 1.6 kwh to 38.5 kwh/t of cement grinding during the year as
against 40.1 kwh /t cement grinding in 2017.

° Kiln thermal efficiency improved by 4MJ to 3099 MJ /per tonne of clinker during the year as against
3103 MJ/per tonne of clinker in 2017.

° Power generated by the Company’s Waste Heat Recovery Plant of 7.5 MW at Gagal plant delivered
the savings of ¥ 22 Crore (Previous year - 22 Crore).

° Entering into solar power purchase agreements to cut purchased power costs and to meet
renewable energy obligations.

7. FREIGHT AND FORWARDING EXPENSE :

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|

Freight and Forwarding expense

Freight on Clinker transfer 515.82 480.83 34.99 7.28
Freight on Cement 2,786.79 2,362.31 424.48 17.97
Clearing and Forwarding expenses 573.47 495.82 77.65 15.66
on cement

Ready Mix Concrete 135.33 112.01 23.32 20.82
TOTAL 4,011.41 3,450.97 560.44 16.24

Freight on Cement has increased due to following reasons:

° Cement despatches increased by 7% as compared to previous year. Freight on cement has increased
from X901/t to 982/t (up by 9%). Like for like increase is 1% (excluding impact of change in commercial

terms).
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° Increased FOR sales in current year as compared to ex-works sales in the previous year has resulted into
increase in per tonne cement freight cost by approx. 8%.

° Diesel prices have also gone up as compared to previous year.

Following continuous efforts are made to contain the costs through Logistics strategies for improving

efficiency:

° Improvement in Direct dispatches by 1%

° Reduction in rail lead by 4% through route optimisation. Road lead is increased by 2%.

° Improvement in operational efficiencies through mode-mix optimisation

° Long Term Traffic Contract with Railways

° Road contract benchmarking & negotiation helped to restrict road freight increase

Clearing and Forwarding Expenses on cement due to following reasons:

° Cement despatches increased by 7% as compared to previous year.

° Clearing and Forwarding expenses on cement has increased from X 189/t to 202/t (up by 7%).

° Cost up due to additional warehousing space to meet volume growth and handling of higher premium

products.

Freight cost on sale of Ready Mix Concrete has gone up due to increase in volumes.

FINANCE COSTS:
Amount in X Crore
| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Interest
- On Income tax 29.59 52.99 (23.40) (44.16)
- On Defined benefit obligation 9.31 8.22 1.09 13.26
- Interest on deposits from dealers 28.89 24.14 4,75 19.68
- Interest on Royalty on limestone 10.31 - 10.31 100.00
- Others 9.17 15.35 (6.18) (40.26)
Unwinding of site restoration provision 1.93 1.60 0.33 20.63
TOTAL 89.20 102.30 (13.10) (12.81)

Finance cost has increased due to followings reasons:

° The Company provided interest on outstanding tax demand in the previous year. Consequent to
payment of such demand in current year, interest expenses is lower as compared to previous year.

° During the current year, the Company has paid interest of ¥ 10 Crore on demand of royalty on limestone

for earlier years.

° Consequent to the increase in interest rate, interest paid on dealers deposit has increased as compared

to previous year.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 595.07 636.92 (41.85) (6.57)
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.57 3.20 1.37 42.81
Total 599.64 640.12 (40.48) (6.32)

Depreciation has decreased mainly due to Property, Plant and Equipment retired / fully depreciated during the

previous year.
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10. OTHER EXPENSES:

Amount in ¥ Crore
| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Consumption of stores and spare parts 318.72 331.14 (12.42) (3.75)
Consumption of packing materials 502.59 434.36 68.23 15.71
Rent 137.11 139.79 (2.68) (1.92)
Rates and taxes 151.48 151.85 (0.37) (0.24)
Repairs 168.82 170.25 (1.43) (0.84)
Insurance 21.29 21.79 (0.50) (2.29)
Royalties on minerals 269.16 224.12 45.04 20.10
Advertisement 72.10 87.42 (15.32) (17.52)
Technology and Know-how fees 144.46 128.37 16.09 12.53
Impairment losses on financial assets (net) 5.39 2.20 3.19 145.00
Corporate Social Responsibility expense 20.45 21.82 (1.37) (6.28)
Miscellaneous expenses 722.76 715.66 7.10 0.99
Excise duty variation on opening and closing stock - (22.01) 22.01 (100.00)
Self Consumption of cement (2.71) (6.13) 342 (55.79)
TOTAL 2,531.62 2,400.63 130.99 5.46

° Consumption of stores and spares parts has decreased mainly on account of lower maintenance cost as
compared to previous year by optimizing the shut-down cost.

° Consumption of packing material cost has increased mainly due to increase in volumes. Average price of
packing bags also increased by 10.30% due to increase in prices of polypropylene granules. Consumption
of bags for premium products has also increased in line with increase in sale of premium products.

° Overall expenses on royalties on minerals have increased due to increase in extraction of limestone
Previous year royalties on minerals expenses is net of I 34 Crore related to provision for contribution
towards District Mineral Foundation (DMF), written back on the basis of Supreme Court’s favourable
Judgementin 2017.

° Advertisement expenses decreased due to decrease in various promotional activities.

° Technology and Know-how fees represent the amount paid to Holcim Technology Ltd for technical
support received by the Company.

° Miscellaneous expenses include commission on sales paid to third party, information technology
services, traveling expenses, other third party services, etc. Effective cost control measures have resulted
in curtailment of increase in overall miscellaneous expenses. Miscellaneous expenses as % of Net sales
are reduced to 4.99% as compared to 5.54% in 2017.

11. TAX EXPENSES:

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Current tax 457.02 351.12 105.90 30.16
Tax adjustments for earlier years (500.63) - (500.63) (100.00)
Deferred tax charge 31.27 31.79 (0.52) (1.64)
TOTAL (12.34) 382.91 (395.25) (103.22)

Effective income tax rate for 2018 is 32.68% as compared to 29.49% in previous year. The Company was eligible
for Investment allowance on new plant and machinery up to Assessment year 2017-2018. Effect of this non
availability of this benefit on effective income tax rate was (2.56%) in the previous year.

° Current tax has increased by X 106 Crore mainly due to increase in taxable profit and reduction in
allowances on new plant and machinery as stated above.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

° The Company was entitled to incentives in the form of excise duty benefit for its Gagal Plant in the
state of Himachal Pradesh, in respect of Income Tax Assessment Years 2006-07 to 2015-16.The Company
contended initsincome tax returns that the said incentives are in the nature of capital receipts, and hence
not liable to income tax. In view of the series of repeated favourable orders by the tax department, in the
current year the Company again reviewed the matter, and has reassessed the risk and concluded that the
risk of an ultimate outflow of economic benefits for this matter is no longer probable. Accordingly the
Company has reversed the existing provisions of ¥ 501 Crore (Refer Note - 21)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS:

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Property, Plant and Equipment 7,012.21 7,201.25 (189.04) (2.63)
Capital work-in-progress 392.16 261.72 130.44 49.84
Other Intangible assets 37.22 39.77 (2.55) (6.41)
TOTAL 7,441.59 7,502.74 (61.15) (0.82)

Property, Plant and Equipment has decreased due to following offsetting reasons:

° During the year, the Company has capitalised Property, Plant and Equipment of I 425 Crore mainly
consisting of routine maintenance capex.
° Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment for the year is ¥ 595 Crore.

INVESTMENTS:

Amount in ¥ Crore
| 2018 2017 Change  Change%]|
Investments in subsidiaries, 226.45 226.45 - -

associates and joint ventures

Other Non-current investments 3.70 3.70 - -
TOTAL 230.15 230.15 - -

° No movement in investments in the current year

FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS AND ADVANCES
Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Changel
Non-current loans 161.23 215.88 (54.65) (25.31)
Current loans 78.87 40.96 37.91 92.55
TOTAL 240.10 256.84 (16.74) (6.52)
° Non-current loans have decreased mainly due to redemption of Security deposit given for lease rental
agreement.
° Current loans have increased mainly on account of increase in Security deposit given for supply of raw
materials.
OTHER ASSETS
Amount in X Crore
| 2018 2017 Change Change%l
Other non-current assets 611.77 616.49 (4.72) (0.77)
Other current assets 718.38 787.35 (68.97) (8.76)
TOTAL 1,330.15 1,403.84 (73.69) (5.25)

Other current assets have gone down due to following offsetting reasons:

° Advance to suppliers has gone down by X 106 Crore. Advance given for supply of linkage coal and other
raw materials in the previous year is materialized in current year. Coal companies cleared backlog for
earlier period.

° Balances with statutory / government authorities has gone up by ¥ 39 Crore mainly due to GST paid on
input materials.
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Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change  Change%|
Raw Materials 185.73 153.96 31.77 20.64
Work-in-Progress 222.89 230.87 (7.98) (3.46)
Finished Goods 29341 161.26 132.15 81.94
Stock-in-trade 0.98 0.17 0.81 476.47
Stores and Spare Parts 393.84 383.22 10.62 2.77
Packing Materials 21.83 25.79 (3.96) (15.35)
Fuels 559.88 448.68 111.20 24.78
TOTAL 1,678.56 1,403.95 274.61 19.56

° Average inventory turnover in sales days has increased from 37 days in 2017 to 39 days in 2018 mainly

due to increase in cement and coal inventory.
Raw material has increased mainly due to increase in inventory activated gypsum and slag.
Inventory of cement has increased by ¥ 132 Crore as compared to previous year.

Inventory of linkage coal has increased as coal companies cleared backlog for earlier period.
Corresponding advance given for supply of linkage coal is also reduced.

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES:

Amount in ¥ Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change% |
Trade receivables - Cement 559.91 403.09 156.82 38.90
Trade receivables - Ready Mix Concrete 308.35 265.11 43.24 16.31
TOTAL 868.26 668.20 200.06 29.94

° Trade receivable for cement as well as Ready Mix Concrete business has increased mainly due to increase
in sales. Increase in trade receivable is partially offset by better collections performance.

° The average trade receivables in sales days outstanding for cement sales as on December 31,2018 is 13
as compared to 11 as on December 31, 2017.

° The average trade receivables in sales days for Ready Mix Concrete business as on December 31,2017 is
80 as compared to 77 as on December 31, 2017.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change°/o|
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,836.84 2,526.74 310.10 12.27

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash at banks, demand deposits from banks and short-
term, highly liquid instruments. As part of Company’s cash management policy to meet short term cash
commitments, it parks its surplus funds in short-term highly liquid instruments that are held for a period of
three months or less from the date of acquisition.

° Cash and Cash Equivalents improved by 12.27% to X 2,836 Crore. The improvement is driven by strong
performance and better collection performance and implementing appropriate payment norms for
suppliers.
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19. PROVISIONS

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change|
Non-current provisions 139.52 142.03 (2.51) (1.77)
Current provisions 27.30 51.19 (23.89) (46.67)
TOTAL 166.82 193.22 (26.40) (13.66)

° Provision includes employee benefits and site restoration. Employee benefits provision is utilized in
current year on account of benefits payment under severance scheme.

20. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Short-term borrowings - 59.17 (59.17) (100.00)

° During the year, the Company has repaid the borrowings taken from ACC Mineral Resources Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary Company.

21. TRADE PAYABLES

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Trade Payables 1,922.73 1,810.49 112.24 6.20
° Increase in trade payables is result of improvising on working capital management by negotiating better

credit terms with suppliers
° Average trade payable in sales days has increased from 43 days in 2017 to 47 days in 2018.
22. Other Current Liabilities

Amount in X Crore

2018 2017 Change Change%
Other current financial liabilities
Interest accrued 2418 18.17 6.01 33.08
Unpaid dividend & Deposit 34.63 31.65 2.98 9.42
Security deposits and retention money 553.40 530.56 22.84 4.30
Liability for capital expenditure 67.99 59.85 8.14 13.60
Other financial liabilities 92.32 78.58 13.74 17.49
Foreign Currency Forward Contract 1.19 - 1.19 100
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 575.78 595.44 (19.66) (3.30)
Advance from customers 226.80 188.63 38.17 20.24
Other payables 986.42 948.59 37.83 3.99
TOTAL 2,562.71 2,451.47 111.24 4.54

Other current financial liabilities

° Security deposit has increased due to increase in number of dealers and increase in sales volume.

° Other financial liabilities have increased due to provision made under employee severance scheme.
Other current liabilities

° Liability for statutory dues has decreased mainly due to decrease in GST liability.

° Other payables increased mainly due to increase in liability for rebates to customers.
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23. CASHFLOWS

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change  Change%|
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,118.08 1,554.76 (436.68) (28.09)

Net cash from operating activities has decreased as compared to previous year due to following reasons:

° The cash operating profit before working capital changes has increased by ¥ 171 Crore due to strong
performance in the current year.

° Direct tax paid - (Net of refunds) has increased by ¥ 309 Crore. During the previous year, the Company
received income tax refund of X 130 Crore for earlier years on completion of assessment years.

° Impact on cash flow from operating activities due to above reasons partially offset by increase in
working capital by ¥ 388 Crore as compared to increase of ¥ 89 Crore in previous year. Inventory and
trade receivables have gone up as compared to previous year.

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Net cash flow from investing activities (367.78) (384.58) 16.80 (4.37)

Net cash used for investing activities has marginally reduced as compared to previous year mainly due to
higher interest received on surplus funds.

Amount in X Crore

| 2018 2017 Change Change%|
Net cash flow used for financing activities (441.11) (422.10) (19.01) 450

Net cash used for financing activities has marginally increased as compared to previous year following reasons:

° Repayment of borrowings of ¥ 60 Crore taken from ACC Mineral Resources Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary Company.

° Increase in cash flow financing activities has partially offset by lower dividend during the year. In the
current year, interim dividend is not declared, keeping in view the proposed expansion plans.

RATIO ANALYSIS

1.

2.

Operating EBITDA margin (%)

| 2018 2017]
Operating EBITDA margin 14.12 14.79

° Despite rising prices of slag, pet coke and diesel, the Company is able to maintain the Operating EBITDA
margin almost at same level of last year due to continued emphasis on productivity measures, improved
raw material mix and source mix optimization which helped partially offset higher input costs.

° Operating EBITDA for 2018 includes ¥ 70 Crore on account of charge for Employee Separation Scheme
which has resulted in to drop in Operating EBITDA margin by 48 bps.

° Slag prices up by 55% due to surge in demand and consequential need to procure long lead sources.
Overall fuel cost has been impacted adversely due to increase in fuel prices.

Average Return on Capital Employed (%)

| 2018 2017
Average Return on Capital Employed 15.02 14.27

Average return on capital employed as increased 75 bps mainly due to following reasons:

° Earnings before interest on long term borrowings and tax (EBIT) have increased by 15% as compared to
previous year whereas average net worth has increased only by 9%.
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3. Return on Net worth (%)

2018 2017
Return on Net worth* 9.56 9.77
*Profit after tax is after excluding income tax write back X 501 Crore in 2018.
° Return on Net worth in the current year is fairly in line with previous year.
4, Current Ratio (Times)
| 2018 2017
Current ratio 1.39 1.08

° The Company’s current ratio for 2018 is recorded at 1.37 times as compared to 1.08 timesin 2017.Increase
in current ratio is mainly on account of increase in working capital. Trade receivables and inventory has
increased as compared to previous year.

5. Price Earning Ratio (Times)

2018 2017
Price Earning Ratio 27.84 36.08

° Basic Earnings per share stood at X 53.57 for the year ended 2018 registering an increase by 10% as
compared to previous year on account of increase in profitability. However overall Price earnings ratio
has decreased in view of stock market volatility in the current year.

6. Net worth per Share ()

| 2018 2017
Net worth per Share 561 499

° Net worth per share has increased as compared to previous year due to increase in net worth by 12%.

° Net worth has increased due to increase in retained profit after distribution of dividend to the
shareholders.

7. Dividend per share, earning per share and Dividend payout ratio*

| 2018 2017
Dividend per share (%) 14 26
Basic Earnings per Share ) 53.57 48.75
Dividend payout ratio (%) 26 53

* Dividend payout ratio is calculated without considering dividend distribution tax

° Basic Earnings per share stood at ¥ 53.57 for the year ended 2018 registering an increase by 10% as
compared to previous year on account of increase in profitability.

8. Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio (Times)

| 2018 2017
Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio 1.9 1.7

° Asset turnover ratio has increased in 2018 as compared to previous year mainly on account of increase
in net sales.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of ACC Limited

Report on the Standalone
Statements

Ind AS Financial

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS
financial statements of ACC Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31,
2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards, and matters which are required to be included
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and the Order issued under
section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.

@ Financial Statements

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at December 31, 2018, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Notes 40(A)a and 40(A)b to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements which describe
the following matters:

a) In terms of order dated August 31, 2016, the
Competition Commission of India (CCl) had
imposed a penalty of ¥ 1,147.59 crores for alleged
contravention of the provisions of the Competition
Act, 2002 (the Competition Act) by the Company.
On the Company’s appeal, National Company
Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT), (which replaced
the Competition Appellate Tribunal (COMPAT)
effective May 26, 2017), in its order passed on
July 25, 2018 had upheld the CCI's Order. The
Company’s appeal against the said judgement
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of NCLAT before the Hon’ble Supreme Court was
admitted vide its order dated October 05, 2018
with a direction that the interim order passed by
the Tribunal would continue.

b) In a separate matter, pursuant to a reference
filed by the Government of Haryana, the CCl by
its order dated January 19, 2017, had imposed
a penalty of ¥ 35.32 crores on the Company for
alleged contravention of the provisions of the
Competition Act. On Company’s filing an appeal
together with application for interim stay against
payment of penalty, COMPAT has stayed the
penalty pending hearing of the application. This
matter is listed before the NCLAT for hearing.

Based on the Company’s assessment on the outcome of
these appeals supported by the advice of external legal
counsel, the Company is of the view that no provision is
necessary in respect of these matters in these financial
statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Company

expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

g)  With respect to the other matters to
be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to
be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

iil The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no delay in
transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,
on the basis of information available
with the Company, other than
% 1.16 crores paid during the year, as
reported in the previous year.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

as on December 31,2018 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on December 31, 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
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